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ARER
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| am pleased to present the annual results of Raymond
Industrial Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December
2021.

During the financial year (“FY”) of 2021, the Group faced
the challenges of increasing operating costs, shortage
of containers and increasing transportation costs. Since
November 2020, the Group also faced 2.28 percent
appreciation of Renminbi against US dollars. Despite all
these uncertainties, the Group managed to launch more
new and innovative products during the second half of
2021 to achieve acceptable performance for the full year.
Consequently, for FY2021, the Group’s consolidated turnover
increased to HK$1,433,612,000, representing an increase of
11.17% as compared with the same period in the previous
year. However, net profit of the Group was HK$41,960,000,
representing a decrease of 33.63%, as compared with the
net profit of HK$63,218,000 for the same period in FY2020.
Cash generated from operations was HK$19,088,000
in FY2021. Net cash and cash equivalents at the end of
FY2021 was HK$244,802,000 (HK$40,042,000 of which
were dividend paid out during FY2021) as compared with
HK$291,894,000 at the beginning of FY2021. The positive
operating cash flow and substantial cash balances enable
the Group to continue paying dividends to the shareholders.
At the same time, the Group continues to invest excess cash
in research and development (‘R&D”), new technology and
automation equipment. Consequently, the Group continue
to qualify as a High and New Technology Enterprise (‘HNTE”)
in The People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”).

MREEBRAF T —FF%H

Chairman’s Statement
TE®/E

RAMRARIREZFNREZARAR([ERT ) REWB AT
(SB[ AEE)EE2021F12 ASIBILFECFEHEE -

fE2021 TIFE ([ MBE D) - NEBEMERAA E AL N -
ENERE B B S A AN G A SR EPREL - B 2020511 AR -
AEBEEAHARE S ETLHAE228%MHE - BETFE
BLUTNEERZ  AEBEMBIF TS ML 2021 TH¥F
HRTEZHER  FALEE2021 2FEREIHER
W M2 MHFE  FEBENGEEXETLAZEE
1,433,612,0007C * & F RHAEIN11.17% o KNEE 7 F
S R A7 41,060,000 7T 85 2020 B BUAF FE R B A9 504 )
7515 63,218,000 7T IH 4 33.63% ° 2021 BN F & » 8%
EA R4S AB19,088,0007T c 22021 F12 A31HZ
B4 RIS EEABE 244,802,000 7 (A 2021 AHFEEE
R B A% BB 40,042,000 7T ) + BEL 2021 AN F E VIR E
NI EE B 291,804,0007T » FRERLEFTEHES
R E A B A AEE MR RIREAE - BRI A&
BEEEIL ST TR EBB R ESHBAER - £
AEBREEETPEARLNE((HE]) ERE LS
firb % (THNTEJ) & 15 -



Chairman’s Statement
TEHE

In FY2021, the Group invested in R&D research projects
both in the PRC and in Hong Kong, and the Group’s
management anticipated that these R&D innovations could
help the Group to enter new market segments to diversify
our risks and improve our profit margins. To achieve AloT
(Artificial Intelligence and Internet of Things) compatibility,
the Group continued to invest in the information systems
and automated production processes to convert the
operations to be 5G ready and can utilize big data and
mobile surveillance systems to improve quality systems.
With more digital transformation tools available, the Group’s
management can update strategies and react to changes
quickly in highly competitive global markets. In FY2021,
the Group invested HK$32,187,000 (compared with
HK$15,507,000 in 2020) to set up new semi-automated
new painting lines for new products, purchased injection
moulding machines and laboratory testing equipment
to strengthen our R&D and operational capabilities, and
upgraded our information systems to enhance faster data
processing and analysis. Part of the increased capital
expenditure was related to new R&D projects in order
to fulfill the High Technology Venture minimum annual
investment requirement; and we expect the investment in
these R&D projects will generate more sales revenue in
2022 from launch of new products. Qualifying for the High
Technology venture status would enable the Group to enjoy
lower profit tax rate and receive tax incentives from the PRC
Government; and increase our competitiveness among our
peers.

The Group’s net profit in FY2021 was HK$41,960,000,
representing basic earnings per share of 8.41 Hong Kong
cents (net profit in FY2020 was HK$63,218,000, with basic
earnings per share of 12.78 Hong Kong cents).

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the
“Directors”) of the Company, | would like to extend the
Board’s appreciation to all our staff for their hard work and
dedication throughout the year ended 31 December 2021.

WONG, Man Hin Raymond
Chairman
Hong Kong, 25 March 2022
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Management Discussion and Analysis

FINANCIAL POSITION

The liquidity position of the Group was satisfactory. The
current ratio of the Group was 2.76 as of 31 December
2021, compared with 2.62 as of 31 December 2020. The
quick ratio of the Group was 1.99 as of 31 December 2021
(81 December 2020: 2.03). The gearing ratio of the Group
was 0.42 as of 31 December 2021 (31 December 2020:
0.45), which was computed by the trade and other payables
over total equity.

During FY2021, the Group’s trade receivables turnover
stood at 77 days, compared with 83 days in FY2020. The
inventory turnover in FY2021 was 64 days, compared with
59 days in FY2020.

Bank balances and cash were HK$244,802,000 as of
31 December 2021 (2020: HK$291,894,000), representing
a decrease of HK$47,092,000 as compared to the figures in
the same period in FY2020, which was mainly due to higher
level of inventory and higher capital expenditure and R&D
expenditure.

There were no bank borrowings as of 31 December 2021
(2020: Nil).

The Group had no contingent liabilities as of 31 December
2021 (2020: Nil).

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

During the year, the capital structure of the Company has
not been changed with details shown in note 23(a) to the
consolidated financial statements.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board has proposed a final dividend of 4 Hong Kong
cents per ordinary share for the year ended 31 December
2021 (2020: a final dividend of 4 Hong Kong cents per
ordinary share and a special dividend of 2 Hong Kong
cents per ordinary share). The proposed final dividend, if
approved by the shareholders at the forthcoming annual
general meeting, will be paid on Thursday, 9 June 2022 to
the shareholders whose names appear on the register of
members of the Company on Tuesday, 31 May 2022.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The Register of Members of the Company will be closed for
the following periods:

(1) For the purpose of determining shareholders who
are entitled to attend and vote at the forthcoming
annual general meeting to be held on Friday, 20 May
2022 (the “2022 AGM"), the register of members of
the Company will be closed from Monday, 16 May
2022 to Friday, 20 May 2022, both days inclusive. In
order to be qualified for attending and voting at the
2022 AGM, all transfer documents, accompanied
by the relevant share certificates, should be lodged
for registration with the Company’s share registrar,
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
at Shops 1712-1716, 17/F., Hopewell Centre, 183
Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong no later than 4:30
p.m. on Friday, 13 May 2022.

2) For the purpose of determining shareholders who
are qualified for the final dividend, the register of
members of the Company will be closed from Friday,
27 May 2022 to Tuesday, 31 May 2022, both days
inclusive. In order to be qualified for the final dividend,
all transfer documents, accompanied by the relevant
share certificates, should be lodged for registration
with the Company’s share registrar, Computershare
Hong Kong Investor Services Limited at Shops
1712-1716, 17/F., Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s
Road East, Hong Kong no later than 4:30 p.m. on
Thursday, 26 May 2022.

CHARGES ON ASSETS

The Group had no charges on assets as of 31 December
2021 (2020: Nil).

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

Most of the Group’s transactions were conducted in the
United States dollars, British Pound, Hong Kong dollars
and Renminbi. The Group does not foresee any substantial
exposure to foreign currency fluctuations and thus use of
financial instruments for exchange rate hedging purpose is
not considered.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS HELD,
MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS
OF SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND JOINT
VENTURES

Save as disclosed in this annual report, the Group did not
have any significant investments, material acquisitions or
disposals of subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures during
the year ended 31 December 2021.

FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS
AND CAPITAL ASSETS

Save as disclosed in this annual report, the Group did not
have other plans for material investments or capital assets
during the year ended 31 December 2021.

FUTURE PROSPECTS

The impact of ongoing COVID-19 pandemic has drastically
impacted the operations and strategies of virtually all
organizations. The underlying economic and political
environment results in tremendous volatility and uncertainty
that may create significant risks to the business. The Group
has purchased new back-up electricity generators to avoid
production shut down due to limited power supply from the
municipality, as we experienced in August and September
of 2021 and that was widely reported in the media. The
Group’s management has performed a comprehensive risk
assessment and have contingency plans in place to handle
sudden supply chain disruption, power outage, and adverse
climate change such as flooding and typhoon.

Despite there being a cloud of uncertainties surrounding
global trade, from unstable supply chain operations to
shortage of containers in 2021, the Group nevertheless
successfully opened up new revenue stream from higher
valued-added new products especially in the beverage
category in 2021. Despite the most recent deterioration of
Omicron pandemic in Hong Kong, and Russian invasion in
Ukraine, the Group anticipated growing revenue from the
beverage category in 2022 and we can apply more new
technologies in innovative products that would bring the
restaurant and pub experience to individual households, in a
way that Keurig/Nespresso revolutionized the home gourmet
coffee market for coffee lovers.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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The Group’s investment in R&D enables us to maintain the
HNTE status for the fifth consecutive year, and allow the
Group to use new knowledge, patents and innovations to
grow our business. The Group’s management will remain
resilient to tackle any immediate market downturns and
form stronger partnership with our strategic customers and
suppliers. The Group will continue to invest and promote
computerization of manufacturing. The Group has started
using a new ERP system platform and integrated our ERP
system with new financial analytic software to enable cross
functional transformation that can unlock the Group’s full
operational potential. The adoption of digital technologies
requires new skills and require significant efforts to upskill
and reskKill existing employees. Ensuring privacy, identify
management, information security and system protection
may require significant resources to manage cyber threats.
By scrutinizing the entire end-to-end process, from
understanding customer needs to the delivery of finished
products, the Group’s management can address the entire
value chain to open up new business opportunities, make
more efficient use of working capital and better manage
discretionary spending. The Group’s management will
also allocate more resources in 2022 to implement better
cybersecurity and hopefully with external consultants’
advice, the Group’s IT system can be ISO27001 certified.

Finally, in the past two years the COVID-19 pandemic
forced the Group’s management to make agile decisions
and to change our strategies frequently to adopt to the
macroeconomic and geopolitical uncertainties, the Board
considers that the suspension of announcing and publishing
the quarterly financial results of the Group will enable
the Group’s management to concentrate on its principal
business for the best interests of the shareholders and
it will not compromise or prejudice the interests of the
shareholders and investors of the Group. Short-term metrics
during a stable macroeconomic environment can help the
Group to prioritize decisions that will yield the most optimal
and attractive results. However, during uncertain time, such
an approach will sacrifice valuable investment opportunities
to build a more stable global supply chain to improve
operational stability.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

According to a 2015 Harvard Study, short-term metrics are
linked to lower earnings growth, a higher cost of capital
and a lower return on equity when compared with peers
that focus on long-term orientation. Therefore, taking a
longer view strategy without worrying meeting short-term
performance metrics can hopefully deliver better results
during uncertain time.

In the past two years, the Board also appointed “new”
independent non-executive directors (“‘INEDs”) to replace
long serving INEDs and appointed a female audit committee
chairlady to improve the diversity and corporate governance
of the Board. The Board will continue to comply with
the Rules (the “Listing Rules”) Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) by publishing the Group’s half-yearly
and annual financial results within the prescribed time limits
and will resume the voluntary quarterly reporting when the
Board considers appropriate.

STAFF

The Group currently employs approximately 29 Hong Kong
staff members and provides them with the Mandatory
Provident Fund Scheme. Our factory in the PRC employs
approximately 500 to 530 staff members, and workers
employed directly or indirectly approximately ranged
from 2,000 to 2,500 during the year ended 31 December
2021. Remuneration is determined by reference to their
quallifications, experiences and performances.

On behalf of the Board, | would like to extend the Board’s
appreciation to all our staff for their hard work and dedication
throughout the year ended 31 December 2021.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management
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Dr. WONG, Man Hin Raymond (“Dr. Raymond
Wong”), aged 56, son of Dr. Wong, Kin Lae Wilson, was
appointed as a non-executive Director on 18 July 2001,
re-designated as an executive Director on 19 April 2002.
Dr. Raymond Wong became a deputy executive Chairman
since 19 April 2007. On 10 December 2021, he was re-
designated as the Chairman. He is also a member of the
remuneration committee of the Company. Dr. Raymond
Wong is also a director of Raymond Electric (China) Limited
and the chairman of Raymond (Panyu Nansha) Electrical
Manufacture Appliances Development Company Limited, all
of which are subsidiaries of the Company.

Dr. Raymond Wong holds a bachelor degree in chemical
engineering, a master degree in economics and a doctorate
degree in business administration. He is a member of
American Institute of Certified Public Accountants (CPA),
a Chartered Global Management Accountant (CGMA),
a Certified Management Accountant (CMA) and holds
a certificate in financial management (CFM). He is an
independent non-executive director of Modern Healthcare
Technology Holdings Limited (formerly Modern Beauty
Salon Holdings Limited) (stock code: 0919), and Nan Nan
Resources Enterprise Limited (stock code: 1229), Tak Lee
Machinery Holdings Limited (stock code: 2102), companies
whose shares are listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange. He was an independent non-executive Director
of Zhejiang United Investment Holdings Group Limited
(stock code: 8366), a company listed on the GEM of the
Stock Exchange, until 9 March 2021. Dr. Raymond Wong
is Vice President and council member of the Hong Kong
Independent Non-Executive Director Association and an
independent manager of TWGHs Wong Fut Nam College.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

Mr. WONG, Ying Man John (“Mr. John Wong”), aged 56,
was appointed as an executive Director on 15 September
1997. He has been appointed as the Vice-Chairman on
10 December 2021. He graduated from the University of
Manchester Institute of Science & Technology in 1987 and
joined the Company in the same year. He worked as an
engineer, project coordinator, engineering manager and
then general manager for operations. He is the General
Manager and a member of the remuneration committee
of the Company. Mr. John Wong is also a director of Mass
Top Corporation, Raymond Electric (China) Limited and
Raymond (Panyu Nansha) Electrical Manufacture Appliances
Development Company Limited, all of which are subsidiaries
of the Company.

Mr. MOK, Kin Hing (“Mr. Mok”), aged 59, was alternate
Director to Dr. Wong, Kin Lae Wilson, ex-Chairman and
executive Director of the Company until 1 July 2008
when he was appointed as an executive Director with
effect from 1 July 2008. Mr. Mok joined the Company
as a production planning coordinator in 1990. He was
appointed as a production manager in 1993 and general
manager of Raymond (Panyu Nansha) Electrical Appliances
Development Co. Ltd. in 1996. Since 2005, Mr. Mok has
been appointed as a member of Chinese People’s Political
Consultative Conference in Guangzhou City, Nansha District.
Mr. Mok is also a director of Raymond Electric (China)
Limited, a subsidiary of the Company.

Dr. WONG, Kin Lae Wilson (“Dr. Wilson Wong”), aged
86, was an executive Director and the Chairman from
8 November 1984 to 10 December 2021. He was re-
designated as a non-executive Director and ceased to be the
Chairman with effect from 10 December 2021. He obtained
a Bachelor of Engineering Degree (Chemical Engineering) in
1959 from McGill University in Canada. He was a lecturer at
the Hong Kong Technical College. In 1964, Dr. Wilson Wong
founded the Company. In 1998, he was awarded a honorary
Doctor of Science from McGill University in Canada. Dr.
Wilson Wong is also a director of Mass Top Corporation and
Raymond (Panyu Nansha) Electrical Manufacture Appliances
Development Company Limited, both of which are wholly-
owned subsidiaries of the Company.
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AREEEREREBEAEHN

Mr. WONG, Ying Kit David (“Mr. David Wong”), aged
58, was appointed a non-executive Director on 26 May
2014. Prior to his appointment as non-executive Director,
he was an alternate Director of the late Dr. Wong, Kin Hang
Philip (who was a non-executive Director) from 4 July 2008
to 26 May 2014. Mr. Wong is a Registered Architect and
Authorized Person in Hong Kong. He is also a member
of the Hong Kong Institute of Architects. Mr. Wong is the
founder and executive director of Hong Kong Wine Vault.

Mr. XIONG, Zhengfeng (“Mr. Xiong”), aged 52, was
appointed as a non-executive Director on 3 January 2011.
Mr. Xiong graduated from the Department of Computer
Science of Nankai University and obtained his bachelor
degree in science in July 1992. He then obtained his master
degree in Economics from Nankai University School of
Economics in July 1995. Mr. Xiong is currently the chairman
and executive director of AKM Industrial Company Limited
(“AKM Industrial”) (stock code: 1639), a company whose
shares are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.
He is a director of Alpha Luck Industrial Limited (“Alpha
Luck”), the substantial shareholder (as defined in the Listing
Rules) of AKM Industrial since March 2001 (Alpha Luck is
AKM Industrial’s beneficial owner). Mr. Xiong also serves as
an executive director of AKM Electronics Industrial (Panyu)
Ltd. and AKM Electronic Technology (Suzhou) Company
Limited. He is the chairman of AKM Meadville Electronics
(Xiamen) Co., Ltd. since December 2019.

Mr. LO, Kwong Shun Wilson (“Mr. Lo”), aged 48, was
appointed as an independent non-executive Director on 1
January 2013. He is also the Chairman of the remuneration
committee and nomination committee of the Company, and
a member of the audit committee of the Company. He has
more than 20 years of working experience in investment
banking and advising on corporate finance. He is currently a
managing director of Caitong International Capital Company
Limited and independent non-executive director of Kingdom
Holdings Limited (stock code: 0528), a company listed on
the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. He also has many
years of experience in the field of auditing and accounting.
He is a member of the American Institute of CPA, a member
of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountant and
a member of CFA Institute. Mr. Lo obtained his bachelor
of commerce degree from University of British Columbia in
1995.

BB 685 1201445 A 26 FEE L AKNTE
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Ms. LING, Kit Sum Imma (“Ms. Ling”), aged 67, was
appointed as an independent non-executive Director on
1 June 2020. She is also the Chairlady of the audit
committee of the Company, and a member of the
remuneration committee and nomination committee of the
Company. Ms. Ling is a Certified Public Accountant and
a retired assurance partner of PricewaterhouseCoopers.
She is also an independent non-executive director of Wise
Ally International Holdings Limited (stock code: 9918), EVA
Precision Industrial Holdings Limited (stock code: 0838),
and Arta TechFin Corporation Limited (stock code: 0279),
and was an independent non-executive director of Digital
Hollywood Interactive Limited (stock code: 2022) from
November 2017 to June 2021, all of which are listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange. Ms. Ling is a council
member and the treasurer of The Education University of
Hong Kong. She serves as a member of the Appeal Board
Panel (Town Planning) and Hospital Governing Committee
of Hospital Authority. Ms. Ling is a council member of The
Hong Kong Federation of Youth Groups and an executive
committee member of the Hong Kong Youth Hostels
Association. She previously served as a board member of
the Estate Agents Authority (2015-2021) and the Employees
Compensation Assistance Fund Board (2006-2012).
Ms. Ling is a member of Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants, Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants, Chartered Professional Accountants, Canada,
and Chartered Institute of Management Accountants. She is
an accredited general mediator.

Dr. KO, Siu Fung Stephen (“Dr. Ko”), aged 59, was
appointed as an independent non-executive Director on 1
October 2021. He is also a member of the audit committee,
the remuneration committee and the nomination committee
of the Company. Dr. Ko is a member of The Hong Kong
Institute of Directors and The Hong Kong Independent Non-
Executive Director Association. He advises international
technological companies’ executives and boards on scaling
up organisations to the next levels of business performance,
connectivity, innovation, and thus sustainability. His executive
career has spanned several decades and continents at
BASF and Linde Groups in materials, Stryker Corporation in
medical technologies and Aspen Technology Incorporated in
software. Dr. Ko holds a master’s degree in computer-aided
chemical engineering from University of Waterloo in Canada,
a master degree of business administration from Institut
Européen d’Administration des Affaires in France and a
doctorate degree in business administration from The Hong
Kong Polytechnic University.
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Report of the Directors
EZERSE

The Board has the pleasure to submit the annual report
together with the audited consolidated financial statements
of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2021.

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS

The Company is incorporated and domiciled in Hong Kong
and has its registered office and principal place of business
at Rooms 1801-1813, 18th Floor, Grandtech Centre, 8 On
Ping Street, Shatin, New Territories, Hong Kong.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES & BUSINESS REVIEW

The principal activity of the Company is sale of electrical
home appliances. The principal activities and other
particulars of the subsidiaries of the Company are set out in
note 29 to the consolidated financial statements.

Further discussion and analysis of these activities as required
by Schedule 5 to the Companies Ordinance, including a
discussion of the principal risks and uncertainties facing the
Group and an indication of likely future developments in the
Group’s business, can be found in the Chairman’s Statement
and Management Discussion and Analysis set out on pages
3 to 9 of this annual report. This discussion forms part of the
directors’ report.

Review on the Group’s business Pages 3109
performance
— Analysis using financial Page 5
key performance indicators
Principal risks and uncertainties Pages 710 9
facing the Group
Future prospects of the Group Pages 7t0 9

note 26 to the
consolidated
financial statements

Financial risk management of the Group

The Company will publish its standalone Environmental,
Social and Governance Report for the year ended
31 December 2021 on the websites of the Stock
Exchange (http://www.hkexnews.hk) and the Company
(http://www.raymondfinance.com) in due course. Further
discussion on the Group's environmental policies and
performance and key relationships with employees,
customers, suppliers and others are also set out in the
Environmental, Social and Government Report.

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2021 and the state of affairs of the Group as at that date are
set out in the consolidated financial statements on pages 61
to 143.
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FIVEYEARS FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out on page 144
of this annual report.

KEY RELATIONSHIPS WITH EMPLOYEES,
CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The Company maintains good relationships with its
employees by taking all practicable measures, including
but not limited to improving, reviewing and updating its
polices on remuneration and benefits, training, occupational
health and safety, to ensure that all the staff are reasonably
remunerated.

The Company is in good relationship with its customers
and is always improving its communication mechanism with
customers to ensure all the complaints or feedback from its
customers can be informed by the Company in time and the
customers receive service of high quality.

The Company maintains long-period good cooperation with
its domestic and overseas suppliers, which are of good
reputation in the industry.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The percentages of revenues from sales of goods and
purchases attributable to the Group’s major customers and
suppliers during the financial year are as follows:

Report of the Directors
ESERE

SEMBBEE

REEBRESEMBFE XENEEABHESNEFR
F144H -

BHES FEFRHEB2EERE

ARPBEFRM—YIATHE R R BB RA RIFAE - %
FHEEEEENRRENT  BEEALEMEHH - 25 - 5
gl BERBENLZEEER  UBERMEEIEGTSSER
B -

ARRRFEEFPHRFAR  A—EROIREAEEP
RGBS - AR R BIRE R AMERE P MBRF
HRfE - YARPEESSMENR -

ARRBETERNZTERFBENENIIMIERRSRYR
WA 1ERA -

TREFRMER

AEFRZTZHEBMELHASBRFE 2 RBRELE
EEMWRAZBDLIT -

Percentage of
the Group’s total
rEEzEHBSE

Revenue from

sales of goods Purchases
HEEmABA RESEE
The largest customer BAEP 26.70% N/ATiE A
Five largest customers in aggregate ~ AAZRF A 86.78% N/ATiE A
The largest supplier BAHER N/A i 9.17%
Five largest suppliers in aggregate hRHERESE N/ATiE A 26.85%

None of directors, their associates or any shareholders of
the Company (which to the knowledge of the Directors, own
more than 5% of the Company’s issued shares) had any
interest in these major customers and suppliers during the
year.
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RECOMMENDED DIVIDEND

An interim dividend of 2 Hong Kong cents per ordinary
share was paid for the year ended 31 December 2021
(2020: 2 Hong Kong cents per ordinary share). The Board
proposed a final dividend of 4 Hong Kong cents per ordinary
share (2020: a final dividend of 4 Hong Kong cents per
ordinary share and a special dividend of 2 Hong Kong
cents per ordinary share) in respect of the year ended
31 December 2021.

ISSUED SHARES

Details of the movements in the issued shares of the
Company during the year are set out in note 23(a) to the
consolidated financial statements.

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company
during the year are set out in note 30(b) to the consolidated
financial statements.

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s shares
during the year ended 31 December 2021.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the financial year and up to the date of
this report are:

Executive Directors:

Dr. WONG, Man Hin Raymond (Chairman)
(re-designated as the Chairman with effect
from 10 December 2021)

Mr. WONG, Ying Man John (Vice-Chairman)
(appointed as the Vice-Chairman with effect
from 10 December 2021)

Mr. MOK, Kin Hing

Non-Executive Directors:

Dr. WONG, Kin Lae Wilson (re-designated from Executive
Director and ceased to be the Chairman with effect from
10 December 2021)

Mr. XIONG, Zhengfeng

Mr. WONG, Ying Kit David

Independent Non-Executive Directors:
Ms. LING, Kit Sum Imma
Mr. LO, Kwong Shun Wilson
Dr. KO, Siu Fung Stephen (appointed on 1 October 2021)
Mr. FAN, Ren Da Anthony (retired on 21 May 2021)
Mr. NG, Yiu Ming (resigned on 1 October 2021 due
to retirement)
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During the year and up to the date of this report, Dr. WONG,
Kin Lae Wilson, Dr. WONG, Man Hin Raymond, Mr. WONG,
Ying Man John and Mr. MOK, Kin Hing are also directors in
certain subsidiaries of the Company. Other directors of the
Company’s subsidiaries during the year and up to the date
of this report include Mr. LAW, Kwok Yung Anthony (resigned
on 21 April 2021) and Ms LUK, Yin Yee.

In accordance with article 95 of the Company’s articles of
association (“Articles of Association”), any Director so
appointed shall hold office only until the next following annual
general meeting of the Company and shall then be eligible
for re-election at that meeting. Dr. KO, Siu Fung Stephen will
hold office as a Director until the 2022 AGM.

In accordance with article 112 of the Articles of Association,
at each annual general meeting one-third of the Directors
for the time being or if their number is not three or a multiple
of three then the number nearest one-third shall retire from
office. Dr. WONG, Kin Lae Wilson, Mr. WONG, Ying Man
John and Mr. LO, Kwong Shun Wilson will retire from the
Board by rotation at the forthcoming 2022 AGM.

Mr. WONG, Ying Man John, Dr. WONG, Kin Lae Wilson, Mr.
LO, Kwong Shun Wilson and Dr. KO, Siu Fung Stephen shall
be eligible and will offer themselves for re-election at the
2022 AGM.

None of the Directors being proposed for re-election at
2022 AGM has a service contract with the Company or
its subsidiaries which is not determinable by the Company
within one year without payment of compensation (other
than statutory compensation).

The non-executive Directors do not have specific terms
of appointment but are subject to retirement by rotation in
accordance with the Articles of Association.

Biographical details of the Directors and the senior
management of the Group are set out on pages 10 to 13 of
this annual report.
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CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received from each of the independent
non-executive Directors an annual confirmation of
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and
considers all the independent non-executive Directors to be
independent.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2021, the interests of the Directors
in the shares of the Company, its subsidiaries and other
associated corporations (within the meaning of the Securities
and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”)) as recorded in the
register maintained by the Company under Section 352 of
the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model
Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules were
as follows:

b AL
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES AND EERAQARZBH RABBEROPER (&)
UNDERLYING SHARES (Continued)

() Interests in issued shares () BITRGOER
Number of shares
R#HE
% of total
Issued
Personal Family  Corporate Share Shares
Capacity Interests Interests Interests Options Total AFEET
5% BAER  FEEZ  iEER BhRE B ROELIE
(Note 1) (Note 6) (Note 7)
(MzE1) UGB (PH3E7)
Executive Directors
HiTEEF
Dr. WONG, Man Hin Raymond Beneficial owner 16,427,972 100,000 - - 16,627,972 3.30%
BENERL and interest of spouse (Note 2)
EaEE AREBNER (MizE2)
Mr. WONG, Ying Man John Beneficial owner 18,639,448 - - - 18,639,448 3.72%
BREE ERERA
Mr. MOK; Kin Hing Beneficial owner 2,825,000 - - - 2,825,000 0.56%
SREgE ERERA
Non-Executive Directors
FHTEF
Dr. WONG, Kin Lae Wilson Interest of spouse & Interest - 150,000 107,198,981 - 107,348,981 21.42%
B flET of a controlled corporation (Note 3) (Note 4)
RENER IR EH RN ER (MzE3) (Mizt4)
Mr. XIONG, Zhengfeng Beneficial owner - - - 1,200,000 1,200,000 0.24%
BRIFEEE ERERA
Mr. WONG, Ying Kit David Beneficial owner 1,350,000 - - - 1,350,000 0.27%
BHRERE ERERA (Note 5)
GET)
Independent Non-Executive Directors
BUFHTEE
Mr. LO, Kwong Shun Wilson Beneficial owner 300,000 - - - 300,000 0.06%
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES (Continued)

()

Notes:

(1)

Interests in issued shares (Continued)

The shares are registered under the names of the Directors
who are the beneficial shareholders.

Ms. WONG, Hui Ting Zaneta, spouse of Dr. WONG, Man
Hin Raymond, is the beneficial owner.

Ms. SUN, Kwing Hai Amelia, spouse of Dr. WONG, Kin Lae
Wilson, is the beneficial shareholder.

Dr. WONG, Kin Lae Wilson is the beneficial shareholder of
91.7% of the issued shares of Diamond-Harvest Limited,
which owned 107,198,981 shares in the Company as at 31
December 2021.

Mr. WONG, Ying Kit David is one of the executors of the
estate of the late Dr. WONG, Kin Hang Philip. He has
reported that he has interest in the 40,205,688 shares of
the Company held by the corporations controlled by the
late Dr. WONG, Kin Hang Philip and his spouse.

Share options are granted to the Directors under the
Share Option Scheme (the “Scheme”) approved by the
shareholders at the extraordinary general meeting on 6
June 2003, details of which are set out in the section
headed “Share Option Scheme” below. The Scheme was
terminated on 5 June 2013.

The percentage was compiled based on the total number
of issued shares of the Company (i.e. 501,199,860 ordinary
shares) as at 31 December 2021.

All the interests disclosed under this section represent long
positions in the shares.

EERA AT RO REBERD R (@)

RTRAD R ()

BRAERNAET Z2EEHRZERMNOERRE -

EXBEBLZREBEMBELIAZFENNEREIR -

BEMNBLZRBFNELIRZERNNERLIR -

R2021 612 A31 8+ & & 7 1§ 4 & B 3% A Diamond-
Harvest Limited (34 107,198,981 A% ) 91.7% I 2 3 17A%

HRGEACOHERSHLEBNTAZ — - BN
M5 H 40,205,688 IR B i & ez T 1+ R E BB GBI A F]
2B o

REARRRN2003F6 A6 HRITZRRIFRAS L&
2B ((BRETE)  E2ERTRERE - F15
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES (Continued)

(ii)

Apart from as disclosed under the section headed “Share
Option Scheme” below, none of the Directors or any of
their spouses or children under eighteen years of age
has interests or short positions in the shares, underlying
shares or debentures of the Company, or any of its holding
Company, subsidiaries or other associated corporations, as
recorded in the register required to be kept under section
352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

Interests in underlying shares

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Other than the share option schemes of the Company as
disclosed, no equity-linked agreements that will or may result
in the Company issuing shares or that require the Company
to enter into any agreements that will or may result in the
Company issuing shares were entered into by the Company
during the year ended 31 December 2021 or subsisted at
the end of the year ended 31 December 2021.

Particulars of the share option schemes are set out in note
22 to the consolidated financial statements and the following
paragraphs.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Share options are granted to the Directors, employees
and other eligible participants specified under the Scheme
approved by shareholders of the Company at the
extraordinary general meeting on 6 June 2003. Details of the
Scheme are as follows:

Purpose To give eligible participants incentives or
rewards for their contribution or potential

contribution to the Group

Participants (i

=

Directors, employees of any member
of the Group or any controlling
shareholder of the Company
(“Controlling Shareholder”) or any
company controlled by a Controlling
Shareholder,

(i Holder of any securities issued
by any member of the Group or
any Controlling Shareholder of the
Company or any company controlled
by a Controlling Shareholder,

(iii) (@) any business or joint venture
partner, contractor, agent or
representative of,

(b) any supplier of goods or
services to, or

(c) any customer or distributor of
goods or services of,

Any member of the Group or any Controlling
Shareholder or a company controlled by a
Controlling Shareholder;

and for the purpose of the Scheme, shall
include any company controlled by one or
more persons belonging to any of the above
classes of persons
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

Total number of
ordinary shares
available for issue

and the percentage
of the issued share

capital that it
represents as at
the date of this
annual report

Maximum entitlement

of each participant

Period within which
the securities must
be taken up under
an option

Minimum period for
which an option

must be held before

it can be exercised

Amount payable on
acceptance of
the option

Period within which
payments must

be made

Basis of determining
the exercise price

The remaining life of
the Scheme

MREXBRAF

1,450,000 ordinary shares and
0.29% of the issued share capital

1% of the aggregate number of
ordinary shares in issue in any
12-month period up to the date of
grant

Within a maximum period of 10
years commencing from the date
of grant of such options

Not applicable

HK$1.00 for each lot of share
options granted

21 days from the date of the offer

The higher of (i) the closing price
of the shares on the offer date or
(i) the average closing price of
the shares for the 5 trading days
immediately preceding the offer
of the option, provided that the
exercise price is not less than the
nominal value of the share

The Scheme shall remain in force
until 5 June 2013 unless otherwise
terminated in accordance with the
terms of the Scheme
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

As at 31 December 2021, the Directors, employees and
other participants had the following interests in options to
subscribe for shares of the Company (market value per
share at 31 December 2021 was HK$1.00) which were
granted for a consideration of HK$1 for each lot of options
under the Scheme. The options are unlisted. Each option
gives the holder the right to subscribe for one ordinary share

of the Company.

No. of share options

BT E (|
R2021F 12 A31H EF - EEEMZEATRER

HEPERAT S

ZE BRI AE TR IR A R 2 AT
BERERERB1LEL  AIRBAQRRG (R20214F
12431 HERMEABE1.007T) - BARELE&E -
DI T B AEFRE—IRA AR Z L@ -

EREHE
Weighted
average
closing
Market price
value immediately
per share  before the
Held at 1 Granted Lapsed  Exercised Outstanding Period atdate  date of
January during during during atthe during which  Exercise of grant  exercise
2021 the year the year the year year end options are price per  of options* 25
R2021 RER RER RER  RERM  Date exercisable share  RERE TEBH
118 itz ez Bz AfTEZ  granted BRETTR R RHAHz ZAKME
&6 BREZE  BREHE  BREME  EREHE SuAE ZHE ke  SHROE* THYHE
HKS HKS HKS
A i ik
Directors
£
Executive Directors:
HiTEE:
Mr, WONG, Ying Man John 3,000,000 - - (3,000,000 - 20July2012 20 July 201210 0690 0.690 1110
ERQEE 19 uly 2022
1287208 2012874208%
02%7F198
Mr. MOK; Kin Hing 3,000,000 - - (3,000,000 - 20July2012 20 July 201210 0690 0.690 1.280
Blpft 19.July 2022
127208 2012874208%
02%7F198
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

No. of share options

BREHE

BRESTE (@)

Report of the Directors
ESERE

Weighted

average

closing

Market price
value immediately
per share  before the

Held at 1 Granted Lapsed  Exercised Period atdate  dateof
January during during during during which  Exercise of grant  exercise
2021 the year the year the year options are price per  of options* 2%
R2021% RER RER RER exercisable share  WERE FAH
1A1E RitZ 2 [ v BRETTR R RUASz ZAKME
286 BREHR  BREHE  BREHE ZHE ke  SHROE* THYHE
HKS HKS HKS
A i ik
Non-Executive Directors:
FHTEE
Mr. XIONG, Zhengfeng 1,200,000 - - - 20 July 20120 0690 0.690 -
REgTE 19 July 2022
N1FTRNEE
02%F7R198
Employees 950,000 - - (700,000) 20 July 20120 0690 0.690 1.185
k& 19 uly 2022
127208 2012874208%
0275198
8,150,000 - - (6,700,000
Notes:

The options granted to the Directors are registered under the names
of the Directors who are the beneficial owners.

*

Being the weighted average closing price of the Company’s
ordinary shares immediately before the dates on which the
options were granted or exercised (as the case may be).

Information on the accounting policy for the options granted
and the weighted average value per option is provided
in note 4(p) and note 22 to the consolidated financial
statements respectively.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the year ended
31 December 2021 was the Company, or any of its holding
company, subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries a party to any
arrangement to enable the Directors to acquire benefits by
means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the
Company or any other body corporate.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES
As at 31 December 2021, according to the register of

members kept by the Company pursuant to section 336 of
the SFO and so far as is known to, or can be ascertained

BRESTE (@)

B EXEHES  REZE2021 512 A31 B IEFERNEM
BEfE - AR HEMIZERAR - WEBARSKRERNE A
A IEAMREEAEE AR R ST HE BBk E
FEm s FAREBH @S2 T2 T8 R -

FTERRREADFZRGREERD 2 Exs

202112 A31 B » AR AR IEE FH 60 5 336 15 1R
EHFEZERREZRLM  ESEELAIEERZFT M E
R TIAL/EE(TBIEES)NARAIRN REERK

after reasonable enquiry by the Directors, the following A HEBRIEEFKHIZE XV ERE 2 & 39 B AR AN T
persons/entities, other than a Director, had an interest in the #8582 # 2 ¢
shares and underlying shares of the Company which would
fall to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO:
Number of shares
RipEE
% of total
issued
Registered Corporate Family Total shares
Capacity shareholders interests interest BIEER BETRT
54 BRTRR EEER FERRE ROKEYHE ROESZE
(Note 5)
(H¥5E5)
Substantial shareholders
TERR
Ms. SUN, Kwing Hai Amelia Beneficial owner & 150,000 107,198,981 - 107,348,981 21.42%
FELt Interest of spouse (Note 1)
EnfA AREENER (F5E1)
Diamond-Harvest Limited Beneficial owner 107,198,981 - - 107,198,981 21.39%
BRBEAA (Note 1)
(Fgsx1)
Alpha Luck Industrial Limited Beneficial owner 53,080,800 - - 53,080,800 10.59%
ZHEEFERAA BRBEAA (Note 2)
(Fisx2)
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS IN  FERRRARQA T 2R H REBER M 2 =

SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES (Continued) (%)
Number of shares
ROBE
% of total
issued
Registered Corporate Family Total shares
Capacity shareholders interests interest BIEER BRTRT
54 BRERE EEER 5BER RAREYUE R ED =
(Note 5)
(KfzEs)
China North Industries Corp. Interest of controlled - 53,080,800 - 53,080,800 10.59%
FEE T TEARAA corporation (Note 2)
Nl ol (Fi5x2)
China North Industries Group Interest of controlled - 53,080,800 - 53,080,800 10.59%
Corporation Ltd. corporations (Note 2)
FHEETXEEER AR iNee 0= ol (Fi5x2)
China South Industries Group Interest of controlled - 53,080,800 - 53,080,800 10.59%
Corporation corporations (Note 2)
FHEERGEERRAA iNee 0= ol (Fi5x2)
Dr. WONG, Kin Hang Philip Interest of controlled - 40,205,688 - 40,205,688 8.02%
(deceased) corporations (Note 3)
En T ELT (FH) iNee 0= ol (F35E3)
Mrs. WONG CHENG, Interest of controlled - 40,205,688 - 40,205,688 8.02%
Kwok Cheung Gertude corporations (Note 3)
HEEEZL iNee 0= ol (F35E3)
Ho Kit Man Inc. Beneficial owner 40,119,688 - - 40,119,688 8.00%
ERBEAA (Note 3)
GER)
Mr. David Michael WEBB Beneficial owner 13,137,345 21,477,655 - 34,615,000 6.91%
(“Mr. WEBB") & interest of a (Note 4)
([WEBB %)) controlled corporation (FizE4)

EaBBEAR
REH S
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES (Continued)

Notes:

1)

107,198,981 shares of the Company were held through
Diamond-Harvest Limited. Ms. SUN, Kwing Hai Amelia
and her spouse, Dr. WONG, Kin Lae Wilson hold 8.3% and
91.7% of the issued shares of Diamond-Harvest Limited,
respectively.

Alpha Luck Industrial Company Limited is wholly and
beneficially owned by China North Industries Corp. China
North Industries Corp. is owned as to 37.54% by China
South Industries Group Corporation and 56.70% owned by
China North Industries Group Corporation Ltd.. The above
companies are wholly owned by BB BEEEEIEE S
@. Therefore, China North Industries Group Corporation
Ltd, China South Industries Group Corporation, China North
Industries Corp and Bl BI B & EEHEZ 8 € deemed to
be interested in the 53,080,800 shares held by Alpha Luck
Industrial Company Limited.

Among these shares, 40,119,668 shares of the Company
were held through Ho Kit Man Inc. and 86,000 shares of
the Company held through Sunnydale Enterprises Holdings
Ltd.. These two companies were 50% controlled by the
late Dr. WONG, Kin Hang Philip (“the late Dr. WONG”) and
his spouse, Mrs. WONG CHENG, Kwok Cheung Gertude
(“Mrs. WONG”), respectively. The executors of the estate
of the late Dr. WONG are Mrs. WONG and Mr. WONG, Ying
Kit David. Mrs. WONG and Mr. WONG, Ying Kit David have
each reported that they have interest in the shares of the
late Dr. WONG. In addition, Mr. WONG, Ying Kit David has
reported to have personal interests in 1,350,000 shares of
the Company.

The number of shares disclosed was based on the latest
disclosure of interest form filed on 5 August 2020 (the date
of relevant event be 31 July 2020) received from Mr. WEBB.
According to the filed form, Mr. WEBB beneficially owned
18,137,345 shares of the Company and 21,477,655 shares
of the Company were held through Preferable Situation
Assets Limited, a company wholly-owned by Mr. WEBB.

The percentage was compiled based on the total number
of issued shares of the Company (i.e. 501,199,860 ordinary
shares) as at 31 December 2021.

All the interests disclosed under this section represent long
positions in the shares of the Company.

FTERRREAQDF 2RO REERD 2 Es

()
W

Q)

®)

Diamond-Harvest Limited# 4 K2 &]107,198,981 %17 ©
FMfEL R EREEEFIE LS BiEAE Diamond-Harvest
Limited 2 8.3% % 91.7% Z B0 #E=S ©

ZHEEARAFAPEIL T IEERAFZEERHE
B-FBIEATEERAAATHEREHEEEER
RAIRFEERTESEERARADFIFHE3I7.54% K
56.70% ° A F ARHBEKRBEEEEETREZE €2 4R
e A PEEETIXEEMAERAR - PREHEEESE
EERAR - AEL A TEARABDLREKREEGEE
ERZESWRAMELNEXBRAFNBFANAAR
53,080,800 JEA% 1) 2 #E 25 o

ZEROEBRERELEL((ERERL ) RER
BEEEEL LT ([EAK]) EHZ Ho Kit Man Inc. (3FFB 7
A 740,119,668 P17 ) & Sunnydale Enterprises Holdings
Ltd (35 B A2 86,000 kM%) FE - S BIHEEM
FAR50% Kk MNER - EMEBLANEBRITAZREAKR
MERGELEE - EAARERGEREESBBAMMMEAR
EREEL 2 RMER  UARFRELEEBNEFEAR
AA11,350,000 &A% 2 B A o

TR 2R E TR #E WEBB £ £ 74 2020F 8 A5 H (18
S A A202067 A1 B ) RS RHWEERE
BIRE - RIBIRESHKRE WEBBEAEERHEE AR T
13,137,345 Bk 17 » AN A R 21,477,655 % A% 17 8 3B WEBB
S 4 2 B 75 B Preferable Situation Assets Limited 378 ©
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INDEMNITY OF DIRECTORS

A permitted indemnity provision (as defined in section 469
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance) for the benefit of
the directors of the Company is currently in force and was
in force throughout this year. The Company has purchased
suitable insurances for the Directors with respect to their
possible legal proceedings.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENT OR CONTRACTS

Except for the transactions disclosed in note 27(b) to
the consolidated financial statements, no transaction,
arrangement or contract of significance subsisted during
or at the end of the year in which the Director or an entity
connected with the Director is or was materially interested,
either directly or indirectly during the year ended 31
December 2021.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN THE BUSINESS
COMPETING WITH THE COMPANY

The Directors have no interest in the business that is
competing with the Company during the year.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES
OR DEBENTURES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries was a
party to any arrangements to enable the Directors to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or
debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate at
any time during the year ended 31 December 2021.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the
Articles of Association and there was no restriction against
such rights under the laws of Hong Kong, which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis
to its existing shareholders.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No substantial contracts concerning the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part of the
business of the Group were entered into or existed during
the year.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Significant related party transactions entered into by the
Group during the year ended 31 December 2021, which
do not constitute connected transactions under the Listing
Rules are disclosed in note 27(b) to the consolidated
financial statements.

Save as disclosed above, there is no related party
transaction set out in note 27(b) to the consolidated financial
statements fall into the category of connected transactions
or continuing connected transactions under the Listing
Rules. The Company has complied with the requirements
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules with respect to the
connected transaction.

RETIREMENT SCHEMES

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund scheme
which covers all of the Group’s employees. Particulars of
these retirement schemes are set out in note 20 to the
consolidated financial statements.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

During the year, the Group did not make any charitable
donation.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES

During the year ended 31 December 2021, neither the
Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available and within
the knowledge of the Directors, as at the date of this annual
report, the Company has maintained the prescribed public
float under the Listing Rules.
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AUDITORS

Messrs. Baker Tilly Hong Kong Ltd. has retired as the
auditors of the Company upon expiration of its term of office
at the close of the annual general meeting of the Company
held on 22 May 2020. RSM Hong Kong (“RSM”) has been
appointed as the auditors of the Company with effect from
1 June 2020. Save as disclosed above, there have been no
other changes of auditors in the past three years.

The consolidated financial statement’s have been audited by
RSM who retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-
appointment. A resolution for the re-appointment of RSM will

be proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

By Order of the Board

WONG, Man Hin Raymond
Chairman

Hong Kong, 25 March 2022
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Corporate Governance Report
ERERES

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company puts great emphasis on corporate
governance by reviewing and strengthening corporate
governance measures from time to time. The Board believes
that shareholders can derive maximum benefits from good
corporate governance.

Throughout the year ended 31 December 2021, the
Company was in compliance with the Corporate
Governance Code (version up to 31 December 2021) (the
“CG Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules,
with an exception of a deviation from code provision A.4.1
and A.4.3 of the CG Code in respect of the service term of
independent non-executive directors.

Under code provision A.4.1 of the CG Code (which has
been re-numbered as code provision B.2.2 of the CG Code
since 1 January 2022), non-executive directors should be
appointed for a specific term and subject to re-election.

None of the existing non-executive directors (including
INEDs) of the Company is appointed for a specific term.
This constitutes a deviation from code provision A.4.1 of the
CG Code. However, all of them are subject to retirement by
rotation and re-election at the annual general meeting of the
Company in accordance with the provisions of the Articles of
Association.

Under code provision A.4.3 of the CG Code (which has
been re-numbered as code provision B.2.3 of the CG Code
since 1 January 2022), independent non-executive directors
who serve more than 9 years could be relevant to the
determination of a non-executive director’s independence.
If an independent non-executive director serves more
than 9 years, his further appointment should be subject
to a separate resolution to be approved by shareholders.
The papers to shareholders accompanying that resolution
should include the reasons why the board believes he is
still independent and should be re-elected. During FY2021,
Mr. NG, Yiu Ming and Mr. FAN, Ren Da Anthony, the INEDs
who have served the Group for more than 9 years, have
retired from the positions of INEDs.
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As at the date of this report, Mr. LO, Kwong Shun Wilson is
the INED who has served the Group for more than 9 years.
Please refer to the circular dated 26 April 2022 for further
details.

Under code provision E.1.2 of the CG Code (which has been
renumbered as F.2.2 of the CG Code since 1 January 2022),
the chairman of the board shall attend the annual general
meeting. Due to the outbreak of COVID-19, Dr. WONG, Kin
Lae Wilson who was the Chairman of the Board, was unable
to attend the annual general meeting of the Company held
on 21 May 2021 (“2021 AGM”). The 2021 AGM was chaired
by Dr. WONG, Man Hin Raymond who was executive
Director and deputy executive Chairman.

In view of the above, the Company considers that sufficient
measures have been taken to ensure that the standard of
the Company’s corporate governance practices is not lower
than those required in the CG Code.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board comprises three executive Directors, three non-
executive Directors, and three independent non-executive
Directors listed as follows:

Executive Directors:

Dr. WONG, Man Hin Raymond (Chairman)
(re-designated as the Chairman with effect
from 10 December 2021)

Mr. WONG, Ying Man John (Vice-Chairman)
(appointed as the Vice-Chairman with effect
from 10 December 2021)

Mr. MOK, Kin Hing

Non-Executive Directors:

Dr. WONG, Kin Lae Wilson (re-designated from
Executive Director and ceased to be the Chairman with
effect from 10 December 2021)

Mr. XIONG, Zhengfeng

Mr. WONG, Ying Kit David
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Independent Non-Executive Directors:

Ms. LING, Kit Sum Imma

Mr. LO, Kwong Shun Wilson

Dr. KO, Siu Fung Stephen (appointed on 1 October 2021)
Mr. FAN, Ren Da Anthony (retired on 21 May 2021)

Mr. NG, Yiu Ming (resigned on 1 October 2021)

The appointment of Directors is not fixed for a specified
term, but they are subject to the retirement and re-
election requirements at every annual general meeting
pursuant to the Articles of Association. Each of the non-
executive Directors (including the INEDs) is appointed for an
unspecified term.

All INEDs have complied with the requirements of the
Listing Rules and have submitted to the Company annual
confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules. The Board has assessed their independence
and confirms that all of them are independent parties as
defined in the Listing Rules. Mr. FAN, Ren Da Anthony was
appointed on 12 December 1994 and resigned on 21 May
2021; Mr. NG Yiu Ming was appointed on 2 July 2004 and
resigned on 1 October 2021; Mr. LO, Kwong Shun Wilson
was appointed on 1 January 2013, Ms. LING, Kit Sum
Imma was appointed on 1 June 2020 and Dr. KO, Siu Fung
Stephen was appointed on 1 October 2021.

The family relationship among the Directors is summarized
as follows:

Dr. WONG, Kin Lae Wilson is the father of Dr. WONG, Man
Hin Raymond and uncle of Mr. WONG, Ying Man John and
Mr. WONG, Ying Kit David.

Mr. WONG, Ying Man John and Mr. WONG, Ying Kit David
are brothers and they are cousins of Dr. WONG, Man Hin
Raymond.

The Directors have conducted a review of the effectiveness
of the system of internal control of the Company and its
subsidiaries.
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The Board convenes at least four regular meetings each
year, and will convene further meetings when necessary.
When a regular Board meeting is convened, the Board
documents will be sent to the Directors for review before
the meeting pursuant to the Listing Rules and the CG Code
so that the Directors can keep abreast of the information
to perform their duties and responsibilities. The Board
convened 5 meetings in 2021.
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ExgEF L A4 EHE®R  TEEEREREHS
FoUTARTHESSRR EFeXHIREBELTR
AIRGEEATANATREZNEARTESEN  F&
ERHEREEEN  UNERTEBEMNET -EEER
2021 FHABFS NG o

The attendance of directors is as follows: EFHEBEREOT :
No. of Board No. of general
meetings attended/ meetings attended/
eligible to attend eligible to attend
LEEZEEE Attendance LERRAE Attendance
Name of Directors RE/RER Rate RY/HEER Rate
22 LEEEEEE Y L% HERRAERE HiE%
Executive Directors HITEE
Dr. WONG, Man Hin Raymond BENEEL 5/5 100% 11 100%
(Chairman) (#)
Mr. WONG, Ying Man John BREEE 5/5 100% 11 100%
Mr. MOK; Kin Hing RRELE 5/5 100% 11 100%
Non-Executive Directors FHiTEE
Dr. WONG, Kin Lae Wison (Note 1)~ &# A&+ (M3E1) 115 20% 0/1 0%
Mr. XIONG, Zhengfeng (Note 2) FRIEE LA (7 2) 45 80% 0/1 0%
Mr. WONG, Ying Kit David BRMAE 5/5 100% 11 100%
Independent Non-Executive Directors BV HE772%
Ms. LING, Kit Sum Imma 3y iy s 5/5 100% 11 100%
Mr. LO, Kwong Shun Wilson EREELE 5/5 100% 11 100%
Dr. KO, Siu Fung Stephen BlEEL 2/2 100% 0/0 N/ANEF
(appointed on 1 October 2021) (R2021E10 A1 BEZR()
Mr. FAN, Ren Da Anthony BLERAE 2/2 100% 01 0%
(retired on 21 May 2021) (R2021F5 B 21 BEF)
Mr. NG, Yiu Ming AL 33 100% 11 100%
(resigned on 1 October 2021) (R2021E10 A1 BEHT)
NEEBXARAR —T - —F5%H
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Notes:

1. Dr. WONG, Kin Lae Wilson had been re-designated as a
non-executive Director from Chairman and an executive
Director with effect from 10 December 2021. Due to the
outbreak of COVID-19, Dr. WONG, Kin Lae Wilson, who
was the Chairman of the Board, was unable to attend the
annual general meeting of the Company held on 21 May
2021 (“2021 AGM”).

2. Due to the outbreak of COVID-19, Mr. XIONG, Zhengfeng
was unable to attend the 2021 AGM but the Company
is of the view that he is able to develop a balanced
understanding of the views of shareholders by other means
of communication.

The remuneration of Directors is determined with reference
to their functions and responsibilities in the Company,
the performance of the Company and the current
market conditions. No Director is allowed to participate
in determining his own remuneration. The remuneration
received by Directors from the Company during FY2021 is
set out in note 10 of the consolidated financial statements.
The Board has set up an independent professional
consulting procedure and upon reasonable request,
Directors are able to seek independent professional advice
in appropriate circumstances at the Company’s expenses.

Apart from regular Board meetings, the Chairman also held
meeting with the INEDs without presence of other Directors
during FY2021.
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PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT OF
DIRECTORS

Pursuant to the CG Code, all Directors should participate in
continuous professional development to develop and refresh
their knowledge and skills. All the Directors have participated
in continuous professional development, e.g. updated
Listing Rules training, to develop and refresh their knowledge
and skills provided by the Group in FY2021. All Directors
were also provided with monthly updates on the Group’s
performance, position and prospects. All Directors have
provided the records of training they received in FY2021
to the Company. Details of the continuous professional
development participated by the Directors for FY2021 are
set out below:
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EENEXER

REBECEERTA  MEEFR2EBEREER  UH
RN EHMEMBNIGEE - IAEESHE2021 MBFEH2 A
SENFEEHER - PIAEHR EHRRNE - ABRNEH
SERHOMBMKEE - ERMAEERHTEHEEZE
B BUANSNEBAEH - MEEFHERAREREM
BER 2021 RFEEZNE IR - EEMN 2021 FKF
E2ENBEEXERFBHINNOT

Attending Reading
Director Name training sessions material
EEEE SHFHE MEER
Executive Directors HITEE
Dr. WONG, Man Hin Raymond (Chairman) =& XS+ (F/E) v v
Mr. WONG, Ying Man John mEGESE v/ v
Mr. MOK, Kin Hing RigmsfEsE v/ v
Non-Executive Directors I ITEE
Dr. WONG, Kin Lae Wilson =AML v/ v
(re-designated from Executive Director (202112 A10H#E
and ceased to be the Chairman R TESERATTTE
with effect from 10 December 2021) ErESeERE)
Mr. XIONG, Zhengfeng RRIFIE SR v/ v
Mr. WONG, Ying Kit David mHEGEEE v/ v
Independent Non-Executive Directors HTIHTESE
Ms. LING, Kit Sum Imma BRI v v
Mr. LO, Kwong Shun Wilson EEERE v v/
Dr. KO, Siu Fung Stephen S gt v v
(appointed on 1 October 2021) (7202110 A1 HEZT)
Mr. FAN, Ren Da Anthony BlESAE v v
(retired on 21 May 2021) (B 202145 521 BRE)
Mr. NG, Yiu Ming LB EE v/ v/

(resigned on 1 October 2021)

MREEBRAF T —FF%H

(72021410 A 1 BEHE)
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ROLES OF THE BOARD AND MANAGEMENT

The Board is principally responsible for establishing the
development direction of the Group, formulating targets and
business development plans, approving major agreements
and matters, and monitoring the performances of senior
management. It is also responsible for corporate governance
with a view to enhance shareholders’ value. Led by the
three executive Directors, the management is responsible
for implementing the strategies and plans developed by the
Board.

The Company has developed a schedule of matters
reserved to the Board for decisions and has separately
identified those functions reserved to the Board. The Board
will review those arrangements on a regular basis to ensure
that the arrangements meet the needs of the Company.

ROLES AND DUTIES OF CHAIRMAN AND
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The Chairman and the chief executive officer have different
roles. The Chairman is responsible for the operation of
the Board and the chief executive officer is responsible
for managing the operations of the Group. Their functions
have been clearly divided to ensure a balanced distribution
of power and no authority will concentrate on a single
individual.

Dr. WONG, Man Hin Raymond, the Chairman of the Board,
an executive Director and chief financial officer, is principally
responsible for leading the Board and ensures the Board
to act in the best interests of the Company. The Chairman
ensures that the Board to operate effectively and perform
its proper duties and discuss all important and proper
matters in a timely manner. The Chairman is responsible
for convening Board meetings, consulting, determining and
approving the agenda of each Board meeting, and ensuring
that Directors are provided sufficient information on current
matters in a timely manner. The Chairman oversees the
structure, number of members and composition of the Board
and makes recommendations to the Board and the relevant
committees on any intended changes. The Chairman is also
responsible for ensuring that the Company formulates good
corporate governance practice and procedure.
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In addition, Dr. Raymond Wong is responsible for the Group’s
financial reporting, internal control, material procurement
and control, logistics, customs, taxes and legal matters
and compliance, coordinating close cooperation among
all departments, uniting efforts of staff and encouraging
the initiative of staff so as to ensure smooth and effective
operation of the Company’s operations and systems.

Mr. WONG, Ying Man John, the Vice-Chairman, an executive
Director and chief executive officer, is principally responsible
for the daily operation and management of the Group’s
overall operations and implementing the Board’s operating
strategy and policy and delegating tasks to all departments
for implementation so as to realize the Board’s objectives
and decisions. In addition, he is also responsible for research
& development, production, quality assurance and new
product innovations, coordinating close cooperation among
all departments, uniting efforts of staff and encouraging
the initiative of staff so as to ensure smooth and effective
operation of the Company’s operations and systems.

Mr. MOK, Kin Hing, an executive Director and chief operating
officer, is principally responsible for the daily operation
and management of the Group’s overall operations and
implementing the Board’s operating strategy and policy and
delegating tasks to all departments for implementation so as
to realize the Board’s objectives and decisions. In addition,
he is also responsible for supervising all personnel issues
at our Nansha production facilities, all capital equipments
installation and disposal, and overseeing all employee
champions programs to optimize costs and make sure our
facilities are in full compliance with local, international and
environment laws and standards.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE

The Company’s corporate governance structure includes
the Board and three committees under the Board, namely
audit committee, remuneration committee and nomination
committee. The Board stipulates the terms of reference for
all committees in writing and specifies clearly the power and
responsibilities of the committees.

MREEBRAF T —FF%H
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The Board is also collectively responsible for performing the
corporate governance duties as set out in the CG Code,
which include:

(i) developing and reviewing the Company’s policies
and practices on corporate governance;

(ii) reviewing and monitoring the training and continuous
professional development of directors and senior
management;

(iii) reviewing and monitoring the Company’s policies and

practices on compliance with legal and regulatory

requirements;

(iv) developing, reviewing and monitoring the code of

conduct applicable to employees and directors; and

reviewing the Company’s compliance with the CG
Code and disclosure in the Corporate Governance
Report.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee of the Company (the “Audit
Committee”) currently comprises three INEDs, at least
one of them have appropriate professional qualifications
or accounting or related financial management expertise,
namely Ms. LING, Kit Sum Imma (chairlady), Mr. LO, Kwong
Shun Wilson and Dr. KO, Siu Fung Stephen. The Audit
Committee was established with specific written terms of
reference, mainly responsible for reviewing the consolidated
financial statements and annual and interim reports and
accounts of the Company, submitting relevant reports and
recommendations to the Board, reviewing the Company’s
financial controls, internal control and risk management
systems and making recommendations on the appointment
and remuneration of the auditors of the Company and any
matters related to the termination of appointment. The
chairlady of the Audit Committee and is responsible for
reporting the results and recommendations of the Audit
Committee to the Board after each meeting.
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In 2021, the Audit Committee convened 4 meetings.
Members of the audit committee and their attendance are
as follows:
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R20215F  BEREZEGHAM4REH - ERLEGNKE
REHFEERDT

No. of meetings

attended/
eligible to attend Attendance
Name of Members HEEBRE Rate
REEE SERHESRRE &
Ms. LING, Kit Sum Imma ERLT L 4/4 100%
Mr. LO, Kwong Shun Wilson BEETE 4/4 100%
Dr. KO, Siu Fung Stephen [SES Al 1/1 100%
(appointed on 1 October 2021) (72202110 B 1 BEZEE)
Mr. FAN, Ren Da Anthony SBCESAE 2/2 100%
(ceased on 21 May 2021) (7202145 21 BARBHEE)
Mr. NG, Yiu Ming HBRA A 3/3 100%

(resigned on 1 October 2021)

Tasks undertaken by the Audit Committee during the year
included reviewing the 2020 audited consolidated financial
statements and the annual results announcement, reviewing
the interim report for the six months ended 30 June 2021
and the interim results announcement, reviewing the
quarterly results and quarterly results announcements for
FY2021, considering the accounting standards adopted,
reviewing the explanatory letter about audit submitted by
the auditors to the management and the response of the
management, the basis of opinion and qualified opinion (if
any) made by the auditors in their report.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The remuneration committee of the Company (the
“Remuneration Committee”) currently comprises three
INEDs, namely Mr. LO, Kwong Shun Wilson (chairman), Ms.
LING, Kit Sum Imma and Dr. KO, Siu Fung Stephen and two
executive Directors, namely Dr. WONG, Man Hin Raymond
and Mr. WONG, Ying Man John. The Remuneration
Committee was established with specific written terms of
reference, principally responsible for reviewing and approving
remuneration plans for Directors and senior management,
determining the remuneration package of executive
Directors and senior management, including benefits,
pension interests and the payment of compensation. The
Remuneration Committee should consider factors such as
salaries paid by comparable companies, time commitment
and responsibilities of the Directors, employment conditions
elsewhere in the Group and desirability of performance-
based remuneration. The chairman of the Remuneration
Committee is responsible for reporting the meeting results
and recommendations of the Remuneration Committee to
the Board after each meeting.

The Remuneration Committee has adopted the
model whereby the Remuneration Committee makes
recommendation to the Board on the remuneration
packages of executive Directors and senior management
and to make recommendation to the Board on the
remuneration of non-executive Directors and INEDs.
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In 2021, the Remuneration Committee convened 2
meetings. Members of the Remuneration Committee and
their attendance are as follows:
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ERERME
#2021%  FMEREBRIT2NEH - HFMEREMA

RELFEBRAT

No. of meetings

attended/
eligible to attend Attendance
Name of Members HEEBRE Rate
REAHE SERHESRRE &
Mr. LO, Kwong Shun Wilson (Chairman) — BE(E5%% (F/E) 2/2 100%
Ms. LING, Kit Sum Imma Rt 2/2 100%
Dr. WONG, Man Hin Raymond EXAEELT 2/2 100%
Mr. WONG, Ying Man John BRI E 2/2 100%
Dr. KO, Siu Fung Stephen [SES Al 1/1 100%
(appointed on 1 October 2021) (72202110 B 1 BEZEE)
Mr. FAN, Ren Da Anthony SBCESAE 1/1 100%
(ceased on 21 May 2021) (7202145 21 BARBHEE)
Mr. NG, Yiu Ming HBRA A 1/1 100%

(resigned on 1 October 2021)

Tasks undertaken by the Remuneration Committee
during the year included reviewing the remuneration
structure, remuneration policy and bonus system of the
Group, assessing performance of executive Directors,
considering the salary adjustment for the year and
making recommendations to the Board and considering
remuneration of newly appointed Directors. The
Remuneration Committee also ensures that no Director
or senior management member determines his own
remuneration.

The remuneration policy of the Group is to determine the
remuneration of executive Directors and senior management
based on their responsibilities, qualifications and working
performance. No Director or any of his associates is
involved in deciding his own remuneration. Details of the
remuneration of directors for the year ended 31 December
2021 are set out in note 10 to the consolidated financial
statements. Details of the five highest paid individual in the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2021 are set out in
note 11 to the consolidated financial statements.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme as an
incentive to the Directors, employees and other eligible
participants. Details of the share option scheme are set out
in the section headed “Share Option Scheme”.

MREEBRAF T —FF%H

(R 2021410 A1 BEHE)

FMZEeESFEMBO TEEERIASENHHR
B HMBR  RERERERAFENHERES - ¥
BUTEERE  YAEEGRIES  UEEHEIHE
EHNFM - FHNEZESAURRRAESTISRERARS
TEEEAT O

REBRNHFHBREARTES RS REEAEBRETLN
BE BEERIERBRMETEMS - RBEFHEME
BATLTFRTEARGNNE - H 22021512 A31HLE
FEMNESHIFBENGE P HHREME10 - REEE
F2021F12 AN BIEFEHFHESHABEAAFBEIHIR
RAEEmMEM 11 -

ARPRABIRAETEIANBES - BEREMBEERA
T o BRI IR E M ANE R [T 8] —&0 -

43



Corporate Governance Report
ERERES

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The nomination committee of the Company (the
“Nomination Committee”) currently comprise three
INEDs, namely Mr. LO, Kwong Shun Wilson (chairman), Ms.
LING, Kit Sum Imma and Dr. KO, Siu Fung Stephen. The
Nomination Committee is to deal with the appointment, re-
election and retirement of Directors.

The Company has adopted a nomination policy in January
2019. The nomination policy sets out the approach to
guide the Nomination Committee in relation to election,
appointment and re-appointment of Directors. It aims
to ensure the Board has a balance of skills, experience,
knowledge and diversity of the candidates.

The Nomination Committee considers that in terms of
professional experience, skill and knowledge and the
structure, size and composition of the Board, the present
members of the Board of the Company are generally in
line with the diversity policy of the Company concerning
board members, meeting the present situation and future
development plan of the Company.

In 2021, the Nomination Committee convened 2 meetings.
Members of the Nomination Committee and their attendance
are as follows:

REEEE

ADEMEBEEER ((REEEE)) RM3BBUINTE
EHER - DB ABREERE(ER)  ZRLELRELE
Bt - RAZAGRBEENEE BRLRENEE -

ARRBDR2019F 1 ARMIBRBER - REBERRE T 18
BRAZEGRER ZEREHZEEEFNTE - EF
ERREFSAEBREANRE £ ABNZEUETE
HiGF -

REZEBER/ANAIBAIMESKE - REXER &%
EELAMBLREETE 2RE  ABRERETHERE  EX
HAARAEFZILICHER  TEARRHRMRBERKER
M -

R20215F - REZEEBET2AEH - REEZEEKE
REHFEERLT

No. of meetings

attended/
eligible to attend Attendance
Name of Members HESE e Rate
REHR SERHESRRE HER
Mr. LO, Kwong Shun Wilson (Chairman) ~— BE(E %% (F/E) 2/2 100%
Ms. LING, Kit Sum Imma BRI 2/2 100%
Dr. KO, Siu Fung Stephen [SES Al 1/1 100%
(appointed on 1 October 2021) (72202110 A1 BEZEE)
Mr. FAN, Ren Da Anthony SEICESAE 1/1 100%
(ceased on 21 May 2021) (7202145 A 21 BARBHEE)
Mr. NG, Yiu Ming (LB %E A4 1/1 100%

(resigned on 1 October 2021)
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NOMINATION OF DIRECTORS

Pursuant to article 95 of the Articles of Association, the
Board is entitled to appoint any person as Director from
time to time or at any time to fill a casual vacancy or add a
new member to the Board. For nomination, the nominee’s
qualifications, capabilities and potential to make contribution
to the Company shall be taken into consideration by the
nomination committee.

DIVERSITY

The Board has adopted the board diversity policy (the
“Board Diversity Policy”) in January 2019 which sets out
all measurable objectives to achieve and maintain diversity
on the Board to enhance effectiveness of the Board. The
Company recognises and embraces the benefits of diversity
of Board. It endeavours to ensure that the Board has a
balance of skills, experiences and varying perspectives
appropriate for the Company’s business. All Board
appointments are made on a merit basis with due regard for
the benefits of diversity of the Board members. Selection of
candidates are based on a range of diversity perspectives,
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
educational background, ethnicity, professional experience,
skills and knowledge. The Nomination Committee will review
the Board Diversity Policy on a regular basis to ensure its
continued effectiveness from time to time.
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The Board comprises a range of expertise including chemical
engineering, science and technologies, corporate finance
and accounting. The mix of the skills and background of the
Directors are appropriate taking into account the business
nature, corporate strategy and structure of the Company.
Besides, the Board is made up of different age groups
and both genders. The Board considers that its current
board composition is diversified with appropriate balanced
professional background, skills, experience, gender and age.
The following chart shows the diversity profile of the Board
as at 31 December 2021:

Number of Directors

ESAH™
9
g FemaleZz 1%
ED
7
6
5 Male
. e N[=b)
3
2
INED
1
0
Gender Designation
1451 (53

ED — Executive Director
NED — Non-executive Director
INED - Independent Non-executive Director
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0
46-55
Age Group Directorship with
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Liu Pui Yee (“Ms. Liu”) was appointed as the company
secretary of the Company on 9 February 2018. Ms. Liu is
responsible for ensuring that the Board is fully appraised of
the relevant corporate governance developments relating
to the Group and facilitating the professional development
of the directors. The Company engages an external service
provider to provide compliance and full range of company
secretarial services to the Company. The primary contact
person of the Company with Ms. Liu is Dr. WONG, Man Hin
Raymond, the Chairman of the Board, an executive Director
and chief financial officer.

Ms. Liu has received no less than 15 hours relevant
professional training during FY2021.

SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as its own code
of conduct regarding securities transactions by the Directors
and established written guidelines no less exacting than the
Model Code for senior management and specified persons
who are likely to possess inside information in relation to the
Group.

Having made specific enquiry to the Directors, all the
Directors confirmed that they had complied with the required
standards as set out in the Model Code for the year ended
31 December 2021.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND
CONTROL

The Board is responsible for maintaining an adequate risk
management and internal control system to manage risks
on an ongoing basis to reasonably safeguard the interests
of the Company’s shareholders and the Group’s assets.
In addition, there is regular dialogue with the Group’s
internal and external auditors so that both are aware of the
significant factors which may affect their respective scope of
work.

INTERNAL
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The Board has approved an “Inside Information Policy” in
May 2013 with the aim to set out guidelines to the directors,
officers and all relevant employees of the Group to ensure
inside information of the Company is to be disseminated to
the public in equal and timely manner in accordance with
the applicable laws and regulations. The term “relevant
employee” refers to employee of the Group, because of his/
her office or employment, who is likely to be in possession
of the unpublished Inside Information.

The Board has also adopted an anti-fraud and anti-bribery
policy. Directors and senior management are responsible
for ensuring the effective implementation, monitoring and
investigating any material fraudulent or bribery activities
committed within the Group.

The Group’s risk management includes regular identification
and review of business risks and control measures to
mitigate such risks. The Group’s internal control system
comprises of an established organizational structure as
well as comprehensive policies and standards. Area of
responsibilities of each business and functional unit is clearly
defined to ensure effective check and balance. Procedures
have been designed to safeguard assets from unauthorized
use or disposition, and to ensure that proper accounting
records are maintained and financial information used
internally and for publication is reliable. The internal control
procedures provide reasonable but not absolute assurance
against material errors, losses and fraud; but deem
sufficient to ensure full compliance with applicable laws and
regulations.

The Audit Committee and the Board carry out an
overview every six months on the effectiveness of the
risk management and internal control system of the
Group. The review covers all material controls, including
financial, operational and risk controls. No material risk
management and internal control aspects of any significant
discrepancies were discovered during the review. Both the
Audit Committee and the Board expressed satisfaction over
the effectiveness and adequacy of both the internal control
procedures and risk management procedures for the year
under review.
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The Board has reviewed and discussed the Environmental,
Social and Governance Report of the Company at least
annually to access the management and control of the
risks in ESG. Further discussion on the risks related to
Environmental, Social and Governance are set out in the
separate Environment, Social and Governance Report.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility in preparing
the consolidated financial statements of the Group.

The finance department of the Company is managed by a
qualified staff and supervised by the Chairman and chief
financial officer, Dr. WONG, Man Hin Raymond, who is a
U.S. certified public accountant. With the assistance of
the finance department, the Board will ensure that the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements of the
Group complies with relevant regulations and applicable
accounting standards.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The remuneration in respect of audit and non-audit services
(including review of interim financial information and tax
services) for the year ended 31 December 2021 provided
by RSM Hong Kong and its affiliate were approximately
HK$700,000, and HK$150,000 respectively.

The statement of reporting responsibility issued by RSM
Hong Kong, the auditor of the Company, in respect of the
consolidated financial statements of the Group is set out in
the independent auditor’s report on pages 52 to 60.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company has maintained communication with its
shareholders through the annual general meeting or other
general meetings and encourages them to participate in general
meetings. Registered shareholders of the Company receive
notices of general meetings by post. The notice of general
meeting contains the agenda, the proposed resolutions and
the voting form. All shareholders of the Company are entitled
to attend the annual general meeting and extraordinary general
meetings of the Company. Shareholders who are unable to
attend the general meeting can fill in the proxy form attached
with the notice of general meeting and return the same to the
share registrar and transfer office of the Company so as to
appoint their representatives or the chairman of the meeting as
their proxies.
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The Board has adopted a shareholders’ communication
policy in May 2013. Its general policy is to maintain on-
going dialogue with shareholders and investing community
and to ensure that shareholders’ views and concerns are
appropriately addressed.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHT

Right to convene an extraordinary general
meeting

Pursuant to article 68 of the Articles of Association, an
extraordinary general meeting shall be convened on
requisition as provided by the Companies Ordinance or
by the requisitionist. The Directors are required to call a
general meeting if the Company has received requests from
shareholders of the Company representing at least 5% of
the total voting rights of all the shareholders having a right to
vote at general meetings.

Right to put enquiries to the Board

Shareholders have the right to put enquiries to the Board. All
enquiries can be in writing and sent for the attention of the
Board, in one of the following ways:

1. By Post Raymond Industrial Limited
Rooms 1801-1813, 18th floor,
Grandtech Centre,

8 On Ping Street,

Shatin, New Territories

Hong Kong

2. By facsimile  (852) 2341 8669

3. By email ril@rilnk.com
Procedures to put forward proposals at general
meetings

Shareholders who would like to put forward proposals at a
general meeting shall follow the procedures below.

Shareholders of the Company representing at least 2.5%
of the total voting rights of all the shareholders who have a
relevant right to vote or at least 50 shareholders who have a
relevant right to vote may request the Company to:
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i) give notice of a resolution that may properly be
moved and is intended to be moved at the annual
general meeting of the Company; or

ii) circulate a statement of not more than 1,000 words
with respect to a matter mentioned in a proposed
resolution to be dealt with at a general meeting or
other business to be dealt with at the meeting;

to each shareholder of the Company entitled to receive
notice of the meeting.

A request to give notice of a resolution must be received by
the Company not later than (i) 6 weeks before the annual
general meeting to which the request relates; or (i) if later,
the time at which notice is given of that meeting. A request
to circulate shareholders’ statement must be received by
the Company at least 7 days before the meeting to which it
relates. Such request may be sent to the Company in hard
copy form or in electronic form.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

There was no significant change in the constitutional
documents of the Company during FY2021.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Board has adopted a dividend policy in January 2019.
In proposing any dividend payout, the Board shall take
into account certain factors, including but not limited to
the Group’s expected and actual financial performance,
its retained earnings and distributable reserves, the
Group’s capacity from current and future operation, future
commitments at the time of declaration of dividend.

The dividend policy and the payment of future dividend are
subject to the Board’s continuing determination which would
be in the best interests of the Group and Shareholders and
are in compliance with all applicable laws and regulations.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BB R &

Independent auditor’s report to the members of
Raymond Industrial Limited
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements
of Raymond Industrial Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages 61 to 143,
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2021, and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated
statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement
of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give
a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of
the Group as at 31 December 2021, and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”)
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the
Companies Ordinance.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of
the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants
(the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period.
These matters were addressed in the context of our audit
of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and
in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters. The key audit matters
we identified are:

Key Audit Matter

RREITER

Independent Auditor’s Report
BB R &

BEETEH

MRESEREREBERMNFTEAE - ERAENHELE
EMBHRERNETPREENFER - ZFFTRERME &
EMBHRFETEREA MM EREREERE - AL
TRl RIMREE R - BPIEERNBREAEAS -

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BANES NARERRESSE

1. Impairment of trade receivables

1. B 5 W ARFURIE

BB B BRRMEA) 17 -

Refer to notes 4(t) and 17 to the consolidated financial statements.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had significant trade
receivables of HK$301,224,000 (2020: HK$294,926,000).
No impairment has been recognised during the year.
R2021F12A31H - EXEAEAREHRURFEE
301,224,000 7T (2020 4F : /& #5 294,926,000 7T ) © & A
mIERRE -

Our procedures in relation to management’s assessment on
provision for loss allowances on trade receivables included:
BMHERERTEE DB E BB EINTOERF
B

° We understood, evaluated and tested, on a
sample basis, management’s key control over the
assessment on recoverability of trade receivable
balances and the related loss allowances, including
periodic review on trade receivables;
BT - B A RAIE - BEREHE
5 RRWBR TR A BA R B ME AT A4 AR S IR B E M

DENT - BETHIRE S RUIARK
° Checked, on a sample basis, the accuracy of trade

receivables aging used by management to estimate
the appropriate provision for loss allowances;
AR - B EREMEANE S RUERNRR
BCEVEREE - AEHEE B REE

FREBEEARAR —ZT——FFH
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SRR

Key Audit Matters (Continued)

Key Audit Matter

RRETEE

BHRETSER@E

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
RANET N EERERETSE

1. Impairment of trade receivables (Continued)

1. B5 W ARR(E ()

Refer to notes 4(t) and 17 to the consolidated financial statements.

B A BRI EA4) R 17

Management applied judgement in assessing the expected
credit losses. Trade receivables relating to customers with
known financial difficulties or significant doubt on collection
are assessed individually for provision for expected credit
losses. Expected credit losses are estimated by grouping
the remaining trade receivables based on shared credit risk
characteristics and collectively assessed for likelihood of
recovery, taking into account the nature of the customers,
their geographical locations and their ageing categories,
and applying expected credit losses rates to the respective
gross carrying amounts of the trade receivables. The
expected credit losses rates are determined based on the
Group’s historical credit loss experience with an adjustment
to reflect current and forward-looking information
which affected the ability of the customers to settle the
receivables.

ERETHEREEERERERE - HE NBMEHE
HIHBRAEARRBNT P EHNE S RUKEERTIRE
HEEBREEETERTWL - HHEEHENREHRRA
WEERBSBENGRNE ZHRIRTCETTOE - WiRe
AR EE AT RE M - A EREFHLE  #IBLE KIR
R ARETEREEBEERANESRKENEZA
EREARE - M EEEEXRE SESENELEEER
BERETE  WETAR  URBZERPEFEEKERR
e E B R ATHE L &R o

As the assessment of expected credit losses involved
significant management judgement, we regard this as a key
audit matter.

BHREMEEEEME I RERETEEHE - RFSER

RERETEE -

° Obtained management’s assessment on the

expected credit losses allowances of trade
receivables and assessed the reasonableness of
the expected loss rates. We corroborated and
validated management’s assessment based on
the historical settlement pattern, correspondences
with the customers, and evidences from external
sources including the relevant public search results
relating to the financial circumstances of the relevant
customers;
BISEEEHE ZRKEREREEBIBRENT
fit - WRHHTEHAE R RSB - HAMEFEMERE
TEBENEL - DEBELENKR - BEFH
BIERINIRORERE - BIEEERE OB
AR A HE RS

° We assessed management’s assessment of current
market conditions and forward-looking information
such as macroeconomic factors by comparing the
data used by management against publicly available
information; and
B REEBEANBBEAMER - RELE
BREH SIS A EBREERZSAE
MEE &

° We checked the mathematical accuracy of
management’s calculations for loss allowances of
trade receivables.
BZMRETEREFEE S RIRTEER B
T o
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Key Audit Matters (Continued)

Key Audit Matter

RRETEE

Independent Auditor’s Report
BB R &

BHRETSER@E

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
RANET N EERERETSE

2. Valuation of inventories

2. FEfE

Refer to notes 4(e) and 16 to the consolidated financial statements.

E LB TR iE 4(e) X 16 »

The Group’s inventories were exposed to inventory
obsolete and excess risks as a result of the fast
technology innovation and macroeconomic challenges.
The determination of the provision amount is complex and
involves significant judgements and estimates because it
depends on the net realisable value of inventories.

MR AR AR R RSB S - ESENEFEER
R BFIER - BESENETEER  PREXHER
st - AAEEURNFEH A #IRFE -

At 31 December 2021, the Group’s net inventories
amounted to HK$219,518,000 (2020: HK$176,770,000).
Inventory is carried in the consolidated financial statements
at the lower of cost and net realisable value. The net
realisable value of inventory could be impacted by changes
in economic conditions as well as changes in customers’
preferences and competitors’ strategies in responses to
changes in market conditions.

R2021512A31R ESEEBEMNGEEFERER
219,518,000 7T (2020 4F : /& #176,770,0007T) ° F &1
FEMBHRPIRARNEF] R FEREEIIR - FEH
AR FEAREGXINEBERRECARE PRI MRS
HF YT SRR B R ECNTE -

Our procedures in relation to management’s assessment
on net realisable value of inventories included:

BMYEEEHEFEAERFEMATHRFEE

o We understood and evaluated the appropriateness

and consistency of the basis management used
in estimating the level of provision for inventories
by comparing the historical accuracy of inventory
provisioning, on a sample basis, to the realised
amount; and reviewing the level of inventory write-
offs;
BrEBARMESTR - SBEFERBERERS
HRERN - TRY L EREEAGETFEREK
FRPIERAREE - U REHFEEMEKTHEE
R B

° Checked, on a sample basis, the accuracy of
inventory aging used by management to estimate
the appropriate provision for slow-moving and
obsolete inventories;

AR - RE BB EFANTERER AGGHE
HARR 7 B8 EE B AR ERE

° Performed audit analytics on inventory holding and
movement data to identify products with indication
of slow-moving or obsolescence; and
HIFANTFENEHBURETEADNT - ABHE
HESCBRTRNER &

FREBEEARAR —ZT——FFH
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Key Audit Matters (Continued)

Key Audit Matter

RRETEE

BHRETSER@E

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
RANET N EERERETSE

2. Valuation of inventories (Continued)

2. FEME (&)

BRI A TR iE 4(e) R 16 »

Refer to notes 4(e) and 16 to the consolidated financial statements.

° Compared the carrying amounts of a sample of

inventories to their net realisable value through a
detailed review of sales subsequent to the year
end. Where there were no subsequent sales of
the respective products after the year end, we
challenged management as to the realisable value
of the products, corroborating explanations with
the aging, sales orders, historical margins and
marketability of the respective inventories, as
appropriate.
BAFAEESFRENHEEER - UWHEH BT
BERmMEERETERFEETHR - BREFK
BABEHNER  BACMEERAZEZERN
AEREERDER  WHERRKREK HETE B
FEEMNERAEBFENTISAHE ! (ER) £F
HRHE

Other Information

The directors are responsible for the Other Information. The
Other Information comprises all of the information included
in the annual report other than the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does
not cover the Other Information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the Other
Information and, in doing so, consider whether the Other
Information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is
a material misstatement of this Other Information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.
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Responsibilities of Directors and Those Charged
with Governance for the Consolidated Financial
Statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA
and the Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control
as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have
no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for
overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. We report our opinion solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with section 405 of the Companies Ordinance
and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BB R &

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

° |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit
procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the
directors.

° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’
use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether
a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to
the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Group to cease to continue as a
going concern.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and
content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the
consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence
regarding the financial information of the entities or
business activities within the Group to express an
opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including
any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify
during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a
statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate
with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or
safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period and are therefore the key
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determine that a matter should not be communicated
in our report because the adverse consequences of doing
so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
SRR

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this
independent auditor’s report is Mr. Yam Tak Fai, Ronald.

RSM Hong Kong
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

25 March 2022
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss
(For the year ended 31 December 2021)

REBRER
(B FE2021F 12 31 AIFFE)
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(B REN)

2021 2020

Notes HK$’000 HK$’000

gz BET T BT

Revenue PN 5 1,433,612 1,289,515

Cost of sales SHER AR (1,261,281) (1,099,136)

Gross profit EF 172,331 190,379

Other revenue HAWA 6 449 2,116

Other net income/(loss) HuFzs (58) 6 2,272 (4,097)

Selling expenses HEER (15,798) (13,508)

General and administrative expenses ~ —#& 1T & (111,982) (98,011)

Profit before taxation BRBE A& 47,272 76,879

Income tax expense FriS i 8 (5,312) (13,661)

Profit for the year attributable D ERREML

to shareholders of the Company  &EEZF 9 41,960 63,218
Earnings per share SREF 12

Basic, HK cents ER - B 8.41 12.78

Diluted, HK cents - B 8.39 12.74

FREBEEARAR —ZT——FFH
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

(For the year ended 31 December 2021)

SEBRRREMZEKRRER
(BtZ 202112 A31 HiIFFE)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(UBE®REN)

2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT
Profit for the year attributable AR T RREGERFERF
to shareholders of the Company 41,960 63,218
Other comprehensive income Hih 2 mEUW s
ltem that may be reclassified 2B ENFENERNIER ¢
to profit or loss:
- Exchange differences on — BMEIBINEB I B IREREERE X ERE
translation of financial
statements of foreign operations 9,110 15,713
Total comprehensive income EAFBRREMEAFE22EKRREE
for the year attributable to
shareholders of the Company 51,070 78,931
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

(At 31 December 2021)

ey

B3R R &

(20214F 12 31 A#E
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(B aEN)

2021 2020
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
MIEE BT T BT T

Non-current assets FREBEE
Property, plant and equipment VI - B MR 13 155,983 153,021
Right-of-use assets FREEE 13 8,509 8,833
Deferred tax assets FEIERIAE B 15 3,000 2,739
167,492 164,593

Current assets REEE
Inventories FE 16 219,518 176,770
Trade and other receivables H 5 M E M EIER TR 17 324,399 325,561
Current tax assets BIEAF A& = 14 664 -
Bank and cash balances RITMIRS A 18 244,802 291,894
789,383 794,225
Current liabilities REEE

Trade and other payables 2 5 REMRERIRR 19 283,234 297,897
Dividends payable FER% B 322 286
Current tax liabilities BIHATR B B & 14 2,326 5,253
285,882 303,436
Net current assets REBEERE 503,501 490,789
Total assets less current liabilities @EERABEE 670,993 655,382

Non-current liabilities IRBERF
Deferred tax liabilities BERIBAE 15 163 167
NET ASSETS EEFE 670,830 655,215

CAPITAL AND RESERVES ERRf#HE
Share capital TN 23(a) 467,578 462,333
Reserves (ks 203,252 192,882
TOTAL EQUITY iR 670,830 655,215

Approved by the Board of Directors on 25 March 2022 and

are signed on its behalf by:

WONG, Man Hin Raymond

BEXE
Director

EF

MREEBRAF T —FF%H
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WONG, Ying Man John

BERH
Director
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

(For the year ended 31 December 2021)

GERREDR
(Bt2 20214 12 531 HIFFE)
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(LBBREN)
PRC
Share  Exchange Capital Retained statutory Total
capital reserve reserve earnings reserve equity
B ERRE EXfE REER DEEERHE EHE o
(note 23(@))  (note 23(c)(i))  (note 23(c)(i) (note 23(c)(if)
(Fiz23@)  (HzE23(0))) (M 23(0)() (FzE 23(c)(i)
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
i BB BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT
At 1 January 2020 1202051 A1 A& 462,333 33,697 756 63,209 45,959 605,954

Changes in equity for 2020: 2020 2 EHEEH

Profit for the year RERRA - - - 63,218 - 63,218
Exchange differences on translation #Z 55N RN HR
of financial statements EEMELES
of foreign operations - 15,713 - - - 15,713
Total comprehensive income PENEEE - 15,713 - 63,218 - 78,931
Appropriationto The People’ s~ AR SB[ )
Republic of China (the “PRC”)  EERERH
statutory reserve - - - (1,693 1,693 -
Dividends approved in respect of ~ BERR &
— current year 3 23(0)() - - - (9,890) - (9,890)
— previous year -fiF 23(0)(i) - - - (19,780) - (19,780)
- 15,713 - 31,855 1,693 49,261
At 31 December 2020 2020512 A 31 AEE 462,333 49,410 756 95,064 47,652 655,215
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
(For the year ended 31 December 2021)
GEEREERX
(220214 12 531 HIFFE)
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(BB REN)
PRC
Share  Exchange Capital Retained statutory Total
capital reserve reserve earnings reserve equity
R& EifE ERGE BERA TELERE At
(note 23(@))  (note 23(c)())  (note 23(c)(i) (note 23c)(i)
(FisE2s()  (H&E23(c)0) (B 23(0)) (FzE23(c)i)
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$:000
Mgk BETT BETTT BETTT BETTT BETTT BETTT
At1 January 2021 Ro021£151 ALE 462,333 49,410 756 95,064 47652 655215
Changes in equity for2021: 2021 £ 2 BEEH
Profit for the year RERRA - - - 41,960 - 41,960
Exchange differences on translation & EINEBHNH KRR
of financial statements EEMELES
of foreign operation - 9,110 - - - 9,110
Total comprehensive income PENESE - 9,110 - 41,960 - 51,070
Appropriation to PRC statutory BT R ERF
reserve - - - (3,632) 3,632 -
Dividends approved in respect of ~ #LER S
— current year 3 23(0)() - - - (10,024) - (10,024)
— previous year -fF 23(0)(i) - - - (30,054) - (30,054)
Shares issued under share BRI BRERY
option scheme
- gross proceeds - EE 23a)(i) 4,623 - - - - 4,623
~transfer from capital reserve - EAREEY 622 - (622) - - -
5,245 9,110 (622) (1,750) 3,632 15,615
At 31 December 2021 2021 12 A 31 B 467,578 58,520 134 93,314 51,284 670,830

MREEBRAF T —FF%H
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

(For the year ended 31 December 2021)
= 2 B

HEHERER

(BZ 202112431 HILF/E)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(UBE®REN)

2021 2020
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
FaE BT T BT T
CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING KRETHZRERE
ACTIVITIES
Profit before taxation BRI A& A 47,272 76,879
Adjustments for: FHEE
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FHREEENE 9 508 481
Depreciation of property, W - WEMEETE
plant and equipment 9 32,963 32,700
Foreign exchange differences, net EH FER 3,719 8,232
Bank interest income HRITHEMA 6 (449) 2,116)
Net loss/(gain) on disposal of LEME - BERZE
property, plant and equipment B8, (W) F5 6 66 (157)
Obsolete moulds and toolings BREA R T BRER
written off 9 600 7,271
Reversal of write-down of O REE TS F5E
inventories, net 9 (1,195) (2,365)
Operating profit before working EEESBRBAIKE SRR
capital changes 83,484 120,925
Increase in inventories FEEm (41,711) (49,909)
Decrease/(increase) in trade and B 5 R EA R
other receivables BRI A, (3 h0) 1,162 (47,109)
(Decrease)/increase in trade and B 5 R EARER
other payables R ORA) 1N (14,663) 68,469
Cash generated from operations &EEE4LCRE 28,272 92,376
Tax paid: HIEXZ
Hong Kong Profits Tax paid BABFFHZH (6,493) (4,409)
PRC Enterprise Income Tax paid PRI ERTSIH S 0 (2,691) (8,057)
Net cash generated from RETHEEZEHSFE
operating activities 19,088 79,910
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
(For the year ended 31 December 2021)

SEHERER
(B FE2021F 12 31 AIFFE)
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(AR HEN)
2021 2020
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
MIEE BET T ST T
CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING REFBHZRERE
ACTIVITIES
Purchases of property, plant EEWME - BE L&
and equipment (32,187) (15,507)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEME - BEMRE
plant and equipment FriS 58 230 768
Interest received AU A 449 2,116
Net cash used in investing REZBTHZESFE
activities (31,508) (12,623)
CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING RMEFTBHCRERE
ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from shares issued under BITHERER D 2 W
share option scheme 23(a)(ii) 4,623 -
Dividends paid SRR E (40,042) (29,666)
Net cash used in financing RELTBTHZEEFE
activities (35,419) (29,666)
NET (DECREASE)/INCREASE ReERESEHEER
IN CASH AND CASH Z A2 /EinEE
EQUIVALENTS (47,839) 37,621
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS R1A1HZEBEERES
AT 1 JANUARY ZEEH 291,894 255,198
Effect of foreign exchange rate NEERESBIFE
changes 747 (925)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS R12A31BZ2RE
AT 31 DECEMBER RESEEER 244,802 291,894
ANALYSIS OF CASH AND CASH HeRBESEEEBEESN
EQUIVALENTS
Bank and cash balances SRITHNIR & 58k 18 244,802 291,894

MREEBRAF T —FF%H
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

GEMBRRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(UBE®REN)

l. GENERAL INFORMATION

Raymond Industrial Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated and domiciled in Hong Kong. The address of
its registered office and principal place of business is Rooms
1801 — 1813, 18th Floor, Grandtech Centre, 8 On Ping
Street, Shatin, New Territories, Hong Kong. The Company’s
shares are listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (“the Stock Exchange”).

The principal activity of the Company is sale of electrical
home appliances. The principal activities and other
particulars of the subsidiaries of the Company are set out in
note 29 to the consolidated financial statements.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, Dr. WONG,
Kin Lae Wilson is the ultimate controlling party of the
Company.

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION

The consolidated financial statements for year ended 31
December 2021 comprise the Company and its subsidiaries
(together the “Group”).

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”), issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (‘HKICPA”).
HKFRSs comprise Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRS”); Hong Kong Accounting Standards
(“‘HKAS”); and Interpretations. These consolidated financial
statements also comply with the applicable disclosure
provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on the Stock Exchange and with the requirements of the
Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622). Significant accounting
policies adopted by the Group are disclosed below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs
that are first effective or available for early adoption for the
current accounting period of the Group. Note 3 provides
information on any changes in accounting policies resulting
from initial application of these developments to the extent
that are relevant to the Group for the current and prior
accounting periods reflected in these consolidated financial
statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS

(@) Application of new and revised HKFRSs

The Group has applied the following amendments to
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA for the first time, which are
mandatorily effective for the annual period beginning on or
after 1 January 2021 for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements:

Amendments to HKFRS 9,
HKAS 39, HKFRS 7,
HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16

Interest Rate Benchmark
Reform — Phrase 2

Except as described below, the application of the
amendments to HKFRSs in the current year had no material
impact on the Group’s financial positions and performance
for the current and prior years and/or on the disclosures set
out in these consolidated financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39, HKFRS 7, HKFRS 4
and HKFRS 16, Interest Rate Benchmark Reform — Phrase
2

The amendments provide targeted reliefs from (i) accounting
for changes in the basis for determining contractual cash
flows of financial assets, financial liabilities and lease
liabilities as modifications, and (ii) discontinuing hedge
accounting when an interest rate benchmark is replaced by
an alternative benchmark rate as a result of the reform of
interbank offered rates (“IBOR reform”).

The amendments do not have an impact on these financial
statements as the Group does not have contracts that are
indexed to benchmark interest rates which are subject to the
IBOR reform.

MREEBRAF T —FF%H

GEMBRRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LBE®REMN)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AEMBRRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(BB REMN)

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

(b) New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not

yet effective

The Group has not applied any new and revised HKFRSs
that have been issued but are not yet effective for the
financial year beginning 1 January 2021. These new and
revised HKFRSs include the following which may be relevant

to the Group.

Amendments to HKFRS 3
Business Combination —
Reference to the
Conceptual Framework

Amendments to HKAS 16
Property Plant and
Equipment — Proceeds
before Intended Use

Amendments to HKAS 37
Onerous Contracts —
Cost of Fulfiling a Contract

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2018 — 2020 Cycle

Amendments to HKAS 1
Classification of Liabilities
as Current or Non-current

Amendments to HKAS 1
Presentation of Financial
Statements and HKFRS
Practice Statement 2
Making Materiality
Judgements —
Disclosure of
Accounting Policies

70

Effective for accounting
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not
yet effective (Continued)

(b)

Effective for accounting
periods beginning
on or after

Amendments to HKAS 8
Accounting Policies,
Changes in Accounting
Estimates and Errors —
Definition of Accounting
Estimates

1 January 2023

Amendments to HKAS 12
Income Taxes —
Deferred Tax Related to
Assets and Liabilities
Arising from a Single
Transaction

1 January 2023

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of
what the impact of these amendments and new standards
is expected to be in the period of initial application. So far it
has concluded that the adoption of them is unlikely to have a
significant impact on the consolidated financial statements.

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared
under the historical cost convention.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
HKFRSs requires the use of certain critical accounting
estimates. It also requires management to exercise
its judgements in the process of applying the Group’s
accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree
of judgements or complexity, or areas where assumptions
and estimates are significant to the consolidated financial
statements are disclosed in note 31.

The significant accounting policies applied in the preparation
of these consolidated financial statements are set out below.
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GEMBRRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(UBE®REN)

4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(@) Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries made up to
31 December. Subsidiaries are entities over which the Group
has control. The Group controls an entity when it is exposed,
or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with
the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through
its power over the entity. The Group has power over an
entity when the Group has existing rights that give it the
current ability to direct the relevant activities, i.e. activities
that significantly affect the entity’s returns.

When assessing control, the Group considers its potential
voting rights as well as potential voting rights held by other
parties. A potential voting right is considered only if the
holder has the practical ability to exercise that right.

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which control
is transferred to the Group. They are de-consolidated from
the date the control ceases.

Intragroup transactions, balances and unrealised profits are
eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been
changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the
policies adopted by the Group.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, an
investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment
losses (see note 4(s)).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Foreign currency translation

(i) Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements of each of the
Group’s entities are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates
(the “functional currency”). The consolidated financial
statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars (‘HK$”),
which is the Company’s functional and presentation
currency.

(i) Transactions and balances in each entity’s
financial statements

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into the
functional currency on initial recognition using the exchange
rates prevailing on the transaction dates. Monetary assets
and liabilities in foreign currencies are translated at the
exchange rates at the end of each reporting period.
Gains and losses resulting from this translation policy are
recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair value in
foreign currencies are translated using the exchange rates at
the dates when the fair values are determined.

When a gain or loss on a non-monetary item is recognised
in other comprehensive income, any exchange component
of that gain or loss is recognised in other comprehensive
income. When a gain or loss on a non-monetary item is
recognised in profit or loss, any exchange component of
that gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss.

(iii) Translation on consolidation

The results and financial position of all the Group entities
that have a functional currency different from the Company’s
presentation currency are translated into the Company’s
presentation currency as follows:

- Assets and liabilities for each statement of financial
position presented are translated at the closing rate
at the date of that statement of financial position;
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

GEMBRRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(UBE®REN)

4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(b) Foreign currency translation (Continued)
(iii)  Translation on consolidation (Continued)

- Income and expenses are translated at average
exchange rates for the period (unless this average
is not a reasonable approximation of the cumulative
effect of the rates prevailing on the transaction dates,
in which case income and expenses are translated at
the exchange rates on the transaction dates); and

- All resulting exchange differences are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in the
foreign currency translation reserve.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the
translation of monetary items that form part of the net
investment in foreign entities are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the foreign
currency translation reserve. When a foreign operation
is sold, such exchange differences are reclassified to
consolidated profit or loss as part of the gain or loss on
disposal.

(c) Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are held for use in
the production or supply of goods or services, or for
administrative purposes (other than cost of construction in
progress described below). Property, plant and equipment
are stated in the consolidated statement of financial position
at cost, less subsequent accumulated depreciation and
subsequent accumulated impairment losses, if any (see note
4(s)).

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs
and maintenance are recognised in profit or loss during the
period in which they are incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

()

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is calculated
at rates sufficient to write off their cost less their residual
values over the estimated useful lives at the principal annual
rates as follows:

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Buildings held for own use which
are situated on leasehold land,
where the fair value of the
building could be measured
separately from the fair value
of the leasehold land at the
inception of the lease
(see note 4(d))

4.0% — 4.5% straight line

Leasehold land is depreciated
over the unexpired term
of lease (see note 4(d))

2.0% straight line

Plant and machinery 9.0% - 18.0% straight line

Furniture, fixtures and
equipment

9.0% — 33.3% straight line

Motor vehicles 25.0% reducing balance

and 18.0% straight line

The residual values, useful lives and depreciation method
are reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, at the end of each
reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate
accounted for on a prospective basis.

The cost of construction in progress includes the cost of
machinery, materials, construction expenditures and other
costs directly attributable to bringing the assets to a working
condition for its intended use. Construction in progress
is not depreciated until it is completed and ready for its
intended use.

The gain or loss on disposal of property, plant and
equipment is the difference between the net sales proceeds
and the carrying amount of the relevant asset, and is
recognised in profit of loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

GEMBRRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(UBE®REN)

4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(d) Leases

At inception of a contract, the Group assesses whether the
contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains,
a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use
of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration. Control is conveyed where the customer has
both the right to direct the use of the identified asset and to
obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from that
use.

The Group as a lessee

At the lease commencement date, the Group recognises
a right-of-use asset and a lease liability, except for short-
term leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less and
leases of low-value assets which, for the Group are primarily
warehouses and carpark. When the Group enters into a
lease in respect of a low-value asset, the Group decides
whether to capitalise the lease on a lease-by-lease basis.
The lease payments associated with those leases which
are not capitalised are recognised as an expense on a
systematic basis over the lease term.

Where the lease is capitalised, the lease liability is initially
recognised at the present value of the lease payments
payable over the lease term, discounted using the interest
rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot be readily
determined, using a relevant incremental borrowing rate.
After initial recognition, the lease liability is measured at
amortised cost and interest expense is calculated using
the effective interest method. Variable lease payments that
do not depend on an index or rate are not included in the
measurement of the lease liability and hence are charged
to profit or loss in the accounting period in which they are
incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(d) Leases (Continued)
The Group as a lessee (Continued)

The right-of-use asset recognised when a lease is capitalised
is initially measured at cost, which comprises the initial
amount of the lease liability plus any lease payments made
at or before the commencement date, and any initial direct
costs incurred. Where applicable, the cost of the right-of-
use assets also includes an estimate of costs to dismantle
and remove the underlying asset or to restore the underlying
asset or the site on which it is located, discounted to their
present value, less any lease incentives received. The right-
of-use asset is subsequently stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses.

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is reasonably certain
to obtain ownership of the underlying leased assets at the
end of the lease term are depreciated from commencement
date to the end of the useful life. Otherwise, right-of-use
assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the
shorter of its estimated useful life and the lease term.

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted under
HKFRS 9 and initially measured at fair value. Adjustments to
fair value at initial recognition are considered as additional
lease payments and included in the cost of right-of-use
assets.

The lease liability is remeasured when there is a change in
future lease payments arising from a change in an index
or rate, or there is a change in the Group’s estimate of the
amount expected to be payable under a residual value
guarantee, or there is a change arising from the reassessment
of whether the Group will be reasonably certain to exercise
a purchase, extension or termination option. When the
lease liability is remeasured in this way, a corresponding
adjustment is made to the carrying amount of the right-
of-use asset, or is recorded in profit or loss if the carrying
amount of the right-of-use asset has been reduced to zero.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

GEMBRRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(UBE®REN)

4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(d) Leases (Continued)
The Group as a lessee (Continued)

The lease liability is also remeasured when there is a change
in the scope of a lease or the consideration for a lease that
is not originally provided for in the lease contract (“lease
modification”) that is not accounted for as a separate
lease. In this case the lease liability is remeasured based on
the revised lease payments and lease term using a revised
discount rate at the effective date of the modification.

The cost of acquiring land held under an operating lease
is amortised on a straight-line basis over the period of the
lease term. Impairment losses are recognised in accordance
with accounting policy set out in note 4(s).

(e) Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is determined using the weighted average basis.
The cost of finished goods and work in progress comprises
raw materials, direct labour and an appropriate proportion of
all production overhead expenditure, and where appropriate,
subcontracting charges. Net realisable value is the estimated
selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the
estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs
necessary to make the sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those
inventories is recognised as an expense in the period in
which the related revenue is recognised. The amount of
any write-down of inventories to net realisable value and all
losses of inventories are recognised as an expense in the
period the write-down or loss occurs. The amount of any
reversal of any write-down of inventories is recognised as
a reduction in the amount of inventories recognised as an
expense in the period in which the reversal occurs.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

()

Recognition and derecognition of financial
instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position when the Group
entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured
at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”)) are added
to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets
or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.
Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of
financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.
If the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the
transferred asset, the Group recognises its retained interest
in the asset and an associated liability for amounts it may
have to pay. If the Group retains substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset,
the Group continues to recognise the financial asset and
also recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds
received.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or
have expired. The difference between the carrying amount of
the financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid
and payable, including any non-cash assets transferred or
liabilities assumed, is recognised in profit or loss.

MREEBRAF T —FF%H

GEMBRRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LBE®REMN)

4, FESTEEG®)

BRERKRLIEREMIE

(f)

EASEETERKNABR ARG QKRNI
MEENTREBERERAPHINRRAFER

TREELSRBEVIRATENE - WEHETTH
ﬁ?&i%ﬂfﬁﬁ(?@%ﬁ ~AFEFAER ([BAFERA
Bm ) WeREENERAE) NEREAERZKRANYS
MR RS .:Jr)\iraﬂéﬁgiz/i\ﬁ“ﬂiéﬁ B R HEREF RS (RiE
RERME) - WERAFEFARGENEREENSREA
EEEEIENR BRI R E S ER -

AEHEREEEESRSRENANENER - HEH
HEMEEMNZEEMBRNBALYER K EHRE RS
»— BB Eﬁﬂiﬁ?ﬁm&ﬁ%wﬁéﬁ? ﬁﬁﬁﬁlﬁﬁﬁﬁ
HRTERECEREEMARNBARD R kBRI
?.Ai:i,%* THIZEE - AIASERERER 3215535’31% 4 1

@R BEA T AT SRR AR A (E - HWAKERE
PrEReREEMARNEARYERKLORK - AIAREE

HALEFER LA S RE E N W ITARER R ER -

AEEERARENRTRELR - BUS KB IR LR

TRAE KUIEEINESRAENEREERES N RENK

EB(EREMNDERENIFRSEERCAENEE) 2HK
ERRINESTER

79



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

GEMBRRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(UBE®REN)

4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(g) Financial assets

All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are
recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular
way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial
assets that require delivery of assets within the time frame
established by regulation or convention in the marketplace.
All recognised financial assets are measured subsequently in
their entirety at either amortised cost or fair value, depending
on the classification of the financial assets.

(h)  Trade and other receivables

A receivable is recognised when the Group has an
unconditional right to receive consideration. A right to
receive consideration is unconditional if only the passage of
time is required before payment of that consideration is due.
If revenue has been recognised before the Group has an
unconditional right to receive consideration, the amount is
presented as a contract asset.

Receivables are stated at amortised cost using the effective
interest method less allowance for credit losses (see note
4().

(i)  Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and
on hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial
institutions, and short term, highly liquid investments that
are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and
which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value,
having been within three months of maturity at acquisition.
Cash and cash equivalents are assessed for expected credit
losses (“ECLs”) in accordance with the policy set out in note
4(t).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
@)
Financial liabilities and equity instruments are classified
according to the substance of the contractual arrangements
entered into and the definitions of a financial liability and
an equity instrument under HKFRSs. An equity instrument
is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the
assets of the Group after deducting all of its liabilities. The

accounting policies adopted for specific financial liabilities
and equity instruments are set out below.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

(k)

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at fair value
are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method unless the effect of discounting
would be immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.

0

An equity instrument is any contract that evidence a residual
interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Trade and other payables

Equity instruments

(m) Revenue and other income

Revenue is recognised when control over a product or
service is transferred to the customer, at the amount of
promised consideration to which the Group is expected to
be entitled, excluding those amounts collected on behalf of
third parties. Revenue excludes value added tax or other
sales taxes and is after deduction of any trade discounts.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

GEMBRRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(UBE®REN)

4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Revenue and other income (Continued)
(i) Sale of goods

Revenue from the sales of electrical home appliances is
recognised when control of the goods has transferred, being
when the goods have been shipped to the wholesaler’s
specific location (delivery). Following delivery, the wholesaler
has full discretion over the manner of distribution and price
to sell the goods, has the primary responsibility when on
selling the goods and bears the risks of obsolescence and
loss in relation to the goods. A receivable is recognised by
the Group when the goods are delivered to the wholesaler
as this represents the point in time at which the right to
consideration becomes unconditional, as only the passage
of time is required before payment is due.

(i) Interest income

Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the
effective interest method. For credit impaired financial
assets, the effective interest rate is applied to the amortised
cost (i.e. gross carrying amount net of loss allowance) of the
asset.

(n)  Product development costs

Expenditure on development activities, whereby research
findings are applied to a plan or design for the production
of new or substantially improved products and processes,
is capitalised if the product or process is technically and
commercially feasible and the Group has sufficient resources
and the intention to complete development. The expenditure
capitalised includes the costs of materials, direct labour
and an appropriate proportion of overheads. Development
expenditure which does not meet these criteria is recognised
as an expense in the period in which it is incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
(o) Employee benefits
(i) Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave and long service
leave are recognised when they accrue to employees. A
provision is made for the estimated liability for annual leave
and long service leave as a result of services rendered by
employees up to the end of the reporting period.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity leave are
not recognised until the time of leave.

(i) Pension obligations

The Group contributes to defined contribution retirement
schemes which are available to all employees. Contributions
to the schemes by the Group and employees are calculated
as a percentage of employees’ basic salaries. The retirement
benefit scheme cost charged to profit or loss represents
contributions payable by the Group to the funds.

(iii) Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier of the
dates when the Group can no longer withdraw the offer of

those benefits, and when the Group recognises restructuring
costs and involves the payment of termination benefits.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

GEMBRRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(UBE®REN)

4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(p) Share-based payments

The Company operates a share option scheme under which
the Group receives services or goods from its directors,
employees and other eligible persons as consideration for
share options of the Company. The fair value of the services
or goods received in exchange for the grant of the share
options is recognised as an expense. The total amount to
be expensed is determined by reference to the fair value of
the share options, which is measured at grant date using
the Black Scholes model, taking into account the terms and
conditions upon which the options were granted. Where
the counterparties have to meet vesting conditions before
becoming unconditionally entitled to the options, the total
estimated fair value of the options is spread over the vesting
period, taking into account the probability that the options
will vest.

During the vesting period, the number of share options that
is expected to vest is reviewed. Any resulting adjustment to
the cumulative fair value recognised in prior years is charged/
credited to profit or loss for the year of the review, unless
the original expenses qualify for recognition as an asset,
with a corresponding adjustment to the capital reserve.
On vesting date, the amount recognised as an expense is
adjusted to reflect the actual number of options that vest
(with a corresponding adjustment to the capital reserve)
except where forfeiture is only due to not achieving vesting
conditions that relate to the market price of the Company’s
shares. The equity amount is recognised in the capital
reserve until either the option is exercised which included in
the amount recognised in share capital for the shares issued
or the option expires (when it is released directly to retained
earnings).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(a)

A government grant is recognised when there is reasonable
assurance that the Group will comply with the conditions
attaching to it and that the grant will be received.

Government grants

Government grants relating to income are deferred and
recognised in profit or loss over the period to match them
with the costs they are intended to compensate.

Government grants that become receivable as
compensation for expenses or losses already incurred or
for the purpose of giving immediate financial support to the
Group with no future related costs are recognised in profit or
loss in the period in which they become receivable.

(r) Taxation
Income tax represents the sum of the current tax and
deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from profit recognised in profit
or loss because of items of income or expense that are
taxable or deductible in other years and items that are
never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for current
tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used
in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities
are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences
and deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that
it is probable that taxable profits will be available against
which deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses
or unused tax credits can be utilised. Such assets and
liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference
arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than
in a business combination) of other assets and liabilities in
a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

GEMBRRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(UBE®REN)

4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(r)  Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries and
associates, and interests in joint arrangements, except
where the Group is able to control the reversal of the
temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will
be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected
to apply in the period when the liability is settled or the asset
is realised, based on tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.
Deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except when it
relates to items recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity, in which case the deferred tax is also
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity.

The measurement of deferred tax assets and liabilities
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of
its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for leasing
transactions in which the Group recognises the right-of-
use assets and the related lease liabilities, the Group first
determines whether the tax deductions are attributable to
the right-of-use assets or the lease liabilities.

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions are
attributable to the lease liabilities, the Group applies HKAS
12 requirements to right-of-use assets and lease liabilities
separately. Temporary differences relating to right-of-
use assets and lease liabilities are not recognised at initial
recognition and over the lease terms due to application of
the initial recognition exemption.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(r)  Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes
levied by the same taxation authority and the Group intends
to settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.

In assessing any uncertainty over income tax treatments,
the Group considers whether it is probable that the relevant
tax authority will accept the uncertain tax treatment used,
or proposed to be used by individual group entities in their
income tax filings. If it is probable, the current and deferred
taxes are determined consistently with the tax treatment in
the income tax filings. If it is not probable that the relevant
taxation authority will accept an uncertain tax treatment,
the effect of each uncertainty is reflected by using either the
most likely amount or the expected value.

(s)

The carrying amounts of non-financial assets are reviewed
at each reporting date for indications of impairment and
where an asset is impaired, it is written down as an expense
through the consolidated statement of profit or loss to its
estimated recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is
determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not
generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those
from other assets or groups of assets. If this is the case,
recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating
unit to which the asset belongs. Recoverable amount is
the higher of value in use and the fair value less costs of
disposal of the individual asset or the cash-generating unit.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Value in use is the present value of the estimated future cash
flows of the asset/cash-generating unit. Present values are
computed using pre-tax discount rates that reflect the time
value of money and the risks specific to the asset/cash-
generating unit whose impairment is being measured.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

GEMBRRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(UBE®REN)

4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(s) Impairment of non-financial assets (Continued)

Impairment losses for cash-generating units are allocated
first against the goodwill of the unit and then pro rata
amongst the other assets of the cash-generating unit.
Subsequent increases in the recoverable amount caused
by changes in estimates are credited to profit or loss to the
extent that they reverse the impairment.

(t)  Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises a loss allowance for ECLs on trade
receivables and instruments that are measured at amortised
cost. The amount of ECL is updated at each reporting date
to reflect changes in credit risk since initial recognition of the
respective financial instrument.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade
receivables. The ECL on these financial assets are estimated
using a provision matrix based on the Group’s historical
credit loss experience, adjusted for factors that are specific
to the debtors, general economic conditions and an
assessment of both the current as well as the forecast
direction of conditions at the reporting date, including time
value of money where appropriate.

For all other financial instruments, the Group recognises
lifetime ECL when there has been a significant increase in
credit risk since initial recognition. However, if the credit risk
on the financial instrument has not increased significantly
since initial recognition, the Group measures the loss
allowance for that financial instrument at an amount equal to
12-month ECL.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all
possible default events over the expected life of a financial
instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL represents the
portion of lifetime ECL that is expected to result from default
events on a financial instrument that are possible within 12
months after the reporting date.

88

4, FESTEEG®)

s) FTMEEREE

BeEABUNREBREL KEEXEN EHE B
WO ERSELBEUNEMEERETOR - RfhsHE%E
i 5| BCEARIE Ny AT W Bl £ 78 Y A BB AR A

B e

) SBMEERE

REBE 5 YRR IR # AR 81 T AMTAME
EERERBERE AHEEEESENSHEEME
¥ URBEERR B s RS BT AR EE) -

AEE-EREFREEFERLHEREEEHE - A
i@ﬂﬁ?%ﬁ%ﬁfﬂ%?@ﬂ@ﬁ$iliﬁfﬂZfEﬂEi‘“%ﬁ
WiEMEEEEmA  YREEBANTERER - B8
R K i #R S B B E A SRR TR ET HE R B9 AP (R AR

E EhefeEnSEER(mEs) -

ATEEMERTAMS @ W5 SR8 9116 R AR
M AREERALMBEREEER - A M/
TENEERR B VAR AR SAEZIEMN - AL

IERTAFENBREEHESN12EABREERSE -

’\Hﬂi‘ﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁféﬂﬁ?aﬁ’\érﬂlﬁiﬁﬁﬁﬁiﬁﬂﬁﬁxiﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁT
RREBOEMHMETNEREEEE - ARt - 128 AFEH

ﬁ@%%@h%ﬁﬁﬁﬁf‘#&i AR 12EA AR SR T AR e

EHROEMHERNEL 2 HEMEERER -

RAYMOND Industrial Ltd. Annual Report 2021



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(®

Significant increase in credit risk

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

In assessing whether the credit risk on a financial instrument
has increased significantly since initial recognition, the
Group compares the risk of a default occurring on the
financial instrument at the reporting date with the risk of a
default occurring on the financial instrument at the date of
initial recognition. In making this assessment, the Group
considers both quantitative and qualitative information
that is reasonable and supportable, including historical
experience and forward-looking information that is available
without undue cost or effort. Forward-looking information
considered includes the future prospects of the industries in
which the Group’s debtors operate, obtained from economic
expert reports, financial analysts, governmental bodies,
relevant think-tanks and other similar organisations, as well
as consideration of various external sources of actual and
forecast economic information that relate to the Group’s
core operations.

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition:

- an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
financial instrument’s external (if available) or internal
credit rating;

- significant deterioration in external market indicators
of credit risk for a particular financial instrument;

- existing or forecast adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are expected to
cause a significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to
meet its debt obligations;

- an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
operating results of the debtor;

- significant increases in credit risk on other financial
instruments of the same debtor;
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

GEMBRRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(UBE®REN)

4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(t)  Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

- an actual or expected significant adverse change
in the regulatory, economic, or technological
environment of the debtor that results in a significant
decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its debt
obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment,
the Group presumes that the credit risk on a financial
asset has increased significantly since initial recognition
when contractual payments are more than 30 days past
due, unless the Group has reasonable and supportable
information that demonstrates otherwise.

Despite the foregoing, the Group assumes that the credit
risk on a financial instrument has not increased significantly
since initial recognition if the financial instrument is
determined to have low credit risk at the reporting date. A
financial instrument is determined to have low credit risk if:

(i) the financial instrument has a low risk of default;

(ii) the debtor has a strong capacity to meet its
contractual cash flow obligations in the near term;
and

(iii) adverse changes in economic and business
conditions in the longer term may, but will not
necessarily, reduce the ability of the borrower to fulfil
its contractual cash flow obligations.

The Group considers a financial asset to have low credit
risk when the asset has external credit rating of “investment
grade” in accordance with the globally understood definition
or if an external rating is not available, the asset has an
internal rating of “performing”. Performing means that the
counterparty has a strong financial position and there is no
past due amount.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(t)

Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of the criteria
used to identify whether there has been a significant increase
in credit risk and revises them as appropriate to ensure that
the criteria are capable of identifying significant increase in
credit risk before the amount becomes past due.

Definition of default

The Group considers the following as constituting an event
of default for internal credit risk management purposes as
historical experience indicates that receivables that meet
either of the following criteria are generally not recoverable.

- when there is a breach of financial covenants by the
counterparty; or

- information developed internally or obtained from
external sources indicates that the debtor is unlikely
to pay its creditors, including the Group, in full (without
taking into account any collaterals held by the
Group).

Irrespective of the above analysis, the Group considers that
default has occurred when a financial asset is more than
90 days past due unless the Group has reasonable and
supportable information to demonstrate that a more lagging
default criterion is more appropriate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

GEMBRRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(UBE®REN)

4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(t)  Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events
that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash
flows of that financial asset have occurred. Evidence that a
financial asset is credit-impaired includes observable data
about the following events:

- significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the
counterparty;

- a breach of contract, such as a default or past due
event;

- the lender(s) of the counterparty, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the counterparty’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the counterparty
a concession(s) that the lender(s) would not
otherwise consider;

- it is becoming probable that the counterparty will
enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; or

- the disappearance of an active market for that
financial asset because of financial difficulties.

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is
information indicating that the debtor is in severe financial
difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of recovery,
including when the debtor has been placed under liquidation
or has entered into bankruptcy proceedings, or in the
case of trade receivables, when the amounts are over two
years past due, whichever occurs sooner. Financial assets
written off may still be subject to enforcement activities
under the Group’s recovery procedures, taking into account
legal advice where appropriate. Any recoveries made are
recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(t)

Measurement and recognition of ECL

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability
of default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the
loss if there is a default) and the exposure at default.
The assessment of the probability of default and loss
given default is based on historical data adjusted by
forward-looking information as described above. As for the
exposure at default, for financial assets, this is represented
by the assets’ gross carrying amount at the reporting date.

For financial assets, the ECL is estimated as the difference
between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Group
in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that
the Group expects to receive, discounted at the original
effective interest rate.

If the Group has measured the loss allowance for a financial
instrument at an amount equal to lifetime ECL in the previous
reporting period, but determines at the current reporting
date that the conditions for lifetime ECL are no longer met,
the Group measures the loss allowance at an amount equal
to 12-month ECL at the current reporting date, except for
assets for which simplified approach was used.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in profit
or loss for all financial instruments with a corresponding
adjustment to their carrying amount through a loss
allowance account.

MREEBRAF T —FF%H

GEMBRRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LBE®REMN)

4, FESTEEG®)

t EREEREGE)
RMEEBENTERER

EMEEEBRNFTERENT N - BOBRRX(AIHRE
HEERRIEE) MEDRERAKE - EX R REERENR
R THIE IR S BT TRT G - WL LA AR ME B RHE
HE - RMEEMNENRBRIEAREENRSE A HNEKR
[ENER

PEMEEMS  BHEEBEREFARESVENAE
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i AEER E—EREHRIREER 2 RRBEEEEN
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HZAEN 12E ARSI EEBEN S B EBERE
ERBOEMEERI
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GEMBRRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(UBE®REN)

4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(u)  Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing or
amount when the Group has a present legal or constructive
obligation arising as a result of a past event, it is probable
that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle
the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made. Where
the time value of money is material, provisions are stated at
the present value of the expenditure expected to settle the
obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably,
the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow is remote. Possible obligations, whose
existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more future events are also disclosed
as contingent liabilities unless the probability of outflow is
remote.

(v)  Events after the reporting period

Events after the reporting period that provide additional
information about the Group’s position at the end of the
reporting period are adjusting events and are reflected
in the consolidated financial statements. Events after the
reporting period that are not adjusting events are disclosed
in the notes to the consolidated financial statements when
material.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
mEMBRERMEE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LBE®REMN)

5. REVENUE 5.

Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers by~ AN/
major products for the year is as follows:

A

BREEEM

g

IDREEPAELZWADSENT

2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT
Revenue from contracts with REBMEREERE 155
customers within the scope of HERAREEFEHZWA
HKFRS 15
Disaggregated by major products BEXEEMDE - EVMHEE
— sales of goods 1,433,612 1,289,515

The Group derives revenue from the transfer of goods at a
point in time in the following geographical regions:

REREPEA T iR I R AR HHER MR ESRA

Manufacture and sale of
electrical home appliances

RAZERENEENHEE
2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT TT
Primary geographical markets FEHETS
- The United States of America (‘USA”) — =F|824 B ([ £B ) 458,855 397,322
- The PRC - 798,731 775,804
— Japan -BK 297,039 278,944
— Europe — BN 303,760 237,553
— Asia (excluding Japan and the PRC) - gl (B iEH AN AE) 1,261,874 1,053,205
— Rest of the world — R EH 32,675 41,758
Segment revenue D EBA 3,152,934 2,784,586
Intersegment revenue WEL 5 U A
- The PRC - (527,222) (499,450)
— Asia (excluding Japan and the PRC) - 5/l (B3 AA AR ET) (1,192,100) (995,621)
(1,719,322) (1,495,071)
Revenue from external customers HINZRE Z WA 1,433,612 1,289,515

MREEBRAF T —FF%H
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AEMBRRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(UBE®REN)

6. OTHER REVENUE AND OTHER NET

6. HttARHEMFRE (BHE)

INCOME/(LOSS)
2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Other revenue Hibl A
Bank interest income SRITH B YA 449 2,116
Other net income/(loss) HiFs, (BR)
Net gain on disposal of scrap materials &R 25 F 58 852 853
Net exchange gain/(loss) B Es (ER) F58 125 (6,491)
Net (loss)/gain on disposal of HEME - BEREE (BB) WS FE
property, plant and equipment (66) 157
Subsidy income g 841 1,147
Sundry income Haplzs 520 237
2,272 (4,097)

7.  SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group is principally engaged in the manufacture and
sale of electrical home appliances. In a manner consistent
with the way in which information is reported internally to the
Group’s senior management for the purposes of resource
allocation and performance assessment, the Group has
identified six reportable segments on a geographical basis:
Japan, USA, the PRC, Europe, Asia (excluding Japan
and the PRC) and rest of the world. The electrical home
appliances are manufactured in the Group’s manufacturing
facilities located in the PRC. The “rest of the world” segment
covers sales of electrical home appliances to customers in
Australia, Canada, South America and Africa.

7. SoEHER
AEETEEBLUERMERATE - WD BERER
HAEEREETHERABRTESBEBRHSWH
BEFRAZER—H FRBE  AEEERAERYE
BIRWES BAES - BA - 268 - FE - B - TN
(FeERARPE) REAEH - AEERNERAEEY
BHEERE - DR RS AENERAERTHR
M MEX - BERIENZES -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
(@)

For the purposes of assessing segment performance and
allocating resources between segments, the Group’s senior
executive management monitors the profit or loss, assets
and liabilities attributable to each reportable segment on the
following bases:

Segment profit or loss, assets and liabilities

Segment assets include all tangible assets and current
assets with the exception of tax balances. Segment liabilities
include trade and other payables, with the exception of
tax balances and dividends payable, attributable to the
manufacture and sales activities of the individual segments.
Segment non-current assets do not include deferred tax
assets.

Revenue and expenses are allocated to the reportable
segments with reference to sales generated by those
segments and the expenses incurred by those segments.
Segment profit or loss do not include other revenue and
other net income or loss, and the depreciation of assets not
attributable to those segments.

The measurement used for reporting segment profit is
“adjusted EBITDA” i.e. “adjusted earnings before interest,
taxes and depreciation”. To arrive at adjusted EBITDA,
the Group’s earnings are further adjusted for items not
specifically attributed to individual segments, such as other
head office or corporate administration costs.

In addition to receiving segment information concerning
adjusted EBITDA, management is provided with segment
information concerning inter-segment sales, interest income
and expense from cash balances managed directly by
the segments, depreciation and additions to non-current
segment assets used by the segments in their operations.
Inter-segment sales are priced with reference to prices
charged to external parties for similar orders.

Information regarding the Group’s reportable segments as
provided to the Group’s most senior executive management
for the purposes of resource allocation and assessment of
segment performance for the year is set out below.

MREEBRAF T —FF%H

GEMBRRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LBE®REMN)

()

7. SBER®
HEE BERERE

DHEHMEREAEEZRSETHREREABRTED X
RBE5n "*Bﬁﬁﬁﬂmﬂ%z%ﬂ B2 A mE o Bt

Zii‘EEImeTEZE.@}\EE&MT% MBI & A
EOEEEZRR  EEMRAE

oif

DHEEREMBEAVEERRDEE  BTIEERKE
BE - NHBEREBNERN D BN EEMEE ZEHMIT
EHE S REMEMNER  ETREER DGR 2 HIE
BELENRE - 2EERBEETRIERERIAERE -

WARZHEN2EZED
FXABEr] REDEL o
SFUEESEE - AR TE

il EE’J%%&EZS’“*EEEE’J
DEMERE N EREMBATME M
RBLDHMEENE -

RS EaF B2 AEA EAEEBTDA] - BIT X
B RMIERNEMZEAZRTN] - BERDAE

EBITDA AEBE 2w F s ESERA D E 2 HE (8 Efsk
DNRTERAAN) (B — P % -

BRIESABD AEEBITDA Z D EVE RN - B E IR ERR
ERARNIBHEED WA » FBEWARBEDSIRITEELER
SHEBPZERNENEEESBZIERDHIBEEZ D
EER - WEDIDHE Z BRI ELINEER N 2B -

FRRHTASBESESETREEABNUDEERLTE
DERRZERBIN T -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HEMKRERMEE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(NBMAREN)
7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 7. SDEER @
(@) Segment profit or loss, assets and liabilities (a) 7 &PiE#E - BERER (&)
(Continued)
Electrical home appliances
5REE
Asia
(excluding Japan
USA The PRC Japan Europe and the PRC) Rest of the world Total
A 8 Bk B EH(FafRERYE) tREH ait

202 020 202 2020 2021 200 202 2020 202 2020 202 020 202 2020

HKS000 | HKS000 | HKS000 | HKS0D | HKS'000 | HKS000 | HKS'000 | HKS000 | HK$000 | HKS000 | HKS000 | HKS000 | HK$000 | HKS000

AETR | AWTn | BMTr | TR | ABTR | AMTn | ARTm | RETn | BMTr | ATn | BBTn | EETR | AMTR | ARTn
Revenue from extemal customers SV P ZUA 458855 | 307322 | 21509 | 276354 | 207,000 | 278944 | 308760 | 237553 | 69774 | o784 | 32675 | 41758 | 1433612 | 1289515
Iner segment revenue RHFHIA - - S| 490450 - - - - 1192400 | 995601 - - | 4,192 | 1495071
Reportable segmentrevenue ~ EXEBEYRRL
recognised at a point in time THREHPUA 458,855 | 307322 | 798781 | 775804 | 297,000 | 218944 | 303,760 | 237953 | 1,261,874 | 1063200 | 32675 | 41798 | 3,152,034 | 2784586
Reportable segment profit THREADER
(adjusted EBITDA) (CEREBITOA) 0013 | 52 | 4T 24012 | 16167 | 242% | 16,531 20040 | 74168 | 86663 1, 3628 | 148393 | 193701
Reportable segment assets M2A3IBZ
asat 31 Decamber TREATAE - - | g | s - - - - | oaudes | 62086 - - | tom218 | 1083576
Reportable segment abiifes iM2A%18Y
252131 Dscamber TREHTEE - - | e | (1osp - - - - | oy | s - - | oose0) | 1se0eg
Additions fonon-curent FERET
seqmentassels duing heyer  SEEEREN - - | 1550 - - - - - - - - | 1550
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
mEMBRERMEE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LBE®REMN)

7.  SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 7. SEER@E
(b) Reconciliations of reportable segment (b) FAHRETHKA - B - BEREBEZHIR

revenue, profit or loss, assets and liabilities

2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT IT
Revenue PN
Reportable segment revenue Al RS SR A 3,152,934 2,784,586
Elimination of inter-segment revenue ~ PIEB5 SRUA K §5 (1,719,322) (1,495,071)
Consolidated revenue LAEWA 1,433,612 1,289,515
2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$’'000
BT T BT
Profit or loss B
Reportable segment profit ATERE 200 A 148,393 193,701
Elimination of inter-segment profits B 5B v 1) HE 58 (70,371) (81,660)
Reportable segment profit derived from {EANEBEINEE 2
Group’s external customers Al RS o EE 78,022 112,041
Other revenue and other net E AU A R B A
income/(loss) Wz, (E518) 2,721 (1,981)
Depreciation e (33,471) (33,181)
Consolidated profit before taxation REBRT AR T 47,272 76,879
2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$’'000
BT T BT IT
Assets EE
Reportable segment assets AISREDEEE 1,072,913 1,053,576
Elimination of inter-segment receivables 5B 50 & Uk BR 2K 84 (119,702) (97,497)
953,211 956,079
Current tax assets BIEARI I & 664 -
Deferred tax assets FEFRTBE B 3,000 2,739
Consolidated total assets REBEE 956,875 958,818
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AEMBRRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(ABEMREMN)

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 7.

(b) Reconciliations of reportable segment (b)
revenue, profit or loss, assets and liabilities

DEER (@)

(%)

AHRETHBA - 85 - EEREBZHR

(Continued)

2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$’000
BET T BT

Liabilities =L
Reportable segment liabilities AHESHaE (490,550) (438,049)
Elimination of inter-segment payables 305 30 & BR ZK 84 207,316 140,152
(283,234) (297,897)
Dividends payable FERTAR B, (322) (286)
Current tax liabilities BENEAtiIB B & (2,326) (5,253)
Deferred tax liabilities EEFHIBEE (163) (167)
Consolidated total liabilities REREE (286,045) (303,603)

(c) Revenue from major customers

Revenue from major customers, each of whom amounted
to 10% or more of the total revenue of the Group, is set out

() EEEFHKA

AL FHIEAE

REERXPHAEZWA -

BEPHMEAREBELKA10%

below:
2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$’'000
BT T ST T
Customer A ZEA 382,726 265,442
Customer B =FB 307,288 315,712
Customer C BEC 292,772 274,317
Customer D =2FED 159,906 180,143
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GEMBRRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(ABEREN)
8.  INCOMETAX EXPENSE 8. FISBixH
(@) Income tax has been recognised in profit or loss as (@) FrSIREEBRETR BRI T
follows:
2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT
Current tax - Hong Kong Profits Tax EDEA%{18 - F& 88
Provision for the year (note 14) FNEHE (T 14) 3,796 4,744
(Over)/under-provision in respect of BEFE (RERE) BB
prior years (319) 362
3,477 5,106
Current tax - PRC Enterprise ENEARITE - PE B EFTEH
Income Tax
Provision for the year (note 14) FRRHE (MiFE14) 3,348 8,498
Over-provision in respect of prior years Bt & [E HRRE RS (1,310) (728)
2,038 7,770
Deferred tax EEBER
Origination and reversal of temporary b= R/ EEMBEL (H:E15)
differences (note 15) (203) 785
5,312 13,661

Note:

Hong Kong Profits Tax

Under the two-tiered Profits Tax rate regime, the first
HK$2,000,000 of profits of the qualifying group entity
established in Hong Kong will be taxed at 8.25%, and profit
above that amount will be subject to the tax rate of 16.5%.
The profits of the group entities not qualifying for the two-
tiered Profit Tax rate regime will continue to be taxed at a
rate of 16.5%.

PRC Enterprise Income Tax
A subsidiary in the PRC was qualified as a high and new

technology enterprise and taxed at a preferential tax rate of
15% (2020: 15%).

MREEBRAF T —FF%H

BEE

(i)

BRNEH

REMAFFIEHENE  EEBRIUNECERERER
/) B 78 5 2,000,000 7T 4 7l 5 32 8.25% HY Bl R B - MR
BEZ BB R A AR 16.5% M B REEL o NFFA WA HIF
SREGIE 2 SEEEARETIBHEEIL 16.5% B R HF -

B EMISH

—RIRP B BARERERASTRIREE - B15%H
BEMREREF (20204F : 15%) °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AEMBRRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(BB REN)
8. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued) 8.

(b) The reconciliation between the income tax expense  (b)
and the product of profit before tax multiplied by the
applicable tax rates is as follows:

B8 H @)

TS T A B A% A N1 8 378 DA S8 P 5 o B9 R 78 2 TR 9

BRI ¢

2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT
Profit before taxation Fr A e 47,272 76,879
Notional tax on profit before taxation, &AM RERMRRAE 2
calculated at the rates applicable to Bl & M B #= T3 18
profits in the jurisdictions concerned 7,472 11,993
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses A FIER ST 2 T i s & 43 131
Tax effect of non-taxable income FEERTIMAZ BT E (633) (1,014)
Effect of temporary differences BREERFIHARCTE
not recognised 59 78
Over-provision in respect of prior years 81t & fE FREE RS (1,629) (366)
PRC dividend withholding tax H B AR B TEEE AR - 2,839
Actual tax expense BERHEL 5,312 13,661
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

9. PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

The Group’s profit for the year is stated after charging/

(crediting) the following:

9. HFE®RF
AREEAFEHEFEAA (R U TEA -

GEMBRRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LBE®REMN)

2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$'000
BET T BT
Staff costs (including directors’ BIfK (BIEESME (HE10))
remuneration (note 10))
Salaries, wages and other benefits e TEREAMER (FEE)))

(note (i) 234,719 212,426
Discretionary bonuses B R 2 TEAL 2,757 3,866
Contributions to defined contribution 5 E L FGRKETE] Z (3%

retirement plans EH 17,406 13,979

254,882 230,271
Other items HibEH
Cost of inventories sold FEHEEMA (FIFE 16 R HIFE i)

(note 16 and note (ii)) 1,261,281 1,099,136
Write-down of inventories FERE 129 442
Reversal of write-down of inventories 77 & [2] 3 (1,324) (2,807)
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEENE 508 481
Depreciation of property, ME - WERRETE

plant and equipment 32,963 32,700
Auditor’s remuneration ZE RS
— provision for the year - FAEE 700 650
— under-provision in prior year - BEFERETR 45 -
Product development costs (note (iii) 2 m 3B (M EE (i) 46,584 44,555
Obsolete moulds and toolings BRRART BHE

written off 600 7,271
Expenses relating to leases of HEREEEEHEEENEHR

low value assets (included in cost (BREEFERAN—#K

of inventories and general and AT ERH) (FEE (v)

administrative expenses) (note (iv)) 584 -

MREEBRAF T —FF%H
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HEMKRERMEE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(UBE®REN)

(i)

(i

)

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2020, COVID-19 related
government grants amounting to HK$1,635,000 have been
offset against salaries, wages and other benefits.

Cost of inventories includes approximately HK$221,488,000
(2020: HK$207,968,000) relating to staff costs and
depreciation, which are also included in the respective total
amounts disclosed separately above.

Cost of inventories also includes approximately HK$600,000
(2020: HK$7,271,000) relating to obsolete moulds and
toolings written off.

Product development costs include approximately
HK$26,848,000 (2020: HK$24,942,000) relating to staff
costs and depreciation, which are also included in the
respective total amounts disclosed separately above.

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group leases
various warehouses and carpark for its operations. Lease
contracts are entered into for fixed term of one month to
two years. Lease terms are negotiated on an individual
basis and contain a wide range of different terms and
conditions. In determining the lease term and assessing the
length of the non-cancellable period, the Group applies the
definition of a contract and determines the period for which
the contract is enforceable.

(i

FERMN @

BE2020F 12 A 31 BIEFE - Ba5E iR 30 48 B AV BUT
#HB) B 1,635,000 7T - BEHE - TEREMBHAE
8

FERABIEE TR RITE AT 221,488,000 7T (2020
& ¥ 207,968,0007T) © IMEIER EAERIFEESEE
e -

78 KA TN E 4 % ¥600,0007T (20204 &
7,271,0007T) + ERERANEARTARR -

EmFAEKABESME TR RITE 4751 26,848,000
7T (2020 4F : 75 24,942,0007T) © VBN TR 1E
BRMBSE -

BE2021F12A1 RIEFE - AEBHEEZERERE
BESAHEE HEARNETMRA—BAZMRE - A
SRFERBEEABRABEYN - S FETREA RN G
o EERERNTE AT RERRNRER - A%E
ERARMNERTHTERRORTRITHR -
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0. BENEFITS AND

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
mEMBRERMEE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LBE®REMN)

INTERESTS OF

10. ESZHNZNED

DIRECTORS
(@) The remuneration of every director is set (a) BUESHMESHIIWT :
out below:
Emoluments paid or receivable in respect of a person’s services
as a director, whether of the Company or its subsidiary undertaking
REABRES (FRRFATREFAR) RENHESEKHME
Salaries,
allowances
and benefits Discretionary  Retirement
Directors’ in kind bonuses scheme
fees e H contributions Total
we  REREN  BRZEL  BAREMEX A&t
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT T BETT BT T BRI T
Year ended 31 December 2021 Z2021 12831 AEEL
Executive directors YTES
Dr. WONG, Kin Lae Wilson (note (i) Z& &L (FisE () 188 257 350 - 795
Dr. WONG, Man Hin Raymond BB L (/) (HIE (i)

(Chairman) (note (i) 173 3,836 500 300 4,809
Mr. WONG, Ying Man John BRGULA (F1FE) (3 (i)

(Vice-Chairman) (note (ii)) 170 3,822 400 240 4,632
Mr. MOK, Kin Hing RRELE 150 2,103 280 162 2,695
Non-executive directors FETES
Dr. WONG, Kin Lae Wilson F4FIE 1 (M)

(note (i)) 9 - - - 9
Mr. XIONG, Zhengfeng BRIFUE LA (FTRE (V)

(note (iv)) - - - - -
Mr. WONG, Ying Kit David HRGEEE 150 - - - 150
Independent non-executive BYFHTES

directors
Mr. FAN, Ren Da Anthony BEkAE (V)

(note (v)) 81 - - - 81
Mr. NG, Yiu Ming (note (vi) hRmA % AE (M) 158 - - - 158
Mr. LO, Kwong Shun Wilson BEELE 210 - - - 210
Ms. LING, Kit Sum Imma BRI (M i)

(note (vii) 210 - - - 210
Mr. KO, Siu Fung Stephen B0 2181 (PEE (i)

(note (viii)) 53 - - - 53

1,552 10,018 1,530 702 13,802

MREEBRAF T —FF%H
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HEMKRERMEE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(ABEMREMN)

10. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF 10. EEPFZMER @)
DIRECTORS (Continued)

(@) The remuneration of every director is set (a) BUESHMESHIIWT : (&)
out below: (Continued)

Emoluments paid or receivable in respect of a person’s services
as a director, whether of the Company or its subsidiary undertaking

RRAREES (TREARARFATAR) RENHSRELME

Salaries,
allowances
and benefits  Discretionary Retirement
Directors’ inkind bonuses scheme
fees e B contributions Total
e ORBREN BMIEA RKREH CE

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ARTT ARTL  ABTR ARTL  BBTR

Year ended 31 December 2020 £2020F 12 A31 BEE L

Executive directors YTES
Dr. WONG, Kin Lae Wilson FLRET () (M)

(Chairman) (note (i) 200 7 350 - 557
Mr. WONG, Ying Man John HRES A (MR (i)

(note (i) 170 3,964 400 240 4774
Dr. WONG, Man Hin Raymond BB (B ()

(note (i) 170 3,727 500 300 4,697
Mr. MOK; Kin Hing Rf@f At 150 1,980 280 162 2,572
Non-executive directors FHTES
Mr. XIONG, Zhengfeng BRIFUE LA (FIRE (V)

(note (iv)) - - - - -
Mr. WONG, Ying Kit David HRERE 150 - - - 150

Independent non-executive BUFHITES

directors
Mr. LEUNG, Kai Hung Michael PRI (BEE (%)

(note (ix)) 82 - - - 82
Mr. FAN, Ren Da Anthony BIERE (EWY)

(note (v)) 210 - - - 210
Mr. NG, Yiu Ming (note (vi) RIS (M M) 210 - - - 210
Mr. LO, Kwong Shun Wilson REELE 210 - - - 210
Ms. LING, Kit Sum Imma EZD I (M i)

(note (vii) 122 - - - 122
Alternate director RES
Mr. ZHANG Yuankun (note (x) RIS (7T () - 65 - - 65

1,674 9,743 1,530 702 13,649
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

10. BENEFITS AND
DIRECTORS (Continued)

(@) The remuneration of every director is set
out below: (Continued)

INTERESTS OF

During the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020,
there was no amount paid or payable by the Group to the
directors or any of the highest paid individuals as set out
in note 11 below as an inducement to join or upon joining
the Group or as compensation for loss of office. Except
for the agreed waiver of director’s fee for the year ended
31 December 2020 and 2021 by Mr. XIONG, Zhengfeng,
there was no other arrangement under which a director
has waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during the
years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020.

Note:

(i) Dr. WONG, Kin Lae Wilson was re-designated from an
executive director to a non-executive director and ceased
to be the chairman of the Board on 10 December 2021.

(ii) Dr. WONG, Man Hin Raymond was re-designated as the
chairman of the board of directors of the Company (the

“Board”) on 10 December 2021.

(iii) Mr. WONG, Ying Man John was appointed as the vice-
chairman of the Board on 10 December 2021.

(iv) Mr. XIONG, Zhengfeng has agreed to waive his director’s
fee during the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2021.

(v) Mr. FAN, Ren Da Anthony retired on 21 May 2021.
(Vi) Mr. NG, Yiu Ming resigned on 1 October 2021.
(vii) Ms. LING, Kit Sum Imma was appointed on 1 June 2020.

(viii) Dr. KO, Siu Fung Stephen was appointed on 1 October
2021.

(ix) Mr. LEUNG, Kai Hung Michael resigned on 22 May 2020.

4] Mr. ZHANG, Yuankun resigned on 2 June 2020.

MREEBRAF T —FF%H

GEMBRRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LBE®REMN)

10. EEHNRZMER @)

(@) SUESHHMESBRINT : (@)

HZE2021 FR2020F 12 A31HIEFE  AEBEHES
MNREMESRA T 11 @SS HFMALIES
MAREERFEMARNE B A BB E - BRAREE
RERBHREHE2020F K 2021 F12 A1 HILFENE
EEeN TEEMGTHEITREKAENEHZ 2021 F R
20204 12 A 31 B ILFE R T FEN -

BT
(i) B FETHNTEEATAIENTES © W 2021 F12
A10BTBETEEESXF -

(i) BB TN2021FE12 F10R AT AALRESS([E
E2DER-

(i) BEEHEENR2021FE12 A10BELZTAESSRIEE -

(iv) BEIFIE % 4 R B AR E Z 2020 6 12 2021 £ 12 A 31 B IL4E
EMESHe -

v) SBCES AR 2021 F5 A 21 AR »

(vi) AR AR 2021 5510 B 1 BEHT -

Wiy EBLZER 202096 A1 HEM -

Vi) SLEBLER2021FE1081BET -

(ix) RS AT 202055 A 22 BEHE ©

(x) SRTISE A A 20205 6 A 2 HEHE -
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AEMBRRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(BB REN)
0. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF

DIRECTORS (Continued)

Directors’ material interests in transactions,
arrangements or contracts

(b)

Other than those disclosed in note 27(a), no significant
transactions, arrangements and contracts in relation to
the Group’s business to which the Company was a party
and in which a director of the Company and the director’s
connected party had a material interest, whether directly
or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time
during the year.

1. FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

The five highest paid individuals in the Group during the year
included three (2020: three) directors whose emoluments
are reflected in the analysis presented in note 10. The
emoluments of the remaining two (2020: two) individuals are
set out below:

10. EFHNZANER @)
b) EFEXRS X REIASETHEARFE
BRI4EE27() ERS) - RFFHFRETAIRRE - HEEAR

BRI ZARBEXRBRARREENESTHENFE
ANz (THRERXER)ARIEARS  THREHK
—FREMER o

. EUERSEHMAL
NEESUGESHMA LR BIEIALL(20204F : 3()ES -
BEZMESESHNWE10 BT 201 (2020F : 21) &=
AT ZB ST

2021 2020

HK$’000 HK$’000

BT T FEHET I

Salaries and other emoluments e K E b i 1,362 1,347
Discretionary bonuses BB RRAEAL 225 260
Retirement scheme contributions IRIRE R 185 186
1,772 1,793

The emoluments of the other two (2020: two) individuals
with the highest emoluments are within the following bands:

AR Z = E A T 21 (2020 4F : 2iL) BRI

Number of individuals

AE
2021 2020
HK$Nil — HK$ 1,000,000 B EEZ T 2 8% 1,000,000 7T 1 1
HK$1,000,001 — HK$1,500,000 F78 % 1,000,001 T2 1,500,000 7T 1 1
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12. EARNINGS PER SHARE
(a) Basic earnings per share
The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on

the profit for the year attributable to shareholders of the
Company of HK$41,960,000 (2020: HK$63,218,000)

GEMBRRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LBE®REMN)

2. BREAER
@ BRELRZREF
HEGREARFR AR D 7 R G A EE G

41,960,000 7T (2020 4F : /&% 63,218,000 7T ) MIBEF A 2
2 21T hE 19 AR 81 498,807,000 (2020 £ = 494,500,000)

and the weighted average number of ordinary shares of — EiBA% o HBAMEFHEMNFTE S ENT ¢
498,807,000 (2020: 494,500,000) shares in issue during the
year. The weighted average number of ordinary shares is
calculated as follows:
2021 2020
’000 ‘000
T8 T
Issued ordinary shares at 1 January A1 A1 HEBET2EBRK 494,500 494,500
Effect of share options exercised TR BB A 2 7228 (B 51 23(a)(i))
(note 23(a)(ii) 4,307 -
Weighted average number of W12 A 31 Bz E @A niE i
ordinary shares at 31 December 498,807 494,500

(b) Diluted earnings per share

The calculation of diluted earnings per share is based on
the profit for the year attributable to shareholders of the
Company of HK$41,960,000 (2020: HK$63,218,000)
and the weighted average number of ordinary shares of
500,245,000 (2020: 496,278,000) shares (diluted). The
weighted average number of ordinary shares (diluted) is
calculated as follows:

(b) BREBERF

HEEREBERFZ AR B %R E (G A F E 5 A
41,960,000 7t (2020 4F : &% 63,218,000 7T) K& hniE F A%
#500,245,000 (2020 £F : 496,278,000) (#8) Limpk o &
ARS8 T E R ENT ¢

2021 2020
’000 ‘000
T % Tz
Weighted average number of ordinary 712 A 31 B 2 E i 2 iiEF A%k
shares at 31 December 498,807 494,500
Effect of deemed issue of shares BB R B EREETESIATRE
under the Company’s share option WIEBRITIR G 2 22 (MizE22)
scheme for nil consideration (note 22) 1,438 1,778
Weighted average number of ordinary 712 A 31 B Z itz
shares (diluted) at 31 December Do RS () 500,245 496,278

FREBEEARAR —ZT——FFH
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AEMBRRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(ABEMREMN)

3. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13. ¥Y¥  BERRERFEAEEE
AND RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS
Buildings Furniture,
held for fixtures and
Construction ownuse Plantand equipment Motor Right-of-use
inprogress  ¥AEA  machinery B vehicles  Sub-total assets Total
HEIR  ZEEY BEREE LEREE RE Nt EREEE &it
HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000  HKS000  HK$'000  HKS000  HK$000  HKS000
BETr A% Tr  ABTr BT BBt AT AT AT
Cost R
At 1 January 2020 R2020E1 18 9610 176385 212,225 204046 13723 615989 20297 636,286
Exchange adjustments HaRE 295 8,731 8,932 9,486 457 27,901 888 28789
Additions #m 9,904 - 990 4,321 202 15,507 - 15,507
Transfers &y (14,562) - - 14,562 - - - -
Disposals HE/BE - ®) (2666 (75460 (261)  (78.401) - (78.401)
At 31 Decernber 2020 R2020£12 A31H 5247 185108 219,481 156,949 14,211 580,996 21185 602,181
At 1 January 2021 R2021E1 B 18 5247 185108 219481 156,949 14,211 580,996 21185 602,181
Exchange adjustments AR 101 4,882 5,261 5,464 243 15,951 496 16,447
Additions #m 21,437 - 6,842 3,768 140 32,187 - 32,187
Transfers &y (25,200 - 12,105 13,095 - - - -
Disposals e /B - - (2,697) (4,041) (910) (7,648) - (7,648)
At 31 December 2021 R2021E12 A31H 1585 189990 240992 175235 13684 621486 21,681 643 167
Accumulated depreciation 2itE
At 1 January 2020 R2020E1 18 - 1BT9 164902 119932 9684 446297 1,324 457601
Exchange adjustments HEEE - 7,508 6,502 5,103 384 19,497 547 20,044
Charge for the year TEEME - 2,101 6,897 22,607 1,095 32,700 481 33,181
Disposals E/BE - @) (2391 (67,885) (235 (70519 - (70,519)
At 31 December 2020 R2020512 A31H - 161380 175910 79,757 10928 427,975 12362 440327
At 1 January 2021 2021 E1B1H - 161380 175910 79,757 10928 427,975 12352 440327
Exchange adjustments HaRE - 4,221 3,698 3,188 210 1,317 312 11,629
Charge for the year RERME - 2,178 6,105 23,728 952 32,963 508 33471
Disposals HE/BE - - (2.427) (3,598) (729) (6,752) - (6,752
At 31 Decerber 2021 R2021E12 A31H - 167779 183286 103077 11,361 465,503 13172 478675
Net carrying value REFE
At 31 December 2021 R2021E12 A31R 1585 22211 57,706 72,158 2323 155983 8509 164492
At 31 December 2020 R2020E12 A31H 5,47 23728 43571 77,192 3283 153001 8833 161854
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3. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

AND RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (Continued)

Right-of-use assets represent leasehold land under medium-
term leases. The Group owns several industrial and office
buildings where its manufacturing facilities and office
premises are primarily located. The Group is the registered
owner of these property interests, including the underlying
leasehold lands. The leasehold land components of these
owned properties are presented separately only if the
payments made can be allocated reliably.

GEMBRRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LBE®REMN)

13. Y% BERREREAEEE®)

ERAEEERTHEETHNEED - AEEHRALET
EMPARE - HEERE IR DG EBLRZRAKN
B ARERmEYFEED (BRAREE L) Mm%
BA - BEMXNHRIBRAAIEDER  ELEAME
MBEETHE D T ERES

The analysis of carrying value of properties is as follows: YIHBREFESTAT ¢
2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Medium-term leases FHIEE
—in Hong Kong - B8 3,614 4,503
- outside Hong Kong - BAEASN 27,106 28,058
30,720 32,561
Representing: #aPK
Buildings held for own use BEE LY 22,211 23,728
Right-of-use assets FREEE 8,509 8,833
30,720 32,561

FREBEEARAR —ZT——FFH
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AEMBRRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(ABEMREMN)

[4. INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 14.

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

Current taxation in the consolidated statement of financial

position represents:

RiEE PR R R FEHR

AR 2 BVEIPT S :

2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Provision for the year (note 8(a)) REERE (MTFE8@)
- Hong Kong Profits Tax - BAMEH 3,796 4,744
- PRC Enterprise Income Tax - REEEPTIER 3,348 8,498
7,144 13,242
Provisional tax paid FERBIZ
- Hong Kong Profits Tax - BBFEH (4,224) (2,343)
- PRC Enterprise Income Tax - PR EMETH (1,107) (5,974)
(5,331) 8,317)
1,813 4,925
Balance of income tax BAEFEASHBESES
relating to prior years (151) 328
1,662 5,253
Represented by: E2
Current tax assets BENEAfRIE & = 664 -
Current tax liabilities BNEATIE & (& (2,326) (5,253)
(1,662) (5,253)
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GEMBRRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(ABEREN)
I5. DEFERRED TAX I5. EIEBIIE
Analysis of deferred tax assets and liabilities are as follows: BERIBEEERBESTHT -
2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT
Deferred tax assets EETR IR E = 3,000 2,739
Deferred tax liabilities BEERIBEE (163) (167)
2,837 2,572

The components of deferred tax assets/(liabilities) recognised
in the consolidated statement of financial position and the
movements during the year are as follows:

AEERGAMBRARFORB EEHEEE /(8
) AR R A BB BT -

Depreciation

allowances
in excess of
the related Other
depreciation temporary
Taxlosses HFHRITEEKX differences Total
HIEEE REBITE HOEEgER &5t
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT BT T BT T
Deferred tax arising from: JEEF B 2 EARH :
At 1 January 2020 20201 A1H 21 (130) 3,360 3,251
Exchange adjustments HmEs) s w2 - - 106 106
Charged to profit pRTEIE R (B3t 8(a)
or loss (note 8(a)): (21) (8) (756) (785)
At 31 December 2020 R20204F 12 A31 H - (138) 2,710 2,572
At 1 January 2021 R2021F1A1H - (138) 2,710 2,572
Exchange adjustments HmEe) o2 - - 62 62
(Charged)/credited to (30BR) FHATEIB2E
profit or loss (note 8(a)): (MI7E8(a)) - 9) 212 203
At 31 December 2021 R2021F12 A31H - (147) 2,984 2,837

FREBEEARAR —ZT——FFH
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AEMBRRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(ABEMREMN)

16. INVENTORIES 6. =FE
2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$'000
BET T BT
Raw materials R R 91,572 87,462
Work in progress A 25,884 22,451
Finished goods EERK &R 102,062 66,857
219,518 176,770
The analysis of the amount of inventories recognised as an FEZELAMEBRAERALT ¢
expense is as follows:
2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
Carrying amount of inventories sold FEHEREE 1,262,476 1,101,501
Write-down of inventories FEmE 129 442
Reversal of write-down of inventories 17 & el {& [a] (1,324) (2,807)
1,261,281 1,099,136

During the year, certain aged inventories were sold, and
as a result, a reversal of write-down of inventories of
HK$1,324,000 (2020: HK$2,807,000) has been recognised
and included in cost of inventories sold.

14

RERN BFTREGEEEYL AU GFERERRLEE
1,324,000 7T (2020 4F : ##£2 807,000 7T ) B AER T AE

AHEFEMRA
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mEMBRERMEE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(B REN)

7. TRADEAND OTHER RECEIVABLES 17. EZREAMEWRRRK
2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$’'000
BT T BRI
Trade receivables E 5 R K 301,224 294,926
Other receivables H U BR 5K 17,315 21,230
Deposits and prepayments A& RTE IR 5,860 9,405
324,399 325,561

(@) Ageing analysis

The ageing analysis of trade receivables as of the end of the

reporting period, based on invoice date, is as follows:

(@) BRERDAMT

RRERRE B ERMESFIZEZ BB R D

T

2021 2020

HK$’000 HK$'000

BT T BT T

Within 1 month 1{EAR 92,112 85,285

More than 1 month @@ E AR 3EA

but less than 3 months 161,443 157,284
More than 3 months HBiE3EARLR12MEA

but less than 12 months 47,565 52,208

Over 12 months wRiE 1218 A 104 149

301,224 294,926

The Group’s trading terms with customers are mainly on ZAEEHEEFHEZIEKREIENEERER - FEHAE

credit. The credit term generally ranged from 30 to 120
days. Further details on the Group’s credit policy are set out

in note 26(a).

FREBEEARAR —ZT——FFH
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HEMKRERMEE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(ABEMREMN)

17 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 17. ESKHEWERR (@)
(Continued)

(b)  Trade receivables that are not impaired (b) REBEZESEWRERER

The ageing analysis of trade receivables that are neither 2B ERMENE FEBERR 2R DTAT -
individually nor collectively considered to be impaired is as

follows:
2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Neither past due nor impaired 2 B HASORE 244,883 256,247
Within 1 month past due #HE D1 @A 41,006 34,355
More than 1 month w AR 1 B AE DR 3EA
but less than 3 months past due 14,389 4,324
More than 3 months BRI EAE LR 12(EA
but less than 12 months past due 842 -
Over 12 months past due #HAER A 12 1@ A 104 -
Amounts past due but not impaired ~ #EHi& FE{RRERIE 56,341 38,679
301,224 294,926
() Currency analysis () BB

The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade receivables are  AREEE 5 FERE XEEEEIN T EKEHE -
denominated in the following currencies:

2021 2020

HK$’000 HK$’000

BT T P T IT
HK$ BT 13 -
United States Dollars (“‘US$") EIH 194,099 218,468
British Pounds (“GBP”) e 45,881 9,406
Renminbi (‘RMB”) AR 61,231 67,052
Total =X 301,224 294,926
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mEMBRERMEE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(ABEREN)

18. BANKAND CASH BALANCES 18. RITRIFESEER
2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$’000
BET T BT

Time deposits with maturity 31{E B AE|EARYE HBTF X

within 3 months 163,372 206,728
Cash at bank and in hand RITER MRS 81,430 85,166
244,802 291,894

As at 31 December 2021, the bank and cash balances of
the Group denominated in RMB amounted to HK$8,224,000
(2020: HK$2,575,000). Conversion of RMB into foreign
currencies is subject to the PRC’s Foreign Exchange Control
Regulations and Administration of Settlement, Sale and
Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations.

R2021F 12 A31H @ AEBUAREENRITNES
4EER BB 8,224,000 7T (2020 4F : B #2,575,0007T) © A
R W ¥ BN BB <7 R B A HNE B BRI B ) FNCAETE - 85

EMSREEZGR) -

19. TRADEAND OTHER PAYABLES 19. HB5REMELER
2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BEET T
Trade payables (note a) Z Z MR (H3Ea) 240,097 241,002
Accrued charges and other payables &1 2 F3 & E b FE{TBRFX 43,137 56,805
283,234 297,897

The above balances are expected to be settled within one
year.

FREBEEARAR —ZT——FFH
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AEMBRRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(UBE®REN)

9. TRADEAND OTHER PAYABLES (Continued) 9.

Note: BdRE -

(a) The ageing analysis of trade payables as of the end of the  (a)
reporting period, based on invoice date, is as follows:

B 5 R EARMARR (®)

RIEPRE ZRNFFIZERABRZREDITT

2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$ 000
BT BT T
Within 1 month 1EAR 54,133 86,297
More than 1 month but less BE1EAELRIEA
than 3 months 160,096 145,673
More than 3 months but less B3 EAELK1218A
than 12 months 23,300 7,602
Over 12 months FRim 1218 A 2,568 1,520
240,097 241,092
() The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade payables are  (b) AEEE FEMNEROEEEEN TIIEEE -
denominated in the following currencies:
2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT BT T
HK$ BT 17,568 30,828
us$ = 39,716 62,498
Euro BRT 637 403
RMB AREE 182,176 147,363
Total CEil 240,097 241,092

20. DEFINED CONTRIBUTION RETIREMENT  20.
PLANS

SRERFRAKETE

The Group contributes to defined contribution retirement
plans which are available for eligible employees in the PRC
and Hong Kong.

Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations in the PRC, the
Group has joined defined contribution retirement schemes
for the employees arranged by local government labour and
security authorities (the “PRC Retirement Schemes”). The
Group makes contributions to the PRC Retirement Schemes
at the applicable rates based on the amounts stipulated
by the local government organisations. Upon retirement,
the local government labour and security authorities are
responsible for the payment of the retirement benefits to the
retired employees.
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MPIASE TR MR ERFCRA S ([PERBAKEE ) -
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REFBIGETR - RIKTR - EHBUT S ERIEIPIR B RIERK
B T fRKER -
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20. DEFINED CONTRIBUTION RETIREMENT

PLANS (Continued)

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund scheme
(the “MPF Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance (Chapter 485 of the laws of Hong Kong)
for employees employed under the jurisdiction of Hong Kong
Employment Ordinance (Chapter 57 of the laws of Hong
Kong) (the “Ordinance”). The MPF Scheme is a defined
contribution retirement plan administered by independent
trustees. Under the MPF Scheme, the employer and the
employees are each required to make contributions to the
plan at 5% of the employees’ relevant income, subject to a
cap of monthly relevant income of HK$30,000.

At 31 December 2021, certain employees of the Group had
completed the required number of years of service under
the Ordinance and are eligible for long service payments on
termination of their employment. The Group is only liable
to make such payments when the termination meets the
required circumstances specified in the Ordinance and the
employees’ entitlement is not covered by the aforesaid
provident funds. At 31 December 2021, the Group’s
contributions to the MPF Scheme and the accrued interest
thereon exceeded the potential liabilities should the required
circumstances specified in the Ordinance be met.

During the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2021,
the Group had no forfeited contributions under the PRC
Retirement Scheme and MPF Scheme and which may
be used by the Group to reduce the existing level of
contributions. There were also no forfeited contributions
available at 31 December 2020 and 2021 under the PRC
Retirement Scheme and MPF Scheme which may be used
by the Group to reduce the contribution payable in future
years.

21.  BANKING FACILITIES

At 31 December 2021, the Group had unsecured revolving
banking facilities of HK$13,150,000 (2020: HK$68,360,000).
The banking facilities include documentary letters of credit,
trust receipt, bill payables, trade loans, trade guarantee and
corporate credit card. The amount utilised by the Group at
31 December 2021 under these facilities was HK$Nil (2020:
HK$54,000).

MREEBRAF T —FF%H

GEMBRRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LBE®REMN)

20. REMFCRAREEE)

AEERBCRBIERTBERT IR (FREDIFE4855)
RECEBRERBED) (BBEOIFES7E) ([#RH]]) RDEER
REZZENRELE —HRHMELESHE ([ BRESE
B ZuEeHImBYGERESERE - RERES
2 rEENEERHASARERABH ©5% REES
SR Fre LRRE A% 30,0007T -

f£2021 12 H31H - AREMEH E IHRBFHEE
ZROIMBRTE  CHEAPZERUZERBRES - A
MEMIEFIEEZBRET AEBEAN 2 8EERZET
ABZERETREINERBRBENER - EMEKE
UGG 2 B TEER - AEEE2021F12 A1 BAERER
FrEFPRETZRIESREIRECETERE -

HZE2020F 2021 F 12 31 HILFE - AEBWERES
BlRIRET &I R TE € 5T 8 M S WA K - REE A F A
5 LR UARR R IR B KT o 722020 F % 2021 F 12 A
318 NEENEA AR RREE RS EKOPRE
KT8 RoaTE SR 82 UHR -

21. BITEEHEE

MH2021F12A31 8 - AEBRRTES 2 EAEKBER
S 4 5 7 #13,150,000 7T (2020 4F : 7% # 68,360,000
TL) c RO ZEEREUARNER - i BHE
B -BHERKEDER - NEBMK2021F12 431 HIE
A LR ITEEREN AEBZT L (20204 : B 54,000
JL) °
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GEMBRRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(UBE®REN)

22. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

Equity-settled share option scheme

The Company operates a share option scheme which was
adopted on 6 June 2003 for the purpose to give eligible
participants incentives or rewards for their contribution or
potential contribution to the Group (Refer to the Report of
the Directors in the Annual Report for the details of the share
option scheme).

(a) Details of the movements of the Company’s
outstanding share options, which have no specific
vesting conditions, held by directors, employees and
other eligible participants during the year ended 31
December 2021 and 2020 are as follows:

22. LURGAEBNIGTRS
DS EENERESE

KABEE—ER2003F6 A6 BRI MNBRERE - it
SIS EIRH RSB AMEL B s AT e AL B IER
HERtizAEWR2HE (BEEHE  #2HFRTESERSE
FREEARIERTE) ©

(@ HZE2020FM2021F12A3MBLEFE EF &
ERHMEERLEERENARTLERTRE
B RITEERENSEBFEOT

Number of share options
EREHA
Total share
options
granted
at initial date
and existed at
31 December
2021
RAHAY  Outstanding Outstanding at
#HKE  at1January 31 December
H2021 & 2021 Exercised 2021
Type of Date of Exercisable Exercise 12A31H 2021 F during the 2021 F
participates grant period price BEH 1818 year 12A31H
SNEER REBH AT 768 BERE RITHE RERTE RITHE
HK$
ok
Directors 20 July 2012 20 July to 2012 to 0.69 17,900,000 7,200,000 (6,000,000) 1,200,000
) 2012F7H20H 19 July 2022
2012467 A20HE
2022F7A19H
Employees 20 July 2012 20 July to 2012 to 0.69 24,380,000 950,000 (700,000) 250,000
B8 2012F7H20H 19 July 2022
2012 7H208%
2022%7RH19H
42,280,000 8,150,000 (6,700,000) 1,450,000
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22.  SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued)

Equity-settled share option scheme (Continued)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
mEMBRERMEE

(a) Details of the movements of the Company’s
outstanding share options, which have no specific
vesting conditions, held by directors, employees and
other eligible participants during the year ended 31
December 2021 and 2020 are as follows: (Continued)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(BVERREN)

22. URGAEBNINARS @)
DESEENERERE (8

(@) A ZE2020FFM2021F 12831 BILFE  EE &
ERHMEERLEERENARTLERTRE
BRI RITEERENSESFBOT  (B)

Number of share options
iRz
Total share
options
granted
atinitial date
and existed at
31 December
2020
s B Outstanding Outstanding at
Rk at 1 January 31 December
42020 F 2020 Exercised 2020
Type of Date of Exercisable Exercise 12H31H K 20206 during the #2020
participates grant period price PeRi:o) 1A1H year 12A31H
20E5ER) FiLAE AT Byl BEEARE KT RERTE KT
HKS
Yt
Directors 20 July 2012 20 July to 2012 to 0.69 17,900,000 7,200,000 - 7,200,000
EE 2012F7H20H 19 July 2022
20126 7H200%
2022F7A19H
Employees 20 July 2012 20 July to 2012 to 0.69 24,380,000 950,000 - 950,000
BB 2012F7H20H 19 July 2022
201272082
2022%7RH19H
42,280,000 8,150,000 - 8,150,000
FMREEBRRAR —T - —FFF 121
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HEMKRERMEE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

%13 %100
22. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued) 22. LR AERHNINRS @)

LIRS AR B R & ()

Equity-settled share option scheme (Continued)

FERE 2 B E MIMEFITEET

(b) The number and weighted average exercise prices of  (b)
share options are as follows:

2021 2020
Weighted Weighted
average average
exercise Number of exercise Number of
price share options price share options
InREFE HB IR e IR BNk E
TEE ZHE 7B ZHE
HK$ ’000 HK$ ‘000
ik TR e T
Outstanding at the FHARITEE
beginning of the year 0.6900 8,150,000 0.6900 8,150,000
Exercised during the year ~ AFEE1T{E 0.6900 (6,700,000) - -
Lapsed during the year REE T - - _ _
Outstanding at the end REFIERITE
of the year 0.6900 1,450,000 0.6900 8,150,000
Exercisable at the end NEFIEAIATE
of the year 0.6900 1,450,000 0.6900 8,150,000

The options outstanding at 31 December 2021 had an
exercise price of HK$0.69 (2020: HK$0.69) and a weighted
average remaining contractual life of 0.55 years (2020: 1.55
years).

During the year ended 31 December 2021, share options
of 6,700,000 were exercised and resulted in 6,700,000
ordinary shares being issued with proceeds of approximately
HK$4,623,000. The related weighted average price at the
time of exercise was HK$1.11.

No options were exercised during the year ended 31
December 2020.
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R2021F 12 31 BARITFBRE Z1TTHEAB,0.697T
(20204 : &% 0.697T) MINEF I8 TRAFHR0.55F
(20204 : 1.554F) °

HZE2021F12 A31 B IEFE - B771$6,700,000% fE A% -
B2 E176,700,000 f% & @K o 40788 4,623,000 © 171
Br BB INAE B A B 11T -
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22.  SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued)

Equity-settled share option scheme (Continued)

(c) Fair value of share options and assumptions

The fair value of services received in return for share options
granted is measured by reference to the fair value of share
options granted. The estimate of the fair value of the share
options granted is measured based on Black-Scholes
pricing model. The fair value measurement is categorised
within level 3. The contractual life of the share option is used
as an input into this model. Expectations of early exercise
are incorporated into the Black-Scholes pricing model.

Fair value of share options and assumptions:

GEMBRRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LBE®REMN)

22. URGAEBNINARS @)
DESEENERERE (8

(0 BEEzAFERER

SR LB REME S 2 R 2 R FETISE AR LB RE
RFEMGE - IR EBREZ AR FEDIZEHES
FHE o RFEADEIFE - BREZANFRIERIIR
B 2B AR - BRREFTENEAREHFER -

B2 A HERER

Date of grant
BT HH

20 July 2012
20127H20H

Fair value at measurement date RErE2 B8 AFE HK$0.0929
Share price i (& HK$0.6900
Exercise price BB FIK$0.6900
Expected volatility (expressed as TEEDR IR (AZEER

weighted average volatility T8 T 3% 7 BT A N

used in the modelling under FHRIERT)

the Black-Scholes pricing model) 33.073%
Option life (expressed as weighted BB B (AR ERIER

average life used in the modelling I8 T a%EFT R hntE

under the Black-Scholes FHRIERT)

pricing model) 3 years
Expected dividends TEHARR B 6.687%
Risk-free interest rate (based on fmE AR (R 3F

3-year Hong Kong Fund INERESES)

Exchange Notes) 0.182%

The expected volatility is based on the historical volatility
(calculated based on the weighted average remaining life
of the share options), adjusted for any expected changes
to future volatility based on publicly available information.
Expected dividends are based on historical dividends.
Changes in the subjective input assumptions could materially
affect the fair value estimate.

There were no market conditions associated with the share
option grants.

MREEBRAF T —FF%H

T HAIR 08 J0 1% 48 1E R 08 (R 8 A 2 D 19 R R 4 B &t
B)FTE  URBREBELAFAIGENERRZKENENES
EHAE - BHBRENIBEZREFE - TBARKIA
BB HAFEZGTEREATE

PR 2 R IS AR A ER
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HEMKRERMEE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(UBE®REN)

23. SHARE CAPITAL, RESERVES AND 23. EX - - @#ERRE

DIVIDENDS

(@) Share capital @ KX
(i) Issued share capital (i) ERITRA
2021 2020
Amount Amount
Number of ot L] Number of &5
shares HK$’000 shares HK$’000
R E BT T fxiEgi= ST T
Ordinary shares, issued EER '  B&TRAR:
and fully paid:
At 1 January »1A1H 494,499,860 462,333 494,499,860 462,333
Shares issued under share 2417 7 B IRRERS 19
option scheme 6,700,000 5,245 - -
At 31 December »12 A31H 501,199,860 467,578 494,499,860 462,333

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive
dividends as declared from time to time and are entitled to
one vote per share at meetings of the Company. All ordinary
shares rank equally with regard to the Company’s residual
assets.

(i) Shares issued under share option scheme

During the year ended 31 December 2021, options were
exercised to subscribe for 6,700,000 ordinary shares of the
Company at a total cash consideration of HK$4,623,000.

No options were exercised during the year ended 31
December 2020.

(iii) Terms of unexpired and unexercised share
options at the end of the reporting period

EERFAEABRTBRERMEIROKRE - AHENARE
Eez LRER—RRERR - IA T BEREREERIR
BEHMERFHA -

(i) BRERTZIRSG

HZE2021F12 A31 BIEFE - BT 6,700,000 %
NEIE B - AR(E BB 4,623,000 7T °
HZE2020F 12 A31 HILFE » RE/TFEERHE -

(i) R|ERRRGEEB 2 RAPRRTELOBRE

Number of share options

. . . . BREZ#E
Exercise period Exercise price
1T TEEE 2021 2020
20 July 2012 to 19 July 2022 HK$0.690
20127 A20HZE2022F7 A19H 71 0.690 7T 1,450,000 8,150,000

Each option entitles the holder to subscribe for one ordinary
share in the Company. Further details of these options are
set out in note 22.
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mEMBRERMEE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(ABEREN)
23. SHARE CAPITAL, RESERVES AND 23. ¥& - #ERERE @)
DIVIDENDS (Continued)
(b) Dividends by KR
(i) Dividends payable to shareholders of the (i) REERMARBEARDTRREN
Company attributable to the year
2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Interim dividend declared and EEMRIRE 2 H
paid of 2 HK cents per f& 8 AT EBAREE 210
ordinary share (20204 : HREE BB 24L) "
(2020: 2 HK cents per
ordinary share) * 10,024 9,890
Final dividend proposed after the RS BIRIE 12 2 A H
end of the reporting period of & B AT EBREE 410
4 HK cents per ordinary share (20204 : HFREEBPBEE 410)
(2020: 4 HK cents per
ordinary share) 20,048 19,780
Special dividend proposed after the R ¥R&E EIRIZEH 2157
end of the reporting period of &% B AT E BB Z
nil HK cents per ordinary share (20204 : AR EBAREE 21L)
(2020: 2 HK cents per
ordinary share) - 9,890
30,072 39,560

300,000 share options were exercised after the announce
date of interim dividend of 2021 but before the latest date
to qualify for interim dividend of 2021. As result, there
are 300,000 ordinary shares difference compare with the

announced interim report of 2021, which is entitled interim
dividend of 2021 amounted to HK$6,000.

The final and special dividends proposed after the end of the
reporting period have not been recognised as liabilities at the

end of the reporting period.

FREBEEARAR —ZT——FFH

* 300,000 J& BB i g2 2021 FHRHI B A B EIEEAEEE
1BER 2021 FHEAR SR &EZ B ZAITTE - Bt - BE
AFHY 2021 AR BRERE AR L + 5 300,000 % I imAR = 58 -
Al Z AP HIRR B 2021 F A7 6,000 7T ©

RBERRREZEMRE 2RISR S R
AERRAIE -
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GEMBRRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(VBB REM)
23. SHARE CAPITAL, RESERVES AND

DIVIDENDS (Continued)
Dividends (Continued)

(b)
(i) Dividends payable to shareholders of the
Company attributable to the previous financial
year, approved and paid during the year

23. EBXR - RERREE)
(b) KE@E)
(i) RBAEEENRERAATREEERERERE

EHER Y

2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT IT
Final dividend in respect of the BEFERPREEAFEDIER
previous financial year, approved S BRI B 410
and paid during the year, of (20204 : HFREEBPBEE 410)
4 HK cents per ordinary share
(2020: 4 HK cents per
ordinary share) 20,036 19,780
Special dividend in respect of the BEFEFREBERFECIER
previous financial year, approved S AFRIEBREE 21
and paid during the year, of (20204 : HFRREBPBEZ(L)
2 HK cents per ordinary share
(2020: nil HK cents per
ordinary share) 10,018 -
30,054 19,780
(¢)  Nature and purpose of reserves () REZHEREN
(i) Exchange reserve (i) BE RS

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign exchange
differences arising from the translation of the financial
statements of foreign operations. The reserve is dealt with in
accordance with the accounting policy set out in note 4(b).
(i) Capital reserve

The capital reserve comprises the fair value of the actual
or estimated number of unexercised share options granted
to employees of the Group and other eligible persons

recognised in the accordance with the accounting policy
adopted for share-based payments in note 4(p).

BRI A B(LBINRR 2B MBS B SMNE
ZR o FERBENSTTHREMT 40 BIE -

(i) EBEXRHE
IRAE B IEIRIBEE SHBOR M L 4(0) RAAR AN BERE T

NAEEREMAERALTZEBERAFRITEBRER
ENRTERR °
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23. SHARE CAPITAL, RESERVES AND
DIVIDENDS (Continued)

(c)  Nature and purpose of reserves (Continued)

(iii)  PRC statutory reserve

Pursuant to the laws and regulations governing the PRC
enterprises, certain of the Group’s PRC subsidiaries, which
are wholly foreign-owned enterprises, are required to allocate
at least 10% of their after-tax profit but before dividend
distribution to general reserve until the reserve has reached
50% of their registered capital. The general reserve can only
be used, upon approval by the relevant authority, to offset
accumulated losses or increase capital. Appropriation to
general reserve during the year amounted to approximately
HK$3,632,000 (2020: HK$1,693,000).

(d)

At 31 December 2021, the aggregate amount of reserves
available for distribution to shareholders of the Company
was HK$43,037,000 (2020: HK$62,169,000). After the
end of the reporting period, the directors proposed a final
dividend of 4 HK cents (2020: 4 HK cents) per ordinary
share and a special dividend of nil HK cents (2020: 2 HK
cents) per ordinary share totaling HK$20,048,000 (2020:
HK$29,670,000). These dividends have not been recognised
as liabilities at the end of the reporting period.

(e)

The Group’s primary objectives when managing capital
are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, so that it can continue to provide returns for
shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders, by pricing
products and services commensurately with the level of risk
and by securing access to finance at a reasonable cost.

Distributability of reserves

Capital management

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its
capital structure to maintain a balance between the higher
shareholder returns and the advantages and security
afforded by a sound capital position, and makes judgements
to the capital structure in light of changes in economic
conditions.

MREEBRAF T —FF%H

GEMBRRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LBE®REMN)

23. EBEX - REERRE @)
() RBEZIHEERBWNGE)
(i) PEEERE

KBRPREZEEMETHCEZER - AEBZHENE
NRIBIINEBERE  BIE&RD10% D 2 RERFDEE
TEHEE EEZRBEIMELANS0% AL - TRHEE
AUEEHERIERRKHEREEBIIENER - AF
ENiiE L MG EEEN RSB 3,632,000 7T (2020 4F :
751,693,000 7T) °

(d) FAIDEEE

MR2021F12 A1 HRFH AN TARABIRE 2 EESE
778 43,037,000 7T (2020 F : & #62,169,0007T ) » B
MEHKRE  EBEET RSB RIS B 410
(2020 4F : B 41l) RS I BARSS B 28 2L (2020
& B2l - A B 20,048,000 7T (2020 4F : B #
29,670,00070) » RIREHIRELRERERSEE -

() EXEHE
AEEEABEATERANAREREB Z HELEY
e DASEE AR AE 1 AR SRR A B 3R I TR EL A AR A A 138
EEF2% - DAZE RER RERBKT R Z BRERE RN E
RAZZERES

A T B AR T E A A L T S E R
R RIFRERRHEABERRR - RAEMHER TEY
BRI REB 2 LI -
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AEMBRRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(UBE®REN)

23. SHARE CAPITAL, RESERVES AND
DIVIDENDS (Continued)

(e) Capital management (Continued)

Consistent with industry practice, the Group monitors its
capital structure on the basis of a net debt-to-adjusted
capital ratio. For this purpose the Group defines net debt
as total debt (which includes trade and other payables) plus
unaccrued proposed dividends. Adjusted capital comprises
all components of equity less unaccrued proposed
dividends.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group’s
strategy, which was unchanged from 2020, was to maintain
the net debt-to-adjusted capital ratio at reasonable level.
In order to maintain or adjust the ratio, the Group may
adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, issue
new shares, return capital to shareholders, raise new debt
financing or sell assets to reduce debt.

The net debt-to-adjusted capital ratio at 31 December 2021
and 2020 was as follows:

23. EBEX - REERRE @)

(e) EXETEE(E)
HITEEM - AEEGLFARYLCHEERLER

Hib AR R RSB ) TR R B R - &
ABENBEMAEDN T BT ZRIRERS -

#H1E2021F12 A31 BIEFE © A& E 2 KRB FE 2020 F
— > REFREFEEEFARKRANEGIEKE - BT #E
SRR NEE AR AREEIRN FRE RS « 31T
A% REIRATRE SEMEERERNTEEEN
BAMEIR ©

2021 % K 202012 A 31 H 2 /F B B L&A R AN,
T -

2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$’000
BET T BET T

Current liabilities: RENEE
Trade and other payables 25 REMEIRR 283,234 297,897
Add: Proposed dividends o0 ERRIREERR S 20,048 29,670
Net debt B8EFE 303,282 327,567
Total equity B 670,830 655,215
Less: Proposed dividends B BRI ERR R (20,048) (29,670)
Adjusted capital BAEER 650,782 625,545
Net debt-to-adjusted capital ratio & & FE2 & IR ZA< A9 Lt 4 47% 52%
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23. SHARE CAPITAL, RESERVES AND
DIVIDENDS (Continued)
(e) Capital management (Continued)

The only externally imposed capital requirement is that for
the Group to maintain its listing on the Stock Exchange it
has to have a public float of at least 25% of the shares.

The Company receives a report from the share registrars on
substantial share interests showing the non-public float and
it demonstrates continuing compliance with the 25% limit
throughout the year. As at 31 December 2021, 70% (2020:
69%) of the shares were in public hands.

24. COMMITMENTS

Capital commitments outstanding at 31 December 2021 not
provided for in the consolidated financial statements were as
follows:

GEMBRRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LBE®REMN)

23. EBEX - REERRE @)

(e) EXETEE(E)
ME—EONEBIE I E AR EKE - BEAREE AR IR
LW ERARBREVEZDES25% WIRG °

AEEWREIREREFMENRE AR RIEAFET
MARERNDER  WAERPZAREFINEET25%H
R o 702021 F 12 H31 B » RFRIFB 70% (20204 : 69%)
HIAR D o

24. ARIE

7R2021F 12 A 31 B4RE MG E 2 B IRE AR E A%
W

2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T
Contracted for: B4
- Purchase of equipment and moulds - BEE R #HMER 1,257 4,454
25. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS 25. REHEERH
The Group as lessee AEBEREEA

The Group regularly entered into short-term leases for
warehouses and carpark. As at 31 December 2021, the
portfolio of short-term leases is similar to the portfolio of
short-term leases to which the short-term lease expense
disclosed in note 9.

FREBEEARAR —ZT——FFH

AEETFHRIRERISHSHEHELD - R 2021512 A
1A EHHEESENEITHENEREEERNE
IR EAS ML
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GEMBRRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(VBB REM)
26. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks: credit risk, concentration risk, liquidity risk, interest
rate risk and foreign currency risk. The Group’s overall risk
management programme focuses on the unpredictability of
financial markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse
effects on the Group’s financial performance.

(@)

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to bank
and cash balances and trade receivables. The maximum
exposure to credit risk is represented by the carrying amount
of each financial asset in the consolidated statement of
financial position.

Credit risk and concentration risk

Substantially all the Group’s bank and cash balances are
deposited in financial institutions in Hong Kong and the PRC.
The credit risk is limited as the majority of counterparties
are financial institutions with high credit ratings assigned
by international credit rating agencies or stated-controlled
financial institutions with good reputations.

The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by
the individual characteristics of each customer. The default
risks of the industry and country in which customers operate
also have an influence on credit risk but to a lesser extent.
At the end of the reporting period, the Group has a certain
concentration of credit risk as 32% (2020: 43%); and 82%
(2020: 89%) of the trade receivables was due from the
largest customer and the five largest customers respectively.

In respect of trade receivables, management has a credit
policy in place and the exposure to the credit risk is
monitored on an ongoing basis. Individual credit evaluations
are performed on all customers requiring credit over a certain
amount. These evaluations focus on the customer’s past
history of making payments when due and current ability
to pay, and take into account information specific to the
customer as well as pertaining to the economic environment
in which the customer operates. Trade receivables are due
within 30 to 120 days from the date of billing. Normally, the
Group does not obtain collateral from customers.

26. BIEERER
AEENEHEAEESEMERL  SERK - £FE
% BRBURR - FE@EBAINERS - AEEHE

BEBREEAZZRNSBTISGO AR FAE - K EH
AEBMBRENBETNZERER/

@ FEERRBREPERE
AEENEERR
Ko BAEERK
HEEREE -

2 EERARTMASHRENE HRER
o2 EX2IINGaMBHRRD SN

AEETZRENRSFERE - RERRNEEREZE
ARTECHEE E2RPUE2EERREEREEAX
SHEFUHRERREEFORBIREERFZME
MR I B SRR ] 2 RAFE B TSR

AEBEMAZNEERRIZXBUEPNEATBEY
&- %}5%“ MFﬁEﬁ%fﬂ.%\E}]LZ’JH pEHEERRE
CERER)D  RBREHR  AEENESER MKEP

Fﬁw%@wME4%@?%?%%m¢%&%@w%ﬁ
89%) N RIREBRARFPMNAEAZARS o

MESERUERNE  EEEAMENEERSE g
= gﬁﬁﬁxxa’wgﬂ o HNFTEERBRABETEES
HoRPHETENEENE - WETEEEHHER
RIS 2 B R RIREF B RAE S UEBERFH
BRIERRBRFMEMNCERENER - E5ERKIERA
BHEREE ALA30E 1208 REE - AEE—KITEM
EEREUEIRS
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26. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)
(@) Credit risk and concentration risk (Continued)

The Group measures loss allowances for trade receivables at
an amount equal to lifetime ECLs. As the Group’s historical
credit loss experience does not indicate significantly
different loss patterns for different customer segments,
the loss allowance based on past due status is not further
distinguished between the Group’s different customer bases.

The directors of the Company have considered the credit
risk of trade receivables and note that there was no actual
loss nor significant past due experience over the past
10 years, including periods of unfavourable economic
conditions. The directors consider the aggregate risks arising
from the possibility of credit loss on trade receivables are not
significant and no allowance for credit losses was made as
at 31 December 2021.

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the Group’s
exposure to credit risk arising from trade receivable are set
outin note 17.

(b)

Individual operating entities within the Group are responsible
for their own cash management, including the short term
investment of cash surpluses. The Group’s policy is to
regularly monitor its liquidity requirements to ensure that
it maintains sufficient reserves of cash and adequate
committed lines of funding from major financial institutions to
meet its liquidity requirements in the short and longer term.

Liquidity risk

MREEBRAF T —FF%H

GEMBRRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LBE®REMN)

26, HEEMER(E)
@ GFERRBREDRERE(E)

AEEBNEREEFEANBREEFENSRIEERS
MR BRER - AR ARENEREEBRERT
AEATAEFPENBARAGFEREEE  HUILERSB
HRMENBRIER T —PROAKEN TRAEFE -

AAREZCEREZRUERNEERR  REBET
FRBIVEETREIENERNBIRE  BIEENFIEER
NEE - BEERAE EHBERERAEHREEEEME
TRERER T TEA - BR2021F 12 A31 B EEHRE
BEIa8E -

ERAEBERESREESMELNEERRIE-FE
(EWBEEHNMFE7 -

by E&RBHERER

AEEET ZEEREEREAESBERCEERE &
EEHESRBIRERENEZAEMNESE R - AEE
ZHBERATHEREFRBERZ REME R UBRELA
FEMRHEERAINGHESE &S - NED H i E
REBREIEER
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AEMBRRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(ABEMREMN)

26. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

(b) Liquidity risk (Continued)

The following table details the remaining contractual
maturities at the end of the reporting period of the Group’s
financial liabilities which are based on the contractual
undiscounted cash flows (including interest payments
computed using contractual rates or, if floating, based on
rates current at the end of the reporting period) and the
earliest date the Group and the Company can be required to

pay:

26. BIERER(®)

(b) E&RBMEE(E)

TRIMAEBEZETEMEHEBEERNRERRZHBRTE
RS - EEERAN LARBMBRZRER (BRER
BOEZHNE - B FBHMNEHERRERR  7FEZ
ME) RAREZERRZER HHETE

2021 2020

Total Total
contractual Within contractual Within
undiscounted 6 months undiscounted 6 months
cash flow oron cash flow oron
Carrying  HiHEAH demand Camying  HHEAH demand
amount MEERE  6EARY amount  RURERER  6EAAL
IRAE ZRER  BREIN REE LEEN  EXRERR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT
Trade and other payables BHREMERED 283,234 283,234 283,234 297,897 297,897 297,897
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26. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

(c) Interest rate risk

The Group’s interest rate risk arises primarily from bank

GEMBRRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LBE®REMN)

26. BIERER(®)

() FIRER

AEEZNXRERBRTIEZERREMESEFEER ZHEEH

and cash balances which were contracted at short-term JZEIFIE RS HAEB LIRS REFERR - AEBE 2 F|
variable rates and expose the Group to cash flow interest ~ E#RAEREESIEWH AT -
rate risk. The Group’s interest rate profile as monitored by
management is set out in (i) below.
(i) Interest rate risk (i) F) 2= [ Bsx
2021 2020
Effective Effective
interest interest
rate rate
% %
BERAIR HK$’000 BEBEAI% HK$’000
% BT T % BT IT
Fixed rate bank deposits ~ #R177E AT 3R & & ) %= 0.25% 163,372 0.99 206,728
Variable rate bank deposits ﬁEﬁm,ﬁﬂﬁM%m 0.07% 67,285 0.09 83,002
(ii)  Sensitivity analysis (i) SBRBEIN

At 31 December 2021, it is estimated that a general
increase/decrease of 100 basis points in interest rates,
with all other variables held constant, would increase/
decrease the Group’s profit after tax and retained earnings
by approximately HK$562,000 (2020: HK$693,000)
respectively. Other components of equity would not be
affected (2020: HK$NIl) by changes in interest rates.

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined
assuming that the change in interest rates had occurred
at the end of the reporting period and had been applied to
the exposure to interest rate risk for financial instruments
in existence at that date. The 100 basis point increase
or decrease represents management’s assessment of
a reasonably possible change in interest rates over the
period until the next annual reporting date. The analysis is
performed on the same basis for 2020.

MREEBRAF T —FF%H

PH2021F12 A31 REMBEME R EEFTENE
T AR FIR AP, 100 86T H‘”‘E\Ji‘bu/
BOREBZBRREFBERASEFBLODRE fﬁ%saazooo
7T (2020 4F : B#5693,0007T) © AR N5 FI| R
B (2020F : BEZIT) -

NERBERESNEREFNEZEHERNRERRTEME
o WEEARSARZBFTMEREITERETET BT
BZFMERE - 100 FE MRV IEEEBEHEZ T —
E4F & 35 B R AR 2 FI R M e S 1B B) 2 714 o D ATIZ
2020 FAR[R) -z HAEHTT o
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GEMBRRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(LB REN)

26. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

(d) Foreign currency risk

(i) Foreign currency transactions

The Group is exposed to currency risk primarily through
sales and expense transactions that are denominated in a
currency other than the functional currency of the operations
to which they relate. The currencies giving rise to this risk are
primarily US$ and GBP.

(i) Recognised assets and liabilities

In respect of trade receivables and payables held in
currencies other than the functional currency of the
operations to which they relate, the Group ensures that the
net exposure is kept to an acceptable level, by buying or
selling foreign currencies at spot rates where necessary to
address short-term imbalances.

(iii)  The following table details the Group’s exposure at
the end of the reporting period to currency risk arising
from recognised assets or liabilities denominated in
a currency other than the functional currency of the
entity to which they relate.

26. BIEREER (@)
(d)y MR
(i) HER 5

AEBEZHRNUAZFREEHNEEBUIN 2 EHIIE
ZHARZ I MAAEINER K - BRIERR 2 B%

(i) CECRIALEREE
ERNERZYREERNIINZEBRBE2EMEZRER
ENERESR AEEea s 2RMEHNH T FER - URE
ERBEARELINE  BRFZESHEFE BRI
RE -

TRINRAREER fE HIRE AR LR SR LAY
EEENIIM—RBERIIENEENAEMAR S
M B R o

(iii)

2021 2020

US$’000 GBP’000 US$’000 GBP’000

FEx Foes FET T

Trade and other receivables & 5 & E b fE UL BR X 25,045 4,313 28,189 908

Bank and cash balances  $R1T RIS A6 28,613 33 36,698 248

Trade and other payables & 5 & H {th FEATBEZ (5,125) - (8,064) -
Net exposure arising from  HERZEEN
recognised assets and BEFEUFAE

liabilities 48,533 4,346 56,823 1,156
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26, FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

(d) Foreign currency risk (Continued)

(iv)  Sensitivity analysis

The following table indicates the approximate change in the
Group’s profit after tax and retained earnings in response to
reasonably possible changes in the foreign exchange rates
to which the Group has significant exposure at the end of
the reporting period.

GEMBRRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LBE®REMN)

26. HMBEMREE (&)
(d) MRS (&)
(iv) SREDH

TREEBAEENRERRIEMAREARBRZER S
IR E B HRRRER RRERNER 2 HOED) -

2021 2020

Effect Effect

Increase/ on profit Increase/ on profit
(decrease) in after tax and (decrease) in after tax and
foreign retained foreign retained
exchange earnings exchange earnings
rate HERBI% rate iz
B, BARRE bEE 3 0, g A Ko AR R
O A) BRIz E CRA) BNz E8
HK$’000 HK$’000

BETT BB

GBP e 5% 1,930 5% 503
(5%) (1,930) (5%) (503)

Results of the analysis as presented in the above table
represent an aggregation of the effects on each of the Group
entities’ profit after tax and retained earnings measured in
the respective functional currencies, translated into HK$ at
the exchange rate ruling as at the end of the reporting period
for presentation purposes.

The sensitivity analysis has been determined assuming that
the change in foreign exchange rates occurred at the end
of the reporting period and applied to each of the Group
entities’ exposure to currency risk for non-derivative financial
instruments in existence at that date, and that all other
variables, in particular interest rates, remain constant. In
this respect, it is assumed that the pegged rate between
the HK$ and the US$ would be materially unaffected by
any changes in movement in value of the US$ against
other currencies. The percentage of increase and decrease
in foreign exchange rate represents the management’s
assessment of reasonably possible changes in foreign
exchange rates over the period until the next annual
reporting date. The analysis is performed on the same basis
for 2020.

MREEBRAF T —FF%H

ERARZOMERESRE R AR BB ZHRRREN
RERDEEBZERENRZEX(RE2RME) LERE
TUAt B 2 AR 5T -

HREDMIBREXSHN|ERNREL - IRANRAK
SESEENRNZANFEZHRITEERTAMARZE
KR MAAEMAERZROLENE)REAE - 5
b BRETAETZHIERFAERAXTHEEME
BZEPMIEATE - MEJZEBEEEEGESR
REET—EAFEREAREBE 2B REED o £17
DT 2 EHEER 2020 P kiE 2 EREAER] o
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HEMKRERMEE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(ABEMREMN)

26. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 26. BiEREREE )

(Continued)

(e) Categories of financial instruments at 31 (e)

BZE2021 £ 1283 BRI EER

December 2021
2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$’'000
BT T BT
Financial assets: SWMEE
Financial assets measured LA AT EN S RMEE
at amortised cost 548,369 598,291
Financial liabilities: s@as:
Financial liabilities at amortised cost LA SRR AT EM SR A E 283,234 297,897
()  Fair values fH 2FE

All financial instruments are carried at amounts not materially

different from their fair value as at 31 December 2021 and Bz AV EEE AXTE -

2020.

27. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY 27 BEEZEAXXZNEE
TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES

() Key management personnel remuneration @ FEEEEBAEMS

Remuneration for key management personnel of the Group
represents amounts paid to the Company’s executive
directors as disclosed in note 10.

10 5% -

FiEemI Az ABRESFEREEN 2021 F & 20204F 12 A 31

SETXEEEEBAEMEBRINARBRITESETRME

2021 2020

HK$’000 HK$'000

BT T BET T

Short-term employee benefits MHIEERA 12,229 11,898
Post-employment benefits &1 AREF 702 702
12,931 12,600

RAYMOND Industrial Ltd. Annual Report 2021



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

27. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES
(Continued)

(b) Other related party transactions

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Company
entered into an agreement with RJW Technology Company
Limited (“RJW Technology”) in acquiring one (2020: one)
unit of machinery at a consideration of HK$950,000 (2020:
HK$950,000), which was delivered to the Group’s premises.
In addition, the Company sold air purifiers and device
casing at an aggregated consideration of HK$25,000 (2020:
HKS$NIl) to RJW Technology. RJW Technology is majority
controlled by the executive director and chairman of the
Board, Dr. WONG, Man Hin Raymond.

(9)

Balances with subsidiaries are disclosed in the Company’s
statement of financial position contained in note 30(a).

Balances dealt with related parties

28. EVENTSAFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

After the end of the reporting period, the directors proposed
a final dividend. Further details are disclosed in note 23(b).

FREBEEARAR —ZT——FFH

GEMBRRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LBE®REMN)

27. BBA2EARRZRESRE)

(b) HitEFEHFER
HZE2021F12 A31 BIEFE - AARERIWHEITERA
A (TRIWH AT ) BTS2 #7535 + DA ¥ 950,000 JT (2020 4F -
B 950,0007T) IR EBEE1 S (2020F :18)#E - 2
RN B REBRIE - to - AR B [RIW AT ] &2
FFBRREREING - BR(ERB25,0007T (2020 F -
FBEEZIT) o RIW Technology I TE EREEEEFE X
BIETEZIES -

(c) PRBAELAERR

HRERAWB AR ZEHRCEARR RN ER ZH T
30(a) PHIFE -

28. AFEHREFR
RIBEEARE - EEEBREALRS - FHERME23(0) -
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GEMBRRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(UBE®REN)

29. SUBSIDIARIES’ INFORMATION

The following list contains only the particulars of subsidiaries
which principally affected the results, assets or liabilities
of the Group. The class of shares held is ordinary unless
otherwise stated.

29. MIBATESFR
VEREBEE BERABIMBRAASBENT - B
KERIBIE « BT 2 IRIE AL mAR -

Particulars of Proportion of
issued and paid ownership interest held
Place of Place of up capital by the Company Principal
Name of company incorporation operation BRTR A activities
e Bl e BRREZFE BYER TEEHR
Mass Top Corporation The British Hong Kong 1 share of US$1 100% Property holding
Virgin Islands &E 1REBRER1ET RENE
EBRNS
Raymond (Panyu Nansha) Electrical The PRC The PRC Registered capital 100% Manufacture
Appliances Development Company H i 1S$22,380,000 and sale of
Limited (Note) FRER electrical home
MR (BBEY)BRER 22,380,000 % T appliances
ARAF (FE1) RERHE
FHES
Note: FfsE -

The statutory financial statements of Raymond (Panyu Nansha)
Electrical Appliances Development Company Limited for the
financial year ended 31 December 2021, prepared under generally
accepted accounting principles applicable in the PRC, have been

audited by BMEHSFHAIEFEERAR].

Raymond (Panyu Nansha) Electrical Appliances Development
Company Limited is a wholly foreign owned enterprise registered
under PRC Law.
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-
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mEMBRERMEE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(B aEN)
30. FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF THE 30. ZAAQTBBEER
COMPANY
(a) Statement of financial position @ FBRRR
2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T AT T
Non-current assets FREBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BE REE 1,374 1,833
Investments in subsidiaries B ARKRE 173,703 173,703
175,077 175,536
Current assets REBEE
Inventories FE 27,269 5,770
Trade and other receivables 55 M E R ARSR 242,482 230,200
Current tax assets BVEAf B E E 662 -
Bank and cash balances RITRIR ST 236,560 277,335
506,973 513,305
Current liabilities REEE
Trade and other payables Z 5 M EAME IR 65,123 102,004
Amounts due to subsidiaries JEASTBTE A B BR X 105,708 58,763
Dividends payable JERTARE 322 286
Current tax liabilities ENEATHIB B 1B - 2,382
171,153 163,435
Net current assets REEEFE 335,820 349,870
Total assets less current liabilities #EEERAHERE 510,897 525,406
Non-current liabilities ERBEE
Deferred tax liabilities BIEFIIEAE 148 148
NET ASSETS EEFE 510,749 525,258
CAPITAL AND RESERVES EARREE
Share capital iE&N 467,578 462,333
Reserves w1 43,171 62,925
TOTAL EQUITY R 510,749 525,258

Approved by the Board of Directors on 25 March 2022 and

are signed on its behalf by:

WONG, Man Hin Raymond
BEXHE

Director

EF

MREEBRAF T —FF%H

20224 3 A 25 HEE B S NIRRT -

WONG, Ying Man John
BERY
Director

EZE
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HEMKRERMEE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(UBE®REN)

30. FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF THE 30. ZXATEBER (®)

COMPANY (Continued)

(b) Details of changes in the Company’s (b) TFTREFIRQFEHEDEKRBOEFEN

individual components of reserve during the SEIFE
year:
Share Capital Retained Total
capital reserve earnings equity
R ERGEE REET BatiER
(note 23(a)) (note 23(c)(ii)
(Pi3E23(a) (PizE 23(c)()
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Biysx BT AR BETT BT
At 1 January 2020 20201 A1 B&E 462,333 756 12,853 475,942
Changes in equity for 2020: 2020 FRELZEE
Profit and total comprehensive ~ REFFI K2 E L
income for the year - - 78,986 78,986
Dividends approved in respect RS
of the:
— current year - AF 23(b)(i) - - (9,890) (9,890)
— previous year - fiF 23(o)(ii - - (19,780) (19,780)
- - 49,316 49,316
At 31 December 2020 W2020F 12 A 31 &t 462,333 756 62,169 525,258
At 1 January 2021 20211 51 B&E 462,333 756 62,169 525,258
Changes in equity for 2021: 2021 FREEET
Profit and total comprehensive ~ AEFFI K2 E LS
income for the year - - 20,946 20,946
Dividends approved in respect RS
of the:
— current year - AF 23(b)(i) - - (10,024) (10,024)
— previous year -AF 23(o)(ii - - (30,054) (30,054)
Shares issued under share ERED BT RG
option scheme
- gross proceeds - Bz 23(a)(ii 4,623 - - 4,623
— transfer from capital reserve - HEAREER 622 (622) - -
5,245 (622) (19,132) (14,500)
At 31 December 2021 W2021 F£12 A 31 Rt 467,578 134 43,037 510,749
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3I. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY

ESTIMATES

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies

In the process of applying the accounting policies, the
directors have made the following judgements that have the
most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the
consolidated financial statements (apart from those involving
estimations, which are dealt with below).

Significant increase in credit risk

ECL are measured as an allowance equal to 12-month ECL
for stage 1 assets, or lifetime ECL for stage 2 or stage 3
assets. An asset moves to stage 2 when its credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition. HKFRS 9
does not define what constitutes a significant increase in
credit risk. In assessing whether the credit risk of an asset
has significantly increased the Group takes into account
qualitative and quantitative reasonable and supportable
forward-looking information.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future, and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year, are discussed below.

(a) Depreciation

Property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets are
depreciated on a straight-line basis or reducing balance
basis over the estimated useful lives. The Group reviews
annually the useful life of an asset and its residual value, if
any. The depreciation expense for future periods is adjusted
if there are significant changes from the previous estimation.

MREEBRAF T —FF%H

GEMBRRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LBE®REMN)

3. EE¥EREFEME

FE P& ot BUR R Y E E 3

ERERAGHERONBET  E2FEL TUTHES M BE®R
RTPERNCRARERTENHE OF R0 & iR
9|\ ’ ﬁ#ﬁTXuTnﬁﬁ)

EEREAEEEM
F-HEREENEMEEEBRRESR 12EARREES
BONRETE  IRE _RE=EREERATNEHE
%Eﬁ%%%%ﬁ#i°%—E§FMET @B B R
BARFBEEIEN ZEESEBEE _KR - BEVBR
EEW PO EB EERREZEEMNEXRERIELE
& %M—EQFWETH&EE%%?MM rEES
EEAELRBEBRIFNEENEEAELER -

A THBEEN T ERR

TXHwmEBARNEERRLBERRET TAREE
MEMTFBERR  ZSEBEREREFEEREERARD
BREEAR T —EMRFEELENHENEARR

(@ wE

M - B MR A REREEENERRUBREBEERAIR
BENGEFAIERFHMNE - SESEFRNEZFEE
B RIE R FE RN RS ERE - F - REANFTERI SR
BT A BFOEARCMAR -
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GEMBRRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(UBE®REN)

3I. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
ESTIMATES (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

(b) Impairment of property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets

In considering the impairment loss that may be required for
certain property, plant and equipment, right-of-use assets
and investments in subsidiaries, the recoverable amount of
the asset needs to be determined. The recoverable amount
is the greater of the fair value less costs of disposal and the
value in use. It is difficult to estimate precisely the fair value
price because quoted market prices for the assets may not
be readily available. In determining the value in use, expected
cash flows generated by the asset are discounted to their
present value, which requires significant judgement relating
to items such as level of revenue and amount of operating
costs. The Group uses all readily available information in
determining an amount that is a reasonable approximation
of the recoverable amount, including estimates based on
reasonable and supportable assumptions and projections of
items such as revenue and operating costs.

(c) Impairment of trade receivables

The Group considers the ECLs of trade receivables are
based on management’s estimate of the lifetime ECL which
is taking into account the credit loss experience, ageing of
overdue trade receivables, customers’ repayment history
and customers’ financial position and an assessment of
both the current and forecast general economic conditions,
all of which involve a significant degree of management
judgement.

The provision of ECLs is sensitive to changes in
circumstances and of forecast general economic conditions.
The information about the ECLs and the Group’s trade
receivables are disclosed in notes 17 and 26(a). If the financial
condition of the customers or the forecast economic
conditions were to deteriorate, actual loss allowance would
be higher than estimated.

142

3. EEHERFEMRTT @)

At THBRENETERR (@)

(b) % - BERRERERAEEERE

ZREETYE BELRE EAEEERNHERR
ZWERAIWEEEREHRBERER  BETEELA
WEEE AR EeEAFEEBREREEME LIRS
o HNUEEEZ MM E TR ST B - B IAE
MG EE CECEREER  EEMELZANRE
CREDFEEHBREREE  MARERBKFEREENX
AL BEFRBFELHERNE - ARBEEETSERERM
BRAERFZEN MeBAKRESEZAEMOE
B ERREAEMEXHZRRAEARBMERER
LEXAFEFTEUR ©

(0 EZEWRFRE

AEERREZREEFNBREEBRREREEBYF
BHMEMEREBENMGR  ZAAZTETEEBELR
BHE S RERRO KRR - B NERREME PO
AL DA e B B AN FEURI 9 AR B8 A MO AT - PRB B LR A
REmEEEHE -

RUFEMEEBRYRTZ(CMNIRR &L N RE
B FARHEEBRBERAKEE 5 BUARKA E B
AE17 % 26(a) KR © AIRE P BB AR S TR O RO
Bt BEREXERSBSHEE -
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3I. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
ESTIMATES (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

(d) Income taxes

Determining income tax provisions involves judgement
on the future tax treatment of certain transactions and
interpretation of tax rules. The Group carefully evaluates
the tax implications of transactions and tax provisions are
set up accordingly. The tax treatment of transactions is
reconsidered periodically to take into account all changes in
tax legislation.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for tax losses not
yet used and temporary deduction differences. Those
deferred tax assets can only be recognised to the extent
that it is probable that future profit will be available against
which the unused tax credit can be utilised, consequently
management’s judgement is required to assess the
probability of future taxable profits. Management’s
assessment is constantly reviewed and additional deferred
tax assets are recognised if it becomes probable that
future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be
recovered.

(e) Allowance for slow-moving and obsolete
inventories

The Group performs regular reviews of the carrying amounts
of inventories with reference to aged inventories analyses,
projections of expected future saleability of goods and
management experience and judgement. Based on these
reviews, write-down of inventories will be made when the
carrying amounts of inventories fall below their estimated net
realisable value. Due to changes in customers’ performance,
actual sale of goods may be different from estimates
and profit or loss could be affected by differences from
estimates.

MREEBRAF T —FF%H

GEMBRRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LBE®REMN)

3. EEHERFEMRTT @)

At THBRENETERR (@)

(d) Fr&®i
EMERERYREE TR REHIARE 2 5HE KR
BRAZRRE - AREREMFGRZZBREHE - L&
SEIR B R S - ZFRH 2 HIARIE T E Bimss - MAG
KL 2 FREEE) -

AL TR IR A B TD koK B R (B B B FUR = R 2 B IR S 1R B
R o HNZFELERIRE EEN AN % A 7] A 3 m
*Eﬁ)ﬂ#ﬁﬂ%ﬁ%ﬁTiﬁﬁﬁfﬁAﬁﬁw C BIEBAMERKE
AR M 2 ATREME o BB Z RS DR HIMRAT - fe R SRR
AR M A LRI EERE R IR B E - RIS R BEINEER
HEE °

(e) FHERBRETFERE

AEBHITE PRI RFEREDN - RERKHEE -
BB A FEEREE - ERIR - Elfi"iﬁﬁﬁ
ETKEXREGEAREEFEMEFERE - BXEFPE
BN2g  BERHEESELATEAZEERLFTAETE
i Mk &R
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Five Years Financial Summary

IFEHERE

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR #mEHEHER
LOSS
Year ended 31 December
HIE12HA31HILEE
2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BT BT BT BT T BT T
Revenue A 997,697 1,285,918 1,155,578 1,289,515 | 1,433,612
Profit before taxation BREE R A 46,445 62,298 41,910 76,879 47,272
Income tax expense Frisfi s (9,983) (9,724) (2,937) (13,661) (5,312)
Profit for the year RATREREN
attributable to REE A
shareholders
of the Company 36,462 52,574 38,973 63,218 41,960
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL #R& M#ikR&k
POSITION
As at 31 December
12HA31 B#&E
2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BT BT BT BT T BT T
Property, plant and Yz - BB R
equipment 165,581 184,011 169,692 153,021 155,983
Interests in leasehold RIGEEHEE1E
land held for own B Az iR
use under operating
leases 7,403 6,664 - - -
Right-of-use assets FREEE - - 8,973 8,833 8,509
Deferred tax assets EETIRE = 5,296 3,296 3,424 2,739 3,000
Net current assets MENEEFE 417,815 418,379 424,038 490,789 503,501
Deferred tax liabilities BETIBAE (734) (181) (173) (167) (163)
Net assets BEFE 595,361 612,169 605,954 655,215 670,830
Share capital (&N 453,723 461,807 462,333 462,333 467,578
Reserves Gt 141,638 150,362 143,621 192,882 203,252
Total equity Bl 595,361 612,169 605,954 655,215 670,830
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